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COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: W i l l you come t o o r d e r , 
t 

p l e a s e . So as not t o p e n a l i z e the people who got here on 

time I t h i n k we had b e t t e r s t a r t . 

T h i s h e a r i n g has been c a l l e d t o a f f o r d i n t e r e s t e d 

p ersons and o r g a n i z a t i o n s an o p p o r t u n i t y t o e x p r e s s t h e i r 

v i e w s on t h r e e proposed highway improvements i n the Northwest 

s e c t i o n of t h e D i s t r i c t of Columbia. The s t a t e m e n t s p r e s e n t e d 

h e r e w i l l be of c o n s i d e r a b l e a s s i s t a n c e t o the Board of 

Commissioners i n a s c e r t a i n i n g what i s b e s t i n the p u b l i c 

i n t e r e s t , The proposed improvements a r e : 

1, The West Leg of the I n n e r Loop, from K S t r e e t , 

N. W,, t o M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue, N, W, 

2, The Potomac R i v e r Freeway, from G S t r e e t , N, W., 

t o the v i c i n i t y of W i s c o n s i n Avenue, i n c l u d i n g 

ramp i n t e r c h a n g e s w i t h K S t r e e t and the West Leg 

of t h e I n n e r Loop, 

3, The Washington C i r c l e Grade S e p a r a t i o n and 

ramps, and the improvement of K S t r e e t , from 26th 

S t r e e t , N. W., t o C o n n e c t i c u t Avenue, N, W. 

T i t l e 23, U n i t e d S t a t e s Code, S e c t i o n 128, r e q u i r e s 

the h o l d i n g of p u b l i c h e a r i n g s on proposed F e d e r a l - a i d highway 

p r o j e c t s . I n compliance w i t h t h i s r e q u i r e m e n t , a t r a n s c r i p t 

of t h e r e c o r d of the h e a r i n g w i l l be s u b m i t t e d t o the S e c r e t a r y 

of Commerce,, 

E v e r y e f f o r t has been made t o a d v e r t i s e t h e time and 

p l a c e o f t h e hearing,, N o t i c e o f t h e h e a r i n g was a d v e r t i s e d i n 

t h e E v e n i n g S t a r on November 24 and December 1, 1958, and the 
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D i s t r i c t of Columbia R e g i s t e r on December 1, 1958 0 Hearing 

n o t i c e s were a l s o d i s t r i b u t e d t o persons and orga n i z a t i o n s 

known to be i n t e r e s t e d i n the proposed highway improvements. 

A copy of the n o t i c e w i l l now be incorporated i n t o 

the record of the hearing. 

(The n o t i c e of hearing f o l l o w s : ) 

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

EXECUTIVE OFFICES 

WASHINGTON 4, D, C. 

November 24, 1958 

NOTICE 

The Commissioners of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia w i l l 

hold a P u b l i c Hearing i n the Board Room, Room 500, D i s t r i c t 

B u i l d i n g , 14th and E S t r e e t s , N. W., on Monday, January 5, 

1959, at 10:00 A.M. to a f f o r d i n t e r e s t e d persons and organiza­

t i o n s an opportunity to express t h e i r views on the following 

proposed highway improvements w i t h i n the Northwest Section 

of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia: 

1. The West Leg of the Inner Loop, from K S t r e e t , N. W., 

to Massachusetts Avenue, N. W. 

2. The Potomac R i v e r Freeway, from G S t r e e t , N. W., to 

the v i c i n i t y of Wisconsin Avenue, i n c l u d i n g ramp 

interchanges with K S t r e e t and the West Leg of the 

Inner Loop. 

3. The Washington C i r c l e Grade Separation and ramps, 

and the improvement of K S t r e e t , from 26th S t r e e t , 

N, W., to Connecticut Avenue, N. W. 

The P u b l i c Hearing provides a forum whereby the 
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Commissioners can r e c e i v e the o p i n i o n s of i n d i v i d u a l s and 

groups. The g e n e r a l l o c a t i o n s of proposed r o u t e s a r e i n d i c a t e d 

on the map appended hereto,, 

The Washington C i r c l e Grade S e p a r a t i o n and the 

improvement of K S t r e e t have been u r g e n t l y needed f o r a number 

of y e a r s . A p r o p o s a l was s e t f o r t h a s e a r l y as 1941 by the 

Department of Highways and T r a f f i c o f the D i s t r i c t of Columbia 

t o make t h e s e improvements. 

The West Leg of the I n n e r Loop and the Potomac R i v e r 

Freeway a r e p r o j e c t s t h a t i n v o l v e the c o n s t r u c t i o n of l i m i t e d 

a c c e s s f r e e w a y s t o r e l a t i v e l y h i g h I n t e r s t a t e s t a n d a r d s . Each 

o f the improvements w i l l s e r v e t r u c k s , buses, and passenger 

c a r s . 

The Ptomac R i v e r Freeway p r o j e c t p r o v i d e s f o r the 

m o d i f i c a t i o n of t h e W h i t e h u r s t Freeway as a one-way westbound 

t r a f f i c f a c i l i t y . I t a l s o p r o v i d e s f o r the e r e c t i o n of a new 

s t r u c t u r e a d j a c e n t t o the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway t o s e r v e e a s t -

bound t r a f f i c . On November 6, 1958, the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l 

P l a n n i n g Commission approved the l o c a t i o n of t h e Potomac 

R i v e r Freeway w e s t w a r d l y t o W i s c o n s i n Avenue. I t i s contemplated 

t h a t a l a t e r h e a r i n g w i l l c o v e r the Potomac R i v e r Freeway w e s t ­

e r l y o f W i s c o n s i n Avenue t o a c o n n e c t i o n w i t h t h e G l o v e r 

A r c h b o l d Parkway, 

The Freeway from K S t r e e t t o 2 1 s t S t r e e t and 

M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue i s a segment of the proposed I n n e r Loop 

System of Freeways e n c i r c l i n g the c e n t r a l a r e a of the D i s t r i c t . 

Another segment of the I n n e r Loop — the Southwest Freeway — 

has a l r e a d y been p l a c e d under c o n s t r u c t i o n . The p o r t i o n of 
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the Inner Loop to he considered a t the hearing has been the 

s u b j e c t of i n t e n s i v e s t u d i e s and i n v e s t i g a t i o n s s i n c e 1954. 

Three a l t e r n a t i v e l o c a t i o n s have been presented to the Board 

of Commissioners. Each of the proposals provides f o r road­

ways depressed below e x i s t i n g s t r e e t grades t o minimize the 

impact on adjacent a r e a s . 

I n a report dated October 1955, DeLeuw Gather and 

Company, Consulting Engineers, recommends a route which begins 

a t G S t r e e t between 23rd and 24th S t r e e t s , extends northward, 

and underpasses Washington C i r c l e . From the C i r c l e , i t extends 

along the s o u t h e a s t e r l y s i d e of New Hampshire Avenue to 21st 

S t r e e t , and thence along the e a s t s i d e of 21st S t r e e t to 

Massachusetts Avenue. 

In a subsequent report dated June 1957, the Clarkson 

Engineering Company recommends a route which begins at G S t r e e t 

j u s t west of 25th S t r e e t , and extends northward diverging 

i n t o two roadways. The northbound roadway extends along the 

west s i d e of 25th S t r e e t ; the southbound roadway extends to 

the west s i d e of 26th S t r e e t . The roadways r e j o i n i n the 

v i c i n i t y of 24th and N S t r e e t s and follow an e a s t e r l y course 

to 21st S t r e e t between 0 and P S t r e e t s , and thence n o r t h e r l y 

a long the e a s t s i d e of 21st S t r e e t to Massachusetts Avenue. 

During the past year, the Department of Highways 

and T r a f f i c developed a t h i r d a l t e r n a t i v e route, which was 

approved by the National C a p i t a l Planning Commission on 

November 6, 1958. T h i s route begins at G S t r e e t , near 25th 

S t r e e t , and the northbound and southbound roadways extend to 

K S t r e e t between 26th and 27th S t r e e t s . From t h i s point, they 
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f o l l o w a c o u r s e n o r t h e r l y and e a s t e r l y t o the v i c i n i t y of 

22nd and N S t r e e t s . Both roadways then swing northward 

c r o s s i n g M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue on the e a s t s i d e of 2 1 s t S t r e e t . 

Any f u r t h e r i n f o r m a t i o n needed may be o b t a i n e d by 

a p p l i c a t i o n t o the Department of Highways and T r a f f i c , D i s t r i c t 

B u i l d i n g , Washington, D. C. Addressees a r e r e q u e s t e d t o 

communicate t h e f o r e g o i n g i n f o r m a t i o n t o any persons known t o 

be i n t e r e s t e d i n t h i s highway improvement and who not being 

known t o t h i s o f f i c e d i d not r e c e i v e a copy of t h i s p u b l i c 

n o t i c e . 

I n d i v i d u a l s and r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s of o r g a n i z a t i o n s 

i n t e n d i n g t o p r e s e n t a s t a t e m e n t a t t h e h e a r i n g a r e r e q u e s t e d 

t o f u r n i s h t h e i r names and a d d r e s s e s and telephone numbers t o 

the S e c r e t a r y , Board of Commissioners i n w r i t i n g not l a t e r 

t h a n the c l o s e of b u s i n e s s on December 3 1 , 1958, so t h a t the 

name of each person i n t e n d i n g t o make a statement may be 

p l a c e d on the l i s t o f s p e a k e r s . 

( S i g n e d ) G, M. T h o r n e t t 

S e c r e t a r y 

Board o f Commissioners, D. C. 

I n c l o s u r e * 

• " ( D i s t r i c t of Columbia map showing p l a n of v a r i o u s proposed 

r o u t e s f o r West Leg of I n n e r Loop, Potomac R i v e r Freeway and 

K S t . , N. W.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I w i s h a l s o t o announce, 

a t t h i s t i m e , t h a t the r e c o r d of t h i s h e a r i n g w i l l be kept 

open u n t i l the c l o s e of b u s i n e s s on J a n u a r y 16, 1959, t o 
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permit f i l i n g of a d d i t i o n a l b r i e f s . 

A l l persons who d e s i r e , w i l l be afforded an op­

por t u n i t y t o present t h e i r views on the proposed improvements — 

and I might say as we used to when we held hearings on bus 

routes down at the P u b l i c U t i l i t i e s Commission, don't j u s t 

t e l l us where not to put i t i f you don't want i t put some­

place, t e l l us where to put i t . We have to put these f a c i l i ­

t i e s someplece. 

I w i l l c a l l upon the r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s of the Depart­

ment of Highways and T r a f f i c to k i c k o f f t h i s morning and w i l l 

you please come forward, Mr. J . N. Pobertson, D i r e c t o r of the 

Department of Highways and T r a f f i c . 

STATEMENT OF J . N. ROBERTSON, DIRECTOR, 

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC, 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, 

xxx MR. ROBERTSON: Mr. Chairman, l a d i e s and gentlemen, 

I am not going to take much time. We have st u d i e d t h i s west 

Old f o r two or three y e a r s . We have had three a l t e r n a t e plans. 

Mr. Aitken, my s p e c i a l a s s i s t a n t , Mr. B r i n k l e y , the planning 

engineer, w i l l d e s c r i b e i n d e t a i l these plans. 

I w i l l say t h i s , Mr, Chairman, that the Highway 

Department favo r s the plan t o the west that w i l l be shown, 

I think i t i s marked "C*. 

That i s a l l I have t o say at t h i s time, 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Jack. 

Mr. Aitken? 

T h i s i s Mr. Harold L, Aitken, C h i e f Engineer of the 

O f f i c e of Planning and Programming, 
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STATEMENT OF HAROLD L. AITKEN, CHIEF ENGINEER, 

OFFICE OF PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING, DISTRICT 

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC, 

x x x MR. AITKEN: Mr. P r e s i d e n t and G e n e r a l W e l l i n g , 

t h i s i s an im p o r t a n t p u b l i c h e a r i n g . I t p e r t a i n s t o proposed 

highway improvements t h a t w i l l have a s i g n i f i c a n t e f f e c t upon 

the m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a . 

Or. t h e one hand we w i l l f u r n i s h i n f o r m a t i o n and 

r e f e r e n c e s i n t e n d e d t o s u b s t a n t i a t e the proposed improvements 

a s a l o g i c a l s o l u t i o n t o a p a r t of the t r a n s p o r t a t i o n r e q u i r e ­

ments of Washington, D. C, 

On the o t h e r hand, t h e c o n s t r u c t i o n w i l l have an 

impo r t a n t b e a r i n g upon the a r e a s through which i t e x t e n d s . 

While we do not y e t have e x p e r i e n c e i n t h i s c i t y t o v i s i b l y 

demonstrate s u c h an e f f e c t we w i l l c i t e examples of modern 

freeway p l a n n i n g and c o n s t r u c t i o n i n o t h e r c i t i e s and f u r n i s h 

e v i d e n c e t o support our f o r e c a s t . 

The proposed Potomac R i v e r Freeway and the West Leg 

ar e i m p o r t a n t components of a freeway s y s t e m f o r Washington, 

D. Co I t i s h a r d l y p o s s i b l e t o d i v o r c e a c o n s i d e r a t i o n of 

th e s e elements from the o v e r a l l freeway system p l a n . 

While t h e h e a r i n g today i s l i m i t e d i n scope the 

f o l l o w i n g d i s c u s s i o n w i l l d evelop p r i n c i p l e s a p p l i c a b l e t o 

th e e n t i r e freeway s y s t e m i n the D i s t r i c t of Columbia, 

There a r e t h r e e b a s i c m o t i v a t i n g f a c t o r s which 

c o n t r i b u t e t o the need f o r p l a n n i n g , d e s i g n and c o n s t r u c t i o n 

of the proposed freew a y system. 

The f i r s t of t h e s e i s p o p u l a t i o n . The p o p u l a t i o n 
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i n t h e m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a i n 1958 i s e s t i m a t e d t o be about 

2,000,000. The demographers of the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l R e g i o n a l 

P l a n n i n g C o u n c i l e s t i m a t e t h a t t h e p o p u l a t i o n i n t h e metro­

p o l i t a n a r e a i n 1980 w i l l be between 2.75 and 3.25 m i l l i o n . 

The mass t r a n s i t s t u d y i s being p r e p a r e d on the b a s i s of an 

e s t i m a t e d p o p u l a t i o n o f t h r e e m i l l i o n . The number of 

v e h i c l e s i s c l o s e l y r e l a t e d t o p o p u l a t i o n and d u r i n g t h e 

p a s t s e v e r a l y e a r s the American c i t i z e n has p r o g r e s s i v e l y 

r e l i e d upon h i s p e r s o n a l automobile f o r more and more of h i s 

t r a n s p o r t a t i o n r e q u i r e m e n t s . 

The mass t r a n s i t s t u d y e s t i m a t e s t h a t w h i l e the 

p o p u l a t i o n w i l l i n c r e a s e about 50 p e r c e n t between now and 

1980 the t o t a l number of t r i p s i n the m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a w i l l 

i n c r e a s e a p p r o x i m a t e l y 100 p e r c e n t d u r i n g the same i n t e r i m . 

Secondly, t h e r e has been an i n c r e a s e i n t h e use 

of a u t o m o b i l e s . T r a f f i c volumes on the b r i d g e s s p a n n i n g the 

Potomac R i v e r i n t h e m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a a f f o r d one good in d e x 

of t r a f f i c volune t r e n d s i n the m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a . 

I n 1940 the average d a i l y volume of t r a f f i c c r o s s ­

i n g a l l b r i d g e s i n t h e a r e a was about 105,000; i n 1951 the 

t o t a l was a p p r o x i m a t e l y 200,000; and i n August of 1958 the 

volume was a p p r o x i m a t e l y 260,000 v e h i c l e s per day. I t has 

been e s t i m a t e d t h a t t h i s volume w i l l be i n t h e o r d e r o f 

415,000 i n 1980. 

A t h i r d i m p o rtant p o i n t i s t h a t i n 1956 a f t e r 

months o f h e a r i n g s and d e l i b e r a t i o n s Congress passed the 

F e d e r a l A i d Highway A c t of 1956. Tha t l e g i s l a t i o n a u t h o r i z e s 

apportionments t o t a l i n g a p p r o x i m a t e l y $25 b i l l i o n and c o v e r i n g 
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a 13-year p e r i o d f o r f i n a n c i n g t h e f e d e r a l s h a r e of the c o s t 

f o r t h e n a t i o n a l s y s t e m of i n t e r s t a t e highways, a u t h o r i z e d 

and d e s i g n a t e d i n accordance w i t h the F e d e r a l A i d Highway 

Ac t of 1944. 

The l e g i s l a t i o n p r o v i d e s f o r an i n t e g r a t e d freeway 

s y s t e m throughout the s e v e r a l s t a t e s , i n c l u d i n g the D i s t r i c t 

o f Columbia, and s t i p u l a t e s t h a t i t i s t h e i n t e n t of Congress 

t h a t the s y s t e m s h o u l d be completed a s n e a r l y a s p r a c t i c a l 

o v e r a 13-year p e r i o d . 

The S t a t e s of Maryland and V i r g i n i a a r e now i n the 

p r o c e s s o f p l a n n i n g and d e s i g n i n g i n t e r s t a t e highway r o u t e s 

which a f f e c t t h i s m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a . S p e c i f i c a l l y , the S t a t e 

of V i r g i n i a i s p l a n n i n g an i n t e r s t a t e r o u t e which w i l l c r o s s 

A r l i n g t o n County and connect t o the proposed Theodore R o o s e v e l t 

B r i d g e , The r o u t e i s being planned and designed t o accommodate 

s i x f r e e - f l o w i n g l a n e s of t r a f f i c as i t approaches the V i r g i n i a -

D i s t r i c t of Columbia boundary. 

T h i s means t h a t the r o u t e w i l l s e r v e s i x f r e e - f l o w i n g 

l a n e s i n a d d i t i o n t o a l l highways which a l r e a d y e x i s t i n 

V i r g i n i a and w i l l have a p r a c t i c a l c a p a c i t y t o handle a t l e a s t 

4500 v e h i c l e s per hour i n one d i r e c t i o n . The proposed Theodore 

R o o s e v e l t B r i d g e and the approaches of which most of the f r e e ­

way h ere under d i s c u s s i o n i s a p a r t , must be planned and 

designed w i t h the same freewa y p r i n c i p l e s i f the system i s 

t o be i n b a l a n c e . One freeway l a n e can handle about 2-1/2 

t i m e s as much t r a f f i c a s one l a n e on a t y p i c a l c i t y s t r e e t . 

For t w e n t y - f i v e y e a r s t h e s t a t e highway departments 

have been c o l l e c t i n g d a t a w i t h r e f e r e n c e t o t r a f f i c movements. 
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A l l of us know that t r a f f i c volumes i n c r e a s e s u b s t a n t i a l l y 

on our s t r e e t s and highways as they approach the c e n t r a l 

business d i s t r i c t s i n Metropolitan a r e a s . Summarily speak­

ing, we have a need f o r more c a p a c i t y on our Inner Loop 

Freeway System than on the routes approaching that system. 

Thus f a r , the D i s t r i c t of Columbia and the surround­

ing a r e a s i n Maryland and V i r g i n i a have been able t o get 

away, to a c e r t a i n extent, with independent planning, design, 

c o n s t r u c t i o n and operation of t r a n s p o r t a t i o n f a c i l i t i e s . I t 

now seems qu i t e apparent that the c o n d i t i o n s which already 

e x i s t and the prospect of a 50 percent growth i n population 

and a 100 percent i n c r e a s e i n t r i p s w i t h i n the next twenty 

years portends that time i s r a p i d l y running out during 

which the metropolitan area must s e r i o u s l y plan and under­

take a more s u f f i c i e n t t r a n s p o r t a t i o n system. 

The Department of Highways and T r a f f i c does not 

propose or contend t h a t freeways and t y p i c a l c i t y a r t e r i a l s 

and s t r e e t s can meet a l l of the c i t y t r a n s p o r t a t i o n r e q u i r e ­

ments i n the f u t u r e . In f a c t , we hereby i n s e r t i n the record 

a sheet e n t i t l e d " B a s i c Freeway Plan", taken from Part I of 

Mass Tran s p o r t a t i o n Survey undertaken by the National C a p i t a l 

Region and approved on November 7, 1958, by the National 

C a p i t a l Planning Commission and the National C a p i t a l Regional 

Planning C o u n c i l . That sheet i n c l u d e s a map which shows the 

diagrammatical l o c a t i o n of the freeway and parkway needs as 

determined by the Mass T r a n s i t Survey. I t i n c l u d e s the 

proposed Inner Loop Freeway System, of which the s e c t i o n under 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n today i s a p a r t . 
INSERT A (The document r e f e r r e d to f o l l o w s : ) 
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MR. ROBERTSON: For those who r e c o g n i z e t h a t the 

m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a must do something about t r a n s p o r t a t i o n , 

but who have some r e s e r v a t i o n as t o t h e method which s h o u l d 

be used t o s e r v e t h i s need, a t t e n t i o n i s d i r e c t e d t o the 

summary s t a t e m e n t s i n t h e Mass T r a n s i t Study: 

"The movement of people i n m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a s 

r e q u i r e s both p r i v a t e automobiles and p u b l i c t r a n s i t . 

I n o r d e r t o e s t a b l i s h Washington's f u t u r e t r a n s i t 

r e q u i r e m e n t s , both methods of moving people were 

a n a l y z e d . 

" T h i s B a s i c Freeway P l a n shows the f r e e w a y s 

and parkways which, t o g e t h e r w i t h the proposed 

improved t r a n s i t system, w i l l be n e c e s s a r y f o r the 

f u t u r e t r a n s p o r t a t i o n network of the N a t i o n a l 

C a p i t a l Region." 

Washington, D. C. does not y e t have a f r e e w a y s 

system, or w i t h minor e x c e p t i o n s , any s u b s t a n t i a l l e n g t h of 

freeway mileage i n s e r v i c e . I t i s p o s s i b l e t o e s t i m a t e the 

d o l l a r v a l u e of r e a l e s t a t e and improvements t h e r e o n t h a t may 

e v e n t u a l l y be a f f e c t e d by t h e f r e e w a y system. Pending the 

a v a i l a b i l i t y of more e x p e r i e n c e , i t i s d i f f i c u l t t o support 

a c l a i m a s t o the u l t i m a t e e f f e c t of the f r e e w a y system on 

r e a l p r o p e r t y v a l u e s and c o n s e q u e n t l y , the t a x s t r u c t u r e i n 

the D i s t r i c t o f Columbia. 

Some c i t i e s and m e t r o p o l i t a n a r e a s have made more 

p r o g r e s s w i t h r e f e r e n c e t o t h e p l a n n i n g and c o n s t r u c t i o n of 

t h e i r f r e e w a y s and t h e e x p e r i e n c e i n c i t i e s such as Boston, 

C l e v e l a n d , and Kansas City may i n d i c a t e a t r e n d i n t h i s 
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regard. 

A l l of these c i t i e s and others have planned and 

have completed important segments of an inner b e l t freeway 

system. A l l of them already have experienced an i n c r e a s e i n 

the c o n s t r u c t i o n of new o f f i c e b u i l d i n g s and other s u b s t a n t i a l 

c a p i t a l investments. I n Boston, f o r example, the proposed 

C e n t r a l A r t e r y w i l l be completed i n about one year. The 

c o n s t r u c t i o n of the C e n t r a l A r t e r y destroyed about one m i l ­

l i o n f e e t of antiquated o f f i c e space, but i t i s expected 

that a l a r g e r amount of modern space w i l l be i n s t a l l e d . 

Three major commercial b u i l d i n g p r o j e c t s , as w e l l as a major 

b u i l d i n g by the T r a v e l e r s Insurance Company, are under con­

s t r u c t i o n near the C e n t r a l A r t e r y . These four p r o j e c t s 

represent about $100 m i l l i o n i n p r i v a t e c o n s t r u c t i o n , 

$80 m i l l i o n i n p u b l i c b u i l d i n g s . 

The above statements r e l a t e t o the broad o b j e c t i v e s 

of the Department of Highways and T r a f f i c i n c a r r y i n g out 

i t s r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n terms of s e r v i c e to the D i s t r i c t of 

Columbia. The statements are intended to provide a broad 

frame of r e f e r e n c e o u t l i n i n g the b a s i c i n g r e d i e n t s included 

i n the establishment of the Inner Loop Freeway plan and 

intended to support the proposals f o r proceeding to c a r r y 

i t out. 

I t i s the p o s i t i o n of the Department that the plan 

i s c o n s i s t e n t with the i n t e n t i o n of Congress by the enactment 

of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1956, t h a t the concept of an 

Inner Loop has been repeatedly reviewed s i n c e 1944, that the 
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N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P l a n n i n g Commission, the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l 

R e g i o n a l P l a n n i n g C o u n c i l , the f i n d i n g s of the Mass T r a n s i t 

S u r v e y and a mass of d a t a and s t a t i s t i c s s u p port the v a l i d i t y 

of t h e p r o p o s a l . 

The Department o f Highways and T r a f f i c r e q u e s t s t h a t 

the p l a n he approved i n p r i n c i p l e , s o t h a t d e t a i l s w i t h 

r e f e r e n c e t o the d e s i g n o f s p e c i f i c s t r u c t u r e s and roadways 

may be determined on the b a s i s of e n g i n e e r i n g r e q u i r e m e n t s 

which must be m u t u a l l y agreed upon by t h e Department of High­

ways and T r a f f i c and t h e Bureau of P u b l i c Roads. The Depart­

ment s i n c e r e l y r e g r e t s t h a t the c o n s t r u c t i o n of important 

p u b l i c works such a s t h i s freeway a f f e c t s t h e p r o p e r t y or our 

c i t i z e n s . The Department r e c o g n i z e s t h a t home owners and 

p r o p e r t y owners may be i n c l i n e d t o oppose such improvements 

because of the e f f e c t upon t h e i r p r i v a t e h o l d i n g s . 

E v e r y e f f o r t w i l l be made t o h o l d t h e t a k i n g of 

p r i v a t e p r o p e r t y t o a minimum a r e a c o n s i s t e n t w i t h an 

adequate freeway system. 

I n a d d i t i o n , e v e r y e f f o r t w i l l be made t o t r e a t 

our c i t i z e n s f a i r l y and e q u i t a b l y . Home owners t h a t might be 

a f f e c t e d by t h e p l a n w i l l be a f f o r d e d e v e r y r e a s o n a b l e op­

p o r t u n i t y t o have a s much time a s c i r c u m s t a n c e s permit t o 

r e e s t a b l i s h t h e i r homes i n o t h e r p l a c e s . I t i s e s t i m a t e d 

t h a t a l l of the major roadways i n t h e Potomac Freeway and 

West Leg Freeway w i l l s e r v e i n e c c e s s of 100,000 v e h i c l e s 
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per day i n 1980. I t i s our contention t h a t the a c t u a l 

design and c o n s t r u c t i o n of t h i s important f a c i l i t y should 

get underway. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Aitken. 

Any questions? 

1 think we have Mr, B r i n k l e y next. 

Mr. D. S. B r i n k l e y , C h i e f Planning Engineer, the 

o f f i c e of Planning and Programming of the Department of High­

ways and T r a f f i c . 

MR. BRINKLEY: Thank you, Mr. Pr e s i d e n t . 

STATEMENT OF D. S, BRINKLEY, CHIEF PLANNING 

ENGINEER, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING, 

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC. 

MR. BRINKLEY: I c a l l your a t t e n t i o n f i r s t t o the 

map on your l e f t . T h i s shows the i n t e r s t a t e system f o r the 

metropolitan area of Washington, and the sm a l l yellow t a r g e t 

i s the area which we are about t o d i s c u s s t h i s morning. 

T h i s i s the West Leg of the inner loop and the 

Potomac R i v e r freeway. These being the D i s t r i c t l i n e s , you 

see t h i s i s a very important segment of the i n t e r s t a t e high­

way system i n t h i s a rea. 

Moving t o your r i g h t i n order to show these routes 

up and i n a s i m i l a r manner t o the routes t h a t were shown on 

the s m a l l maps t h a t were d i s t r i b u t e d i n general throughout 

the area and published i n the paper, we have l a b e l e d these 
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r o u t e s a l s o A, B, and C — A, B, and C -- A i n d i c a t i n g t he 

i n i t i a l p r o p o s a l by the DeLeuw Gather Company i n 1955 show­

i n g the West Leg of the i n n e r loop s t a r t i n g g e n e r a l l y i n the 

v i c i n i t y of E S t r e e t and the approach system of the C o n s t i t u ­

t i o n Avenue b r i d g e proposed; moving up between 23rd and 24th 

S t r e e t , p a s s i n g under Washington C i r c l e , s t a y i n g on the e a s t 

side of New Hampshire Avenue and moving up on the e a s t e r l y 

s i d e of 2 1 s t S t r e e t , 

I n o r d e r t o o r i e n t you on t h i s map l e t me p o i n t 

out some of the c o n t r o l l i n g f e a t u r e s of the map. 

T h i s i s V i r g i n i a Avenue, t h i s a r e a i n here i s the 

approach s y s t e m t o the proposed C o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue or 

Theodore R o o s e v e l t B r i d g e , M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue i s a t the 

t o p of the map; New Hampshire Avenue h e r e , 26th S t r e e t , 

2 5 t h S t r e e t , 23rd S t r e e t r u n n i n g , of c o u r s e , d i r e c t l y through 

t h e c i r c l e , 

T h i s road network i n here i s common t o any of the 

p l a n s . 

To c o n t i n u e w i t h P l a n B t h i s was proposed by the 

C l a r k s o n E n g i n e e r i n g Company j u s t l a s t y e a r and shows the 

movement o f the west l e g of t h e i n n e r loop t o t h e westward, 

g e n e r a l l y west t o 25th S t r e e t , w i t h one roadway almost border­

i n g 2 5 t h S t r e e t on the w e s t e r l y s i d e and the o t h e r roadway 

west of w6th S t r e e t , There was a l a r g e a r e a i n between the 

s e p a r a t e d roadway t h a t we f e l t was o b j e c t i o n a b l e . 
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Now, to begin with there was a reason for moving 

from t h i s proposed alignment t o t h i s proposed by the Clarkson 

Engineering Company (indicating)„ 

B a s i c a l l y , the reason was that f o r over ten years 

the Department of Highways has had a plan f o r underpassing 

Washington C i r c l e . To put the west l e g of the inner loop 

i n t h i s l o c a t i o n a l s o underpassing Washington C i r c l e was not 

e n g i n e e r i n g l y acceptable. I t would have put four l e v e l s of 

s t r u c t u r e underground reaching a depth of almost 80 f e e t 

n e c e s s i t a t i n g ramps to the lower s t r u c t u r e of almost 2,0000 

f e e t i n length. I t i s c e r t a i n l y very expensive and not 

acceptable to the Department. 

To save space and so as not t o confuse the p i c t u r e 

before you we have not attempted on these two former routes 

to show the'complete interchange of roadways that are neces­

s a r y wherever the route may be placed. We have only shown 

that interchange of roadways to the approved plan, that 

approved by the Highway Department, Plan C. 

Now, as I say, the reason f o r moving from t h i s 

l i n e to t h i s l i n e was i n order to permit us to c o n s t r u c t 

the Washington C i r c l e underpass as we have long wanted to 

do and our o b j e c t i o n to the Clarkson Plan was the s e p a r a t i o n 

of the roadways. 

T h i s plan s h o r t l y a f t e r i t was conceived by the 

Clarkson f i r m was shown to the National C a p i t a l Planning 
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Commission and Mr, Bartholomew and o t h e r members of the 

Commission i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h i s l a n d between the two roadways, 

t h i s b e i n g the northbound and t h i s the southbound, would not 

be of much v a l u e once the roadways were b u i l t . So, we put 

our e f f o r t s from t h a t time t o the p r e s e n t t o s h i f t i n g t h a t 

roadway, condensing i t a l i t t l e b i t more, b r i n g i n g the road ­

ways t o g e t h e r , p r o v i d i n g s t i l l the same s e r v i c e and s t i l l 

t h e same s a f e t y f a c t o r s but g e t t i n g i t over i n t o a p o s i t i o n 

where i t would do l e s s damage, be l e s s o b j e c t i o n a b l e , 

low, I would l i k e a t t h i s time t o remove the 

o v e r l a y so t h a t you would get a c l e a r e r p i c t u r e of our 

P l a n C, 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN; Mr. B r i n k l e y , I wonder 

i f we s h o u l d make i t c l e a r t o a l l those p r e s e n t t h a t t h i s 

P l a n C, n e i t h e r of t h e s e p l a n s has been approved by t h e Board 

of Commissioners, T h a t i s , t h i s i s the h e a r i n g being conducted 

by t h e Board of Commissioners t o hear from a l l you f o l k s on 

your v i e w s on t h i s m a t t e r a s w e l l a s t h e Highway Department, 

MR. BRINKLEY: Thank you, Mr. P r e s i d e n t . 

Now, t h e a r e a under d i s c u s s i o n i n t h i s p u b l i c 

h e a r i n g t h i s morning begins a t G S t r e e t , goes t o Massachusetts 

Avenue, and a l o n g the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway t o W i s c o n s i n Avenue, 

T h i s much of the p l a n t h a t you see b e f o r e you has been approved 

by the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P l a n n i n g Commission. I t b e a r s the 

endorsement of the Highway Department, Department of Highways 
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and T r a f f i c , and i t i s recommended t o the Commissioners of 

the D i s t r i c t o f Columbia, 

I n t h i s p l a n we have shown i n diagrammatic form 

a l l of the v a r i o u s c o n n e c t i o n s t o t h e d i f f e r e n t s t a t e s , t h i s 

b e i n g E S t r e e t , t h i s i s K S t r e e t , c o n n e c t i o n s i n t o the 

W h i t e h u r s t Freeway, c o n n e c t i o n s i n t o 22nd and 23rd S t r e e t , 

and then moving up and c o n t i n u i n g n o r t h on M a s s a c h u s e t t s 

Avenue. 

I t i s our d e s i r e t h a t upon r e c e i v i n g t h e a p p r o v a l 

of the D i s t r i c t Commissioners we immediately r e t a i n a f i r m 

of c o n s u l t a n t s t o draw the c o n t r a c t p l a n s . 

Now, we had a n t i c i p a t e d doing t h i s i n s e v e r a l 

b i t e s , not a l l i n one s e t of p l a n s , but i n s e v e r a l . 

The f i r s t one would s t a r t a t G S t r e e t and be c a l l e d 

the Potomac R i v e r Freeway, s t a r t i n g a t G S t r e e t , moving c u t 

a l o n g the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway. T h i s would be an e i g h t - l a n e 

f a c i l i t y e x c e p t between t h e s e two p o i n t s and t h i s would be 

s i x i n here because we a r e dropping a l a n e here and adding 

a l a n e i n here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

The W h i t e h u r s t Freeway on t h i s map i s the n o r t h e r l y 

of the two orange l i n e s , t h a t i s the e x i s t i n g freeway; the 

c e n t e r s t r i p would be removed and i t would be used as a 

f o u r - l a n e highway. A companion s t r u c t u r e t o i t would be 

b u i l t on t h e r i v e r s i d e , on the south s i d e of the e x i s t i n g 

s t r u c t u r e , forming t h e i n t e r c h a n g e w i t h the west l e g of the 
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n o r t h and e a s t ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

How l e t me say something about c o s t s , something 

about the number of d w e l l i n g u n i t s t h a t might be a f f e c t e d 

by t h e s e t h r e e p l a n s , 

P l a n A or the DeLeuw Gather p l a n was the most 

e x p e n s i v e of the t h r e e i n both c o n s t r u c t i o n and r i g h t - o f - w a y 

and would c o s t a t today's market about $45,100,000 and i t 

would d i s p l a c e a p p r o x i m a t e l y 720 d w e l l i n g u n i t s . These a r e 

round f i g u r e s . 

P l a n B or the C l a r k s o n p l a n about $4,200,000 

c h e a p e r , $40,875,000, and i t would d i s p l a c e the l a r g e s t 

number of d w e l l i n g u n i t s , 990. 

And P l a n C, the Department o f Highways and T r a f f i c 

p l a n , the c h e a p e s t i n both r i g h t - o f - w a y and c o n s t r u c t i o n , 

a t o t a l c o s t o f $35,400,000, and would d i s p l a c e the f e w e s t 

p e r s o n s , 480 d w e l l i n g units,, 

T h i s , t h e r e f o r e , i s the p l a n t h a t we recommend t o 

the Board o f Commissioners f o r a c c e p t a n c e . 

B e f o r e c l o s i n g I would l i k e t o show you j u s t one 

p o r t i o n of t h i s r o u t e t h a t has been s t u d i e d f o r the purposes 

of p r o v i d i n g an a l t e r n a t e , an a c c e p t a b l e a l t e r n a t e t o t h i s 

Department,, I t was proposed t o us by c e r t a i n p r o p e r t y 

owners i n t h i s a r e a , n o r t h o f M S t r e e t and i n the v i c i n i t y 

of t he F r a n c i s School and on up t o M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue. 
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I t was proposed t h a t we s t u d y and p l a n f o r coming behind 

t h e s c h o o l i n the park a r e a and then i n t o the west l e g a t 

t h i s p o i n t ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . I would l i k e t o have Mr. Degest 

put the o v e r l a y on s o you can see e x a c t l y how t h a t f i t s i n t o 

t h i s p l a n . 

He had t o c a l l on t h e t a l l e s t man i n t h e Department 

f o r t h i s j o b . He i s the o n l y one t h a t c o u l d r e a c h t h i s . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN; While we a r e w a i t i n g 

I want t o t e l l you l a d i e s and gentlemen t h a t Commissioner 

K a r r i c k was u n a v o i d a b l y d e l a y e d out of town. I t h i n k he i s up 

around Boston. I t i s pr o b a b l y c o l d e r and b l o w i e r than i t i s 

down h e r e . He w i l l , a s I und e r s t a n d i t , r e a d the r e c o r d and 

lake p a r t i n the a c t i o n s t a k e n on t h e s e proposals.. 

MR. BRINKLEY: As you see, the a l t e r n a t i v e p l a n 

would s t a r t i n the v i c i n i t y of P e n n s y l v a n i a Avenue and M 

S t r e e t , and i n s t e a d of coming i n f r o n t of the F r a n c i s School 

g e n e r a l l y a c r o s s the i n t e r s e c t i o n of 24 t h and N S t r e e t s , 

Northwest, t h i s p l a n goes i n t o t h e park a r e a behind the s c h o o l 

and then comes back i n t o t he o r i g i n a l alignment i n t h i s 

l o c a t i o n ( i n d i c a t i n g ) , The same c o n n e c t i o n s a r e p r o v i d e d t o 

t h e s t r e e t system. 

T h i s i s e n t i r e l y a c c e p t a b l e t o the Department of 

Highways. I t w i l l work, and a s a m a t t e r of f a c t , i t i s s l i g h t l y 

c heaper than our p l a n . We would sa v e i n the neighborhood of 

$900,000 by b u i l d i n g i t i n t h i s f a s h i o n , and a l s o of i n t e r e s t 
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t h e r e a r e fewer d w e l l i n g u n i t s a f f e c t e d by t h i s p l a n . 

T h i s , t h e n , numbers i n s t e a d of 480 t h a t our p l a n c a l l e d f o r 

h e re o n l y 350 d w e l l i n g u n i t s t o be d i s t u r b e d by the e n t i r e 

r o u t e from G S t r e e t t o M a s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue. 

J u s t one word about Washington C i r c l e , the underpass 

and the c o s t . We have had the p l a n s on t h e board f o r t h i s 

grade s e p a r a t i o n f o r t e n y e a r s . I t was d e l a y e d f o r a number 

of r e a s o n s , one of them was c o n s t r u c t i o n o f the E a s t C a p i t o l 

S t r e e t B r i d g e which was v e r y n e c e s s a r y a t the time but we a r e 

r e a dy t o s t a r t now and the c o s t of t h e grade s e p a r a t i o n proper 

from 2 1 s t S t r e e t t o 25th S t r e e t , t h a t would i n c l u d e a l l of 

t h e ramp approaches, j u s t s l i g h t l y over $5,000,000, 

Now the p u b l i c h e a r i n g announced t h a t the r e s t of 

K S t r e e t wouldn't be d i s c u s s e d t h i s morning and i n c l u d e d i n 

t h i s h e a r i n g and t h a t c a l l s f o r a w i dening of the e x i s t i n g 

K S t r e e t from where the ramps s t o p here a t 2 1 s t a l l the way 

t o C o n n e c t i c u t Avenue and t h i s s t r e e t w i l l be improved i n 

t h e same f a s h i o n t h a t the r e s t of K S t r e e t i s improved, 

namely, a 50 f o o t through-roadway and two s e r v i c e roadways, 

one on each s i d e of the s t r e e t , the same type of con­

s t r u c t i o n , 

J u s t one f i n a l word and t h a t has t o do w i t h when we 

would l i k e t o get s t a r t e d , when we can g e t s t a r t e d p r o v i d i n g 

we have the a p p r o v a l of the Commissioners t o do s o . 

The f i r s t s e c t i o n , a s I d e s c r i b e d t o you, b e g i n n i n g 
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G S t r e e t and moving on over to Wisconsin Avenue, i n c l u d i n g 

the interchange with K S t r e e t , we would s t a a r t i n f i s c a l 

1960 and complete i n f i s c a l 1963. 

The second s e c t i o n , the west l e g beginning a t K 

S t r e e t and running through to these connections with 22nd 

or 23rd S t r e e t , only to t h i s point ( i n d i c a t i n g ) we would 

l i k e to s t a r t i n f i s c a l 1964 and would take us two years to 

complete. 

The s e c t i o n beyond t h i s connection with the s t r e e t 

system on to Massachusetts Avenue would be somewhere beyond 

1966, the exact date has not been determined. 

With that explanation, gentlemen, I have f i n i s h e d . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Are there any questions, 

gentlemen? 

GENERAL WELLING: May I ask j u s t one question? 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: S i r , I am a f r a i d i f we 

get i n t o questions from the people present here we w i l l 

never get ahead. You see, we have I should say over a 

hundred people here. When you come up, however, I think you 

can ask any p e r t i n e n t questions. 

Our f i r s t scheduled witness i s Mr. Robert A. Kennedy 

who i s Chairman of the C i t y Planning Committee of the Federa­

t i o n of C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n s . 

May I say as we move on to t h i s testimony that 

there are many people w a i t i n g to t e s t i f y and I ask that everyone 
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be as b r i e f as p o s s i b l e and as the hearing progresses that 

there be as l i t t l e d u p l i c a t i o n of previous testimony as 

p o s s i b l e . 

W i l l you proceed, s i r ? 

STATEMENT OF ROBERT A, KENNEDY, CHAIRMAN, 

CITY PLANNING COMMITTEE OF THE FEDERATION OF 

CITIZENS ASSOCIATIONS, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA. 

MR. KENNEDY: Mr. Presi d e n t , General Welling, 

I am Robert A, Kennedy, Chairman, C i t y Planning Committee 

of the Federation of C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n s of the D i s t r i c t 

of Columbia, 

The C i t y Planning Committee has considered the 

va r i o u s f a c t o r s involved i n the three a l t e r n a t i v e routes out 

l i n e d i n the map attached to the December 1, 1958 i s s u e of 

the D i s t r i c t of Columbia R e g i s t e r , 

Cost estimates on route A were not a v a i l a b l e to 

our committee. T h i s presented somewhat of a handicap i n 

making t o t a l c o s t comparisons of the three routes, I t i s 

our general impression, however, that o v e r a l l c o s t s for 

route A would exceed that o f e i t h e r B or C, Therefore, 

route A should not be adopted. Mr. B r i n k l e y has already 

covered the c o s t to back up our impression there, 

In making a comparative a n a l y s i s of routes B and C 

the C i t y Planning Committee proceeded on information from 

a u t h o r i t a t i v e sources that both of these routes would serve 
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e s s e n t i a l l y the same volume of traffic„ With t h i s assumption 

to go on, our committee a s c e r t a i n e d the estimates for c o s t 

of c o n s t r u c t i o n and c o s t of r i g h t of way f o r each of the 

two routes B and C. These estimates i n d i c a t e that route C 

would c o s t approximately $5,000,000 l e s s than route B, and 

would provide e s s e n t i a l l y the same degree of t r a f f i c 

e f f i c i e n c y . By t h a t I mean t r a f f i c volume. Moreover, our 

committee has been r e l i a b l y informed that a s m a l l e r tax 

l o s s would r e s u l t i f the proposed route C i s adopted. 

In view of these c o n s i d e r a t i o n s and the f a c t that 

the National C a p i t a l Planning Commission has already approved 

route C, i t i s the opinion of the C i t y Planning Committee 

that route C be approved without delay and that c o n s t r u c t i o n 

be s t a r t e d as soon as p r a c t i c a b l e . 

Our committee endorses the plans made pub l i c to 

date, f o r the Potomac River Freeway and a l s o the plans f o r 

the Washington C i r c l e Grade Separation and K S t r e e t . 

I would l i k e to take t h i s opportunity to express 

a p p r e c i a t i o n to the Planning Engineer f o r c o u r t e s i e s extended 

and t o you, Honorable Commissioners, f o r the time to present 

the views and recommendations of our committee. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Kennedy, 

Mr. Roots? 

Mr. Nelson C. Roots, r e p r e s e n t i n g the Federation 

of C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n s . 
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STATEMENT OF NELSON C. ROOTS, ON BEHALF OF 

THE FEDERATION OF C I V I C ASSOCIATIONS. 

MR. ROOTS: Mr. Commissioners? One of the mono­

graphs prepared by t h e N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P a r k and P l a n n i n g 

Commission i n 1950 a s p a r t o f i t s "Comprehensive P l a n f o r 

the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l and I t s E n v i r o n s " was e n t i t l e d "Moving 

People and Goods". T h i s monograph was concerned p r i m a r i l y 

w i t h a proposed t h o r o u g h f a r e p l a n f o r t h i s a r e a . I t i s t h e r e ­

f o r e proper f o r the F e d e r a t i o n of C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n s t o 

a p p r o p r i a t e a p o r t i o n o f the t i t l e o f t h i s monograph f o r 

use a t t h i s h e a r i n g on f a c i l i t i e s d esigned t o e f f e c t u a t e 

the Thoroughfare P l a n . 

The a s p e c t of t h e i n s t a n t proposed highway improve­

ments t h a t we a r e most concerned w i t h i s the f a c t t h a t a l l 

t h r e e p r o j e c t s w i l l be "moving people". We a r e most concerned 

t h a t i n each c a s e many f a m i l i e s w i l l be uprooted; w i l l be 

f o r c e d t o l e a v e t h e i r p r e s e n t p l a c e of abode and e n t e r the 

h o u s i n g market i n s e a r c h f o r o t h e r l i v i n g q u a r t e r s . The 

F e d e r a t i o n , t h e r e f o r e , r e s p e c t f u l l y p r e s e n t s the f o l l o w i n g 

p o i n t s t o the Commissioners f o r c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

We f e e l t h a t one of t h e most important c o n s i d e r a ­

t i o n s i n d e t e r m i n i n g the r o u t e o f t h e west l e g of the i n n e r 

loop and the f e a s i b i l i t y of the Potomac R i v e r and Washington 

C i r c l e p r o j e c t s must be the"human element". I n c o n s i d e r i n g 

each of t h e s e p r o p o s a l s answers t o each of t h e f o l l o w i n g 
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q u e s t i o n s must be paramount i n the Commissioners' d e l i b e r a ­

t i o n s : ( 1 ) how many f a m i l i e s w i l l be d i s p l a c e d by t h e 

p r o p o s a l ? ( 2 ) I s an adequate s u p p l y of decent, s a f e , and 

s a n i t a r y h o u s i n g a v a i l a b l e t o t h e s e f a m i l i e s w i t h i n t h e i r 

f i n a n c i a l means? ( 3 ) How can t h e i r r e l o c a t i o n t o new 

q u a r t e r s be f a c i l i t a t e d w i t h the l e a s t f i n a n c i a l l o s s and 

p e r s o n a l d i s c o m f o r t t o the d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s ? 

The F e d e r a t i o n f e e l s t h a t i t i s incumbent upon the 

Commissioners of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia t o be e v e r m i n d f u l 

of the e f f e c t t h e s e p r o p o s a l s w i l l have upon r e s i d e n t s who 

l i v e i n t h e path of t h e s e improvements„ We f e e l t h a t t h e s e 

g r e a t r i b b o n s of s t e e l and c o n c r e t e a r e important a s s e t s t o 

our c i t y —• t h a t t h e y a r e v i t a l l y needed — but a t the same 

time we f e e l t h a t our "human a s s e t s " a r e important a l s o . 

Concern f o r the human a s s e t s s h o u l d t a k e more than 

the u s u a l forms of p u b l i c h e a r i n g s , paying f a i r v a l u e f o r 

p r o p e r t y condemned, and g i v i n g adequate time t o a c q u i r e new 

q u a r t e r s b e f o r e v a c a t i o n i s r e q u i r e d . The F e d e r a t i o n i s 

c o n v i n c e d t h a t the D i s t r i c t of Columbia Government has an 

o b l i g a t i o n t o g u a r a n t e e t o each person f o r c e d t o move decent, 

s a f e , and s a n i t a r y h ousing t h a t he can a f f o r d , whether on a 

r e n t a l or purchase b a s i s . A l l the a s p e c t s o f t h i s f o r c e d 

move must be t h e s o l e problem of the people d i r e c t l y a f f e c t e d 

or of a l l t h e people, t h e D i s t r i c t o f Columbia Government, 

The F e d e r a t i o n of C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n s which r e p r e s e n t s a l a r g e 



34ht 

36 
segment of the c i t i z e n s of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia f e e l s 

t h a t H i s must be the c o n c e r n o f a l l the people. 

We cannot adopt a " l e t them e a t c a k e " a t t i t u d e . 

These highway p l a n s w i l l s e r v e a l l the people — a l l the 

people must a s s i s t t hose persons who must move. The need f o r 

a c e n t r a l r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e i s apparent. The p r e s e n t 

r e f e r r a l s y s t e m i s t o t a l l y i n a d e q u a t e . Other o r g a n i z a t i o n s 

today w i l l no doubt t e s t i f y f u r t h e r as t o the v i t a l need f o r 

such s e r v i c e . 

But we i n the F e d e r a t i o n f e e l t h a t t h i s s e r v i c e 

would p r o v i d e o n l y p a r t of the s o l u t i o n t o the problems 

f a c e d by d i s p l a c e d p ersons. The D i s t r i c t of Columbia i s j u s t 

on the t h r e s h h o l d of many new programs and developments 

w h i c h a r e v i t a l l y needed and which w i l l d i s p l a c e many, many 

more f a m i l i e s t h a t n those d i s p l a c e d i n the Southwest. 

J u s t t o name a few: a g r e a t l y expanded highway 

program, an a c t i v e urban r e n e w a l program i n c l u d i n g an 

expanded code enforcement program; i n c r e a s e d c o n s t r u c t i o n 

f o r s c h o o l s r e c r e a t i o n , l i b r a r i e s and o t h e r p u b l i c f a c i l i t i e s , 

and a r e v i f a l i z a t i o n of t h e downtown a r e a . 

The F e d e r a t i o n s u p p o r t s most of t h e s e programs. They 

a r e needed. But we a r e m i n d f u l t h a t each such program tends 

t o reduce t h e number of housing u n i t s i n the D i s t r i c t o f 

Columbia. P u b l i c h ousing i s not the answer because t h e r e 

i s a b a c k l o g of a p p l i c a n t s f o r such u n i t s and many persons 
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d i s p l a c e d w i l l not be e l i g i b l e f o r pu b l i c housing. Some 

f a m i l i e s w i l l be able to a v a i l themselves of the new u n i t s 

i n the suburbs, but many persons d i s p l a c e d are not welcome i n 

the suburbs and they must crowd into the remaining dwindling 

housing supply which remains w i t h i n the D i s t r i c t . 

We f e e l t h a t the Commissioners must embark on a 

new, dynamic, and c h a l l e n g i n g program designed t o add 

thousands of r e n t a l and purchase housing u n i t s to the housing 

supply w i t h i n the D i s t r i c t of Columbia to repl a c e those 

removed by these many programs and plans. 

What i s needed i s the development of a new concept 

i n housing supply — a program developed i n concert with 

government, the f i n a n c i n g agents, and developers to provide 

thousands of medium income housing w i t h i n the c i t y l i m i t s . 

Such a program i s a b s o l u t e l y necessary i f the great majority 

of the population of the D i s t r i c t i s not reduced l a r g e l y to 

smal l income producers and pu b l i c a s s i s t a n c e u s e r s . U n t i l 

such a new program i s developed the Commissioners should 

c u r t a i l a l l a c t i v i t i e s which w i l l r e s u l t i n the depletion of 

the housing supply without a companion program of increased 

housing supply. 

We know that such a program w i l l challenge the 

th i n k i n g and daring of a l l the c i t i z e n s of the D i s t r i c t of 

Columbia, but we f e e l t h a t i t i s time t h i s vexing problem i s 

faced s q u a r e l y and f o r t h r i g h t . We pledge our complete support 
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i n the development o f the program. 

Thank you, 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Roots. 

A d m i r a l C o l e l o u g h , o f George Washington U n i v e r s i t y , 

STATEMENT OF ADMIRAL 0, S, COLCLOUGH, 

GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY. 

ADMIRAL COLCLOUGH: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , G e n e r a l W e l l i n g : 

I want f i r s t b r i e f l y t o comment upon the U n i v e r s i t y ' s i n t e r e s t 

i n t h i s i m p o r t a n t h e a r i n g . The George Washington U n i v e r s i t y 

has been d e v e l o p i n g i t s f a c i l i t i e s f o r h i g h e r e d u c a t i o n i n 

th e a r e a bounded by 19th and 24th S t r e e t s and P e n n s y l v a n i a 

Avenue and F S t r e e t s s i n c e i t s f i r s t purchase i n t h a t a r e a 

i n 1912. 

I n 1944 a long-range p l a n f o r t h e development of 

the U n i v e r s i t y ' s f a c i l i t i e s i n t h e s e a r e a s was put t o g e t h e r 

by F r e d e r i c k Law O l m s t r e e t , G e n e r a l U l y s s e s S. G r a n t , I I I , 

and Dr. Ma r v i n , the p r e s i d e n t o f the u n i v e r s i t y . I t was 

approved by t h e N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P l a n n i n g Committee and 

u n i f o r m l y by the Commissioners, and under t h a t p l a n over 

the y e a r s some 22 a c r e s of l a n d has been purchased by the 

U n i v e r s i t y which now has an in v e s t m e n t of l a n d and f a c i l i t i e s 

i n the a r e a of upwards of $50,000,000, 

More s p e c i f i c a l l y w i t h r e s p e c t t o the h e a r i n g as 

t o t h e l o c a t i o n o f the w e s t e r n l e g of the i n n e r loop freeway 

i s t h a t o f the m e d i c a l c e n t e r f a c i l i t i e s of the George 
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Washington U n i v e r s i t y which occupy t h e w e s t e r n p o r t i o n of 

the a r e a under c o n s i d e r a t i o n and i n which we have an 

i n v e s t m e n t of some $10,000,000, 

I n 1942 thepurchase of l a n d i n Squares 40, 4 1 , and 

42 which axe between 23rd and 2 4 t h S t r e e t s , Northwest, began. 

At t h a t t i m e , i n t h e F o r t i e s , the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P l a n n i n g 

Commission approved and the U n i v e r s i t y j o i n e d w i t h the Fed­

e r a l Works Agency and the D i s t r i c t o f Columbia He l a t h Depart­

ment i n e n t e r i n g i n t o an agreement w i t h the U n i t e d S t a t e s 

Government whereby our h o s p i t a l a t Washington C i r c l e was 

b u i l t a s the f i r s t u n i t of t h e M e d i c a l C e n t e r . I n c l u d e d i n 

t h i s M e d i c a l C e n t e r of the f u t u r e i s t h e e x p a n s i o n of out­

p a t i e n t c l i n i c f a c i l i t i e s , emergency f a c i l i t i e s which I 

might add have become i n c r e a s i n g l y important w i t h the move­

ment of Emergency H o s p i t a l and t h e E p i s c o p a l Eye, E a r , Nose, 

and T h r o a t s e r v i c e s t o the S o l d i e r s Home a r e a . We a r e the 

one downtown h o s p i t a l f u r n i s h i n g emergency s e r v i c e s today. 

We have a c q u i r e d a n u r s e s ' home a t 23rd and H 

S t r e e t , We p l a n t o b u i l d a m e d i c a l s c h o o l i n the a r e a , a 

d o c t o r s ' o f f i c e b u i l d i n g , m e d i c a l r e s e a r c h b u i l d i n g , and 

so f o r t h . 

A l l t h i s makes the l o c a t i o n of t h i s w e s t e r n l e g 

of the i n t e r loop f r e e w a y a m a t t e r of v i t a l importance t o the 

development o f the e d u c a t i o n a l f a c i l i t i e s o f f e r e d the g r e a t e r 

Washington a r e a by the George Washington U n i v e r s i t y and 
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a g a i n s t that backgrounf of i n t e r e s t I appear t h i s morning 

to say that the U n i v e r s i t y supports the route recommended 

by the Highway Department, I t supports i t on two grounds: 

f i r s t of a l l , and one which I suppose i s obvious, that the 

l o c a t i o n recommended permits the U n i v e r s i t y to proceed with 

i t s long p r o j e c t e d land use plans to f u r n i s h educational 

f a c i l i t i e s and a h o s p i t a l center; and secondly, the U n i v e r s i t y 

b e l i e v e s based on i t s awareness of the s t u d i e s made which 

havve been r e f e r r e d to by Mr, B r i n k l e y , and of some of i t s 

own s t u d i e s , that the proposed l o c a t i o n , Route C, i s not 

only f e a s i b l e but that i t i s more i n accord with sound 

c i t y and mass t r a f f i c planning p r i n c i p l e s than the other 

two. 

The U n i v e r s i t y a p p r e c i a t e s the opportunity to 

appear t h i s morning and express i t s view on t h i s v i t a l 

matter. 

Thank you, s i r , 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Admiral, 

The Reverend T, Byron C o l l i n s , S„J, 

I s there a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e here at t h i s time for 

Georgetown U n i v e r s i t y ? 

(No response,) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: The Foggy Bottom Restora­

t i o n A s s o c i a t i o n w i l l be represented by the Honorable Renah 

Camalier, and with him the president of the A s s o c i a t i o n , 



Herbert Socks. 

STATEMENT OF HONORABLE RENAH CAMALIER, 

ON BEHALF OF THE FOGGY BOTTOM RESTORATION 

ASSOCIATION, ACCOMPANIED BY HERBERT SOCKS, 

PRESIDENT OF THE ASSOCIATION. 

MR. CAMALIER: Mr. Chairman: Thank you f o r t h i s 

opportunity t o express the view of the many f i n e and wonderful 

people l i v i n g i n the c i t y ' s Foggy Bottom area. 

By your commendable a c t i o n today, they are i n 

p o s i t i o n t o comment on two of the three suggested routes 

f o r the west l e g approach t o the Theodore Roosevelt Bridge —» 

namely 23rd and 26th S t r e e t s . The A s s o c i a t i o n endorses the 

former and opposes the l a t t e r . 

The Foggy Bottom Re s t o r a t i o n A s s o c i a t i o n , on whose 

behalf I speak, r e p r e s e n t s the area bounded by Pennsylvania 

and V i r g i n i a Avenues, 23rd S t r e e t and the Potomac R i v e r . 

The Foggy Bottom Re s t o r a t i o n A s s o c i a t i o n wishes, 

at t h i s i n i t i a l moment, to p u b l i c l y commend the Highway 

Department of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia f o r i t s splendid 

cooperation and sympathetic e f f o r t s on behalf of i t s people — 

and through t h e i r f o r e s i g h t and understanding i n working 

out the 26th S t r e e t route our r e s i d e n t s would have been able 

t o provide s u f f i c i e n t land a r e a s i n which t o r e l o c a t e , i n 

t h e i r own l o c a l i t y , those of our members who w i l l be d i s ­

placed by the s a i d 26th S t r e e t route. We were prepared t o 
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c o operate i n t h i s e f f o r t by t h e Highway Department t o meet 

our s i t u a t i o n , and planned our s t e p s a c c o r d i n g l y . 

S u b s e q u e n t l y and suddenly, however, we were amazed 

t o l e a r n t h a t c e r t a i n z o n i n g d e c i s i o n s had been reached t o 

permit the use of those a r e a s , n e c e s s a r y f o r such r e s e t t l e m e n t 

and r e l o c a t i o n of our r e s i d e n t s , whereby h i g h d e n s i t y a p a r t ­

ments were t o be e r e c t e d i n neighborhoods i n Foggy Bottom 

not h e r e t o f o r e p e r m i t t e d . 

These d e c i s i o n s n a t u r a l l y threw us i n t o c o n f u s i o n , 

r e s u l t i n g i n a c t i o n by our A s s o c i a t i o n t o urge upon the 

o f f i c i a l s the i n j u s t i c e o f s a i d d e c i s i o n s , and a s k i n g t h a t 

s u c h a c t i o n s be r e v e r s e d , i n o r d e r t o r e e s t a b l i s h the a r e a s 

needed f o r r e l o c a t i o n purposes„ Such r e q u e s t t o r e v e r s e , 

i f you s h o u l d approve, w i l l enable the h e r e t o f o r e a c c e p t a t i o n 

i n p r i n c i p l e of the 2 6 t h S t r e e t r o u t e t o be r e - r e f e r r e d t o 

t h e A s s o c i a t i o n f o r f u r t h e r c o n s i d e r a t i o n , 

however, s u c h r e q u e s t , i f d e n i e d , f o r c e s r e c o n s i d e r a ­

t i o n o f o t h e r r o u t e s t h a n t h e 2 6 t h S t r e e t r o u t e . 

The Highway o f f i c i a l s a p p a r e n t l y a r e not a b l e t o 

push t h e l i n e west of 27th S t r e e t , hence, t h i s A s s o c i a t i o n 

must a s k your c o n s i d e r a t i o n of the suggested 23rd S t r e e t 

r o u t e a s being the more l o g i c a l o f t h e two under d i s c u s s i o n 

i n view of a l l c i r c u m s t a n c e s . 

Among those f a c t o r s which p l a y a prominent r o l e i n 

the r e s o l u t i o n t o endorse the 23rd S t r e e t r o u t e a r e the 
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r e c e n t z o n i n g d e c i s i o n s r e f e r r e d t o . which have negated 

the planned e f f o r t s o f the A s s o c i a t i o n t o r e l o c a t e the 

d i s p l a c e d p r o p e r t y owners, i n the Foggy Bottom a r e a , i n the 

e v e n t the 2 6 t h S t r e e t r o u t e was f i n a l i z e d . The z o n i n g 

d e c i s i o n s took the l a n d away and t h e s e , w i t h o t h e r r e a s o n s 

h e r e i n s t a t e d , p l a c e t h i s A s s o c i a t i o n of n e c e s s i t y s q u a r e l y 

behind t h e 23rd S t r e e t r o u t e . A few f a c t s . 

I n terms of c o s t t o t h e community, the 2 3 r d S t r e e t 

r o u t e would be f a r l e s s c o s t l y , the a r e a which t h i s r o u t e 

would t r a v e r s e i s a l r e a d y i n a b l i g h t e d c o n d i t i o n , and 

between V i r g i n i a AVenue and K S t r e e t t h e r e i s a 2-1/2 b l o c k 

a r e a where t h e r e i s not a s i n g l e improved b u i l d i n g . 

I n t h e comparable a r e a a l o n g the proposed 2 6 t h 

S t r e e t r o u t e t h e r e a r e numerous r e s t o r e d and newly b u i l t 

homes v a r y i n g i n p r i c e from $25,000 t o $45,000. I n a d d i t i o n , 

t h e r e i s p r e s e n t l y i n t h e path of t h i s r o u t e a m u l t i - s t o r y 

apartment house under c o n s t r u c t i o n and a l s o i n the path of 

t h i s r o u t e a r e s e v e r a l f i n e , o l d , c o l o n i a l landmarks. 

I n terms o f c o n s t r u c t i o n expense the 23rd S t r e e t 

r o u t e i s f a r s h o r t e r t h a n the c i r c u i t o u s r o u t e proposed f o r 

t h e 2 6 t h S t r e e t . The 2 3 r d S t r e e t r o u t e would a l s o e l i m i n a t e 

the c o s t l y t u n n e l proposed under V i r g i n i a Avenue a t 25th and 

2 6 t h S t r e e t s . And i t would f o l l o w almost a s t r a i g h t l i n e 

from the b r i d g e approaches a t C o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue t o t h e 

n o r t h e r n s e c t i o n of the i n n e r loop. 
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Other f a c t o r s o f immediate c o n s i d e r a t i o n a r e 

the e f f e c t t he 2 6 t h S t r e e t r o u t e p r o p o s a l would have on the 

c u l t u r a l c e n t e r and the newly c o n s t r u c t e d P e o p l e s L i f e 

I n s u r a n c e B u i l d i n g , and from a p u r e l y a e s t h e t i c p o i n t o f 

view. The e f f e c t of the p l a n s f o r t h e development of the 

Potomac P l a z a a r e a s h o u l d a l s o be c a r e f u l l y weighed. 

Needless t o s a y , t he e x t e n s i v e roadway c o n s t r u c t i o n 

i n t he immediate v i c i n i t y of t h e Potomac P l a z a would i n h i b i t 

and d e l a y t h i s development f o r many y e a r s t o come. The l o s s 

of revenue t o the D i s t r i c t of Columbia by i t s u t i l i z a t i o n 

o f high-income producing p r o p e r t y f o r the 26t h S t r e e t 

l e g c e r t a i n l y cannot be ov e r l o o k e d . However, t h e r e a r e 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n s o t h e r t h a n those of p u r e l y a e s t h e t i c and 

economic v a l u e s which must be weighed. 

We f u l l y r e a l i z e t h a t we cannot d e l a y what i s 

commonly c a l l e d p r o g r e s s i n t h i s m i d - t w e n t i e t h c e n t u r y 

p e r i o d . But i s i t c o n s i s t e n t , we a s k , w i t h our D i s t r i c t of 

Columbia p r i n c i p l e s t o r u t h l e s s l y d i s r u p t a t i g h t l y k n i t 

community t h a t i s p r e s e n t l y undergoing a r e n o v a t i o n o f con­

s i d e r a b l e p r o p o r t i o n s from a decayed and u n s i g h t l y slum i n t o 

one o f the D i s t r i c t ' s f i n e s t r e s i d e n t i a l s e c t i o n s ? People 

of Foggy Bottom do not t h i n k so. 

At the p r e s e n t time i n t h i s s m a l l a r e a a p p r o x i m a t e l y 

500 homes have been newly b u i l t or r e s t o r e d a t a c o s t of over 

$8,000,000, P r o p e r t y improvements and new c o n s t r u c t i o n 
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have r e s u l t e d i n an i n c r e a s e of revenue e s t i m a t e d a t ap­

p r o x i m a t e l y t e n t i m e s t h a t of p r e v i o u s t a x revenues which 

t h e r e c o r d s w i l l d i s c l o s e . 

D u r i n g the l a s t t h r e e t o f o u r y e a r s Foggy Bottom 

has e x p e r i e n c e d a r e n a i s s a n c e u n p a r a l l e d i n any o t h e r a r e a 

of the c i t y . The r e s i d e n t s of Foggy Bottom accomplished 

t h i s through p r i v a t e i n i t i a t i v e and the use of p r i v a t e 

c a p i t a l . The Foggy Bottom a r e a s t a n d s a s a symbol of growth 

and t h e r e v e r s a l of t h e movement towards s u b u r b i a , 

Not t o be o v e r l o o k e d i s the worthy s e t t i n g t h a t 

t h i s neighborhood p r o v i d e s f o r t h e new S t a t e Department 

b u i l d i n g and o t h e r government s t r u c t u r e s . N a t i o n a l magazines 

and p e r i o d i c a l s , among them F o r t u n e , Time, L i f e ^ the Wash­

i n g t o n S t a r , have c i t e d t h i s achievement as an example of 

what can be done by p r i v a t e e n t e r p r i s e t o r e v i t a l i z e b l i g h t e d 

a r e a s of an i n n e r c i t y and a t t h e same time stem the move­

ment t o the suburbs. 

The need f o r a good, i n town, a d u l t , h i g h income 

r e s i d e n t i a l neighborhood a s o u t l i n e d i n a r e c e n t i s s u e of 

Fortune Magazine, has been e s t a b l i s h e d here i n Foggy Bottom. 

The r e d u c t i o n i n c r i m e , p o l i c e a c t i v i t i e s , i n h e a l t h and 

s a n i t a t i o n enforcement i n t h i s s e c t i o n of the c i t y h a s , of 

c o u r s e , g r e a t l y b e n e f i t t e d t h e economy of the D i s t r i c t and 

the Foggy Bottom p r o p e r t y v a l u e s as a r e s u l t w i t h i n the 

p a s t f i v e y e a r s have i n c r e a s e d from 2 t o 2-1/2 a square 
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f o o t t o an average of about $35 t o $40 per square f o o t f o r 

r e s t o r e d p r o p e r t y . 

And t o d e s t r o y a community t h a t has been l i t e r a l l y 

r a i s e d from the slums f o r a c o m p l i c a t e d s y s t e m o f roadways 

when t h i s srme network of roadways might e a s i l y and l o g i c a l l y 

be p l a c e d it an undeveloped and b l i g h t e d a r e a i s n e i t h e r 

d e m o c r a t i c nor e c o n o m i c a l l y w i s e . And we urge the Commissioners 

t o use c a u t i o n i n t h e s e l e c t i o n o f t h e i r l o c a t i o n s . 

F i n a l l y , , t he Foggy Bottom R e s t o r a t i o n A s s o c i a t i o n 

r e q u e s t s t h a t a d e c i s i o n on the l o c a l e of the roads be made 

as q u i c k l y a s p o s s i b l e , t h a t t h e A s s o c i a t i o n w i s h e s t o a d v i s e 

i t s members a s t o what f u t u r e c o u r s e the y might be enabled t o 

pursue. Home owners and r e s i d e n t s of t h i s a r e a f i n d them­

s e l v e s i n t h i s awkward p o s i t i o n , namely unable t o s e l l t h e i r 

homes w i t h any r e p r e s e n t a t i o n of permanence and i n the e q u a l l y 

u n t e n a b l e p o s i t i o n of being unable t o f i n a n c e the r e s t o r a t i o n 

of t h e i r homes a l l due t o p r e v a i l i n g u n c e r t a i n t i e s . 

An e q u a l l y d i s c o m f o r t i n g s i t u a t i o n i s t h e i n a c t i o n 

w i t h r e s p e c t t o the condemnation of s u b s t a n d a r d houses i n 

t h e a r e a which c o n s t i t u t e a h e a l t h a s w e l l a s a s o c i a l menace 

t o the community a t l a r g e , and we urge immediate a c t i o n i n 

t h i s r e g a r d . 

Thank you, 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, s i r . 

The S u p e r i n t e n d e n t o f S c h o o l s , Dr. C a r l F. Hansen. 



STATEMENT OF DR. CARL F. HANSEN, 

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS, DISTRICT 

OF COLUMBIA. 

MR. HANSEN: I have c o p i e s o f the r e p o r t which I 

would l i k e t o p r e s e n t t o you, Mr. Commissioner. 

May I s a y a t the o u t s e t t h a t we a p p r e c i a t e the 

o p p o r t u n i t y of b e i n g heard on t h i s i s s u e . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Having r e a d the news­

paper I t h i n k I know what you a r e going t o t a l k about. 

Are you aware o f t h i s what I w i l l c a l l C - l s u g g e s t i o n , 

t h a t i s , the loop be behind the s c h o o l ? 

MR. HANSEN: I have some i n f o r m a t i o n on t h a t p l a n . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I don't know whether i t 

c u t s out — does t h a t c u t out any r e c r e a t i o n a l space through 

the s c h o o l ? 

MR. ROBERTSON: Y e s , i t does, but we r e p l a c e i t . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Some p l a c e i n the v i c i n i t y 

of the s c h o o l ? 

MR. ROBERTSON: Some p l a c e i n the D i s t r i c t of 

Columbia. 

MR. HANSEN: I would l i k e t o proceed w i t h perhaps 

an i n t r o d u c t o r y comment t o the e f f e c t t h a t the s c h o o l system 

does not want t o be put i n the p o s i t i o n o f o b s t r u c t i n g 

p r o g r e s s , but we s h o u l d c e r t a i n l y hope t h a t p r o g r e s s i s not 

made a t t h e expense of c h i l d r e n . And I s h o u l d l i k e t o su g g e s t , 
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too, t h a t perhaps some improvement and c o o r d i n a t i o n of 

p l a n n i n g might be advantageous f o r a l l concerned because i n 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r i n s t a n c e we were not made p a r t y t o t h e 

i n i t i a l s t a g e s o f p l a n n i n g and s i n c e we a r e a f f e c t e d we 

t h i n k t h a t j o i n t c o n s i d e r a t i o n o f a l l o f the a s p e c t s o f the 

s i t u a t i o n might be advantageous t o the s c h o o l s y s t e m and t o 

the Highway Department and t o the c i t y a s a whole„ 

Now, t h i s i s a l l i n a d d i t i o n t o the o u t l i n e which 

I have p r e s e n t e d t o you, Mr. P r e s i d e n t , which I s h o u l d now 

l i k e t o go i n t o a s i t i s w r i t t e n h e r e . 

To the Board of Commissioners of the D i s t r i c t of 

Columbia, D i s t r i c t B u i l d i n g , Washington, D. C. 

Gentlemen: 

" T h i s i s w i t h r e f e r e n c e t o the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the 

w e s t e r n l e g of the I n n e r Loop a s i t a f f e c t s t he F r a n c i s 

J u n i o r High School l o c a t e d a t 24 t h and N S t r e e t s , N. W. 

The f o l l o w i n g f a c t s s h o u l d be noted i n r e g a r d t o the need 

f o r the c o n t i n u a t i o n o f t h e F r a n c i s J u n i o r High School a s 

a p a r t o f the p u b l i c s c h o o l s y s t e m : 

" 1 . The F r a n c i s J u n i o r High School s e r v e s the geo­

g r a p h i c a l a r e a bounded on the e a s t by 16th S t r e e t (and i t s 

p r o j e c t i o n s o u t h of the White House), on the west by Rock 

Creek and Potomac P a r k s , on the n o r t h by Columbia Road and 

Kalorama Road, and on the so u t h by the Potomac R i v e r . 

"2. The p r e s e n t e n r o l l m e n t i s 534 p u p i l s . 
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Enrollments i n the l a s t f i v e years have v a r i e d from a high 

of 745 i n 1954 to a low of 480 i n 1957. 

"3. Our p u p i l enrollment p r o j e c t i o n s f o r the 

F r a n c i s J u n i o r High School through the school year 1963-64 

i n d i c a t e a minimum enrollment of 426 p u p i l s . Actual 

experience shows these p r o j e c t i o n s to be low. 

'4, J u n i o r high schools are j u s t beginning t o 

f e e l the e f f e c t s of the I n c r e a s e d numbers of b i r t h s beginning 

i n 1946 and j u n i o r high school enrollments are showing a 

corresponding i n c r e a s e . 
? v5. Adjacent j u n i o r high schools are e i t h e r over 

c a p a c i t y or n e a r l y a t c a p a c i t y and t h e i r enrollments are 

expected t o grow f o r the reason given i n item 4 above. 

"6. To r e p l a c e t h i s b u i l d i n g w i l l c o s t approxi­

mately $2,750,000 plus not l e s s than $1,000,000 f o r a s i t e . 

" I n view of the need fo r the e x i s t e n c e of t h i s 

s c h ool b u i l d i n g i t i s necessary to oppose any highway planning 

that w i l l a d v e r s e l y a f f e c t the use of t h i s f a c i l i t y . The 

c o n d i t i o n s necessary f o r adequate school use are o u t l i n e d as 

f o l l o w s : 

" 1 . S a f e t y . 

" I t i s commonly understood that the f i r s t r e s p o n s i ­

b i l i t y of the school management i s to provide f o r the s a f e t y 

of p u p i l s and t e a c h e r s attending any given school. The 

r o u t i n g of a highway to the f r o n t of the F r a n c i s Junior High 
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must be c o n s i d e r e d a s a v e r y s e r i o u s h a z a r d t o the s a f e t y 

of p u p i l s and o t h e r s who use the b u i l d i n g . Even w i t h an 

o v e r p a s s the s a f e t y f a c t o r w i l l be s h a r p l y reduced. Such 

r o u t i n g of the highway then would tend t o make the b u i l d i n g 

u nusable from t h e s a f e t y p o i n t of view u n l e s s u n u s u a l measures 

a r e t a k e n t o p r o t e c t t h e s t u d e n t s a g a i n s t a l l a c c e s s t o the 

highway. 

"2. A c c e s s i b i l i t y . 

"The s c h o o l by n a t u r e must be a c c e s s i b l e t o the 

p u p i l s , t e a c h e r s , and community u s i n g i t . To i s o l a t e the 

F r a n c i s J u n i o r High School from the a r e a i t s e r v e s by the 

r o u t i n g of a highway on the s t r e e t f r o n t i n g t he s c h o o l " — 

and I might add even perhaps t o some e x t e n t by a r o u t e 

behind the s c h o o l — "would o b v i o u s l y s h a r p l y d e c r e a s e the 

a c c e s s i b i l i t y of the b u i l d i n g . Overpasses would have t o 

be c o n s t r u c t e d , but t h e s e would tend t o reduce a c c e s s i b i l i t y 

and a l s o would i n c r e a s e t h e h a z a r d t o s a f e t y f o r m o t o r i s t s 

a n d p e d e s t r i a n s a l i k e . I t i s c e r t a i n t h a t the u s e f u l n e s s 

o f the s c h o o l would be s e r i o u s l y i m p a i r e d by the c o n s t r u c t i o n 

of a highway i n f r o n t o f i t . 

"3, S a t i s f a c t o r y c o n d i t i o n s f o r t e a c h i n g . 

" I d e a l l y a s c h o o l s h o u l d be s e p a r a t e d from heavy 

c o m m e r c i a l t r a f f i c not o n l y f o r s a f e t y purposes but f o r 

p r e s e r v i n g a c o n d i t i o n which would make i t p o s s i b l e f o r 

t e a c h e r s t o be e f f e c t i v e i n the c l a s s r o o m s . I n those b u i l d i n g s 
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which are c l o s e t o busy s t r e e t s and i n d u s t r i a l i n s t a l l a t i o n s 

the conduct of the classroom i s d i f f i c u l t because of the 

sound l e v e l . Teaching i s obviously best done i n a quiet 

s e t t i n g . To route a major highway very n e a r l y a t the f r o n t 

door of a school would be t o impair i t s u s e f u l n e s s as an 

i n s t r u c t i o n a l c e n t e r by the f a c t t h a t the noise i t e s e l f , 

from the r o r a r of t r a f f i c t h a t i s constant and heavy through­

out the day, would reduce the e f f i c i e n c y of i n s t r u c t i o n t h at 

goes on i n the b u i l d i n g . 

"The Superintendent and h i s s t a f f suggest most 

e a r n e s t l y that theBoard of Commissioners s e r i o u s l y consider 

the foregoing o b j e c t i o n s to the ro u t i n g of the Inner Loop 

adjacent to the F r a n c i s Junior High School. I t w i l l be 

d i f f i c u l t to understand why i t i s necessary i n the planning 

of such a highway to impair the educational opportunity of 

many hundreds of boys and g i r l s when p o s s i b l y other more 

s a t i s f a c t o r y s o l u t i o n s seem to be available. " 

T h i s i s the c o n c l u s i o n of my presentation, Mr. 

Pr e s i d e n t . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, s i r . 

Co you have any questions, General? 

GENERAL WELLING: No. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I see t h a t you have a 

problem and we w i l l c e r t a i n l y c o n s i d e r i t very c a r e f u l l y , 

MR. HANSEN: Thank you, s i r . 
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COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I t h i n k i t i s q u i t e 

c e r t a i n t h a t we s h a l l n o t be a b l e t o get beyond Item 20 i n 

t h i s morning's s e s s i o n , so those beyond t h i s i t e m may f e e l 

f r e e t o l e a v e , or i f we do get beyond t h e r e and p i c k up a 

few, those p e o i p l e who have gone w i l l be p i c k e d up the f i r s t 

t h i n g t h i s a f t e r n o o n . 

I t h i n k t h e s a f e s t t h i n g t o s a y a t t h i s p o i n t i s 

t h a t we s h a l l reconvene a t 2:00 o ' c l o c k , s o i f t h e r e a r e 

some who a r e beyond Item 20 — do you a l l have c o p i e s of 

t h i s — 

MR. THORNETT: We have them a v a i l a b l e i f any­

body wants them. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Those t h a t i t 

appears t h a t we w i l l be a b l e t o hear a r e C o l o n e l W i l l i a m E. 

Shepherd, the P r o g r e s s i v e C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n , t h e Washington 

B u i l d i n g Congress, the AAA--the Board of Trade and Gas Company 

have asked f o r the a f t e r n o o n — t h e Washington Housing A s s o c i a ­

t i o n , the American P l a n n i n g and C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n , t he 

C i v i t a n C l ub, C h a r l e s Trowbridge T i t t m a n , Samuel N. C a t a l a n o , 

the Urban League, t h e P a l i s a d e s C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n , and 

Mr. J a c k Rubin. 

Now, we c e r t a i n l y want you t o s t a y w i t h u s . 

I know your i n t e r e s t i s p r e t t y keen i n t h i s s o we want you 

t o s t a y i f you f e e l l i k e you can. 

C o l o n e l Shepherd? 
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Colonel William E. Shepherd, Pres i d e n t of the 

Georgetown C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n . 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM E. SHEPHERD, PRESIDENT, 

GEORGETOWN CITIZENS ASSOCIATION. 

COLONEL SHEPHERD: Mr, President and Membersrof the 

Board, f o r t u n a t e l y the community l i f e of Georgetown i s but 

s l i g h t l y a f f e c t e d by the f i r s t item on your agenda, the 

west l e g of the inner loop, but the s u b j e c t i s of such great 

general i n t e r e s t t h a t I would l i k e , with your permission, to 

t r e a t i t l a s t and somewhat f u l l y . 

Regarding the second item, the proposal to lo c a t e 

the Potomac R i v e r Freeway south of K S t r e e t i n Georgetown 

was endorsed by the membership of my a s s o c i a t i o n November 25, 

1957, Involved i n t h i s p r o j e c t i s the c o n s t r u c t i o n of a new 

e l e v a t e d s t r u c t u r e which w i l l of n e c e s s i t y e l i m i n a t e s e v e r a l 

i n d u s t r i a l b u i l d i n g s from the waterfront. A p o s s i b l e con­

sequence o i t h i s change might be the r e l o c a t i o n , over a period 

of years, of a l l the in d u s t r y now e s t a b l i s h e d between K 

S t r e e t and the Potomac Ri v e r , and the upgrading of the area 

from general i n d u s t r i a l t o r e s i d e n t i a l and r e c r e a t i o n a l use, 

thus providing Georgetown with a much needed opening to the 

r i v e r and play space now i n s h o r t supply. 

At t h i s point I make reference t o the pamphlet, 

Harold M. le w i s and George S. Gatter, "Land Use i n the D i s t r i c t 

of Columbia", June 1956. That was one of the s t u d i e s that 
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were made i n c o n n e c t i o n w i t h the z o n i n g r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Coming back t o your Item No. 1, the west l e g of 

the i n n e r loop, from K S t r e e t , Northwest, t o Mas s a c h u s e t t s 

Avenue, Northwest, s h o u l d we be f o r c e d t o choose between 

the t h r e e a l t e r n a t i v e l o c a t i o n s l a b e l e d A, B, and C, we 

would v o t e i n f a v o r of C, a s developed by the Department of 

Highways and T r a f f i c and approved by the N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l 

P l a n n i n g Commission. 

I would l i k e t o s a y a t t h i s p o i n t we were not 

aware of t h i s a l t e r n a t e C t h a t would go around t h e s c h o o l , 

s o I make no comment on t h a t . 

While we deplore t h e r a z i n g of owe1lings t o make 

room f o r f r e e w a y s , and p a r t i c u l a r l y the d e m o l i t i o n of the 

o l d P e t e r House on K S t r e e t t o accommodate r o u t e C, we f e e l 

n e v e r t h e l e s s t h a t t h i s r o u t e would be l e s s d e s t r u c t i v e of 

r e a l e s t a t e v a l u e s and community l i f e t h an e i t h e r r o u t e A 

or r o u t e B. But any l i m i t e d a c c e s s freeway c o n s t r u c t e d 

w i t h i n a c l o s e l y packed urban a r e a g i v e s r i s e t o s e r i o u s 

s o c i a l and f i n a n c i a l problems, and the proposed i n n e r loop 

f o r Washington i s no e x c e p t i o n . May I t h e r e f o r e d w e l l now 

f o r a moment on some of th e s e problems? 

F i r s t , t h e r e i s the l o s s o f t a x revenue, which f o r 

Washington i s a v e r y g r e a t l o s s , i n view o f the c o n t i n u a l l y 

mounting exemptions c o n f e r r e d on r e a l e s t a t e . Then, t h e r e 

i s t he p a r k i n g problem, the problem of r e l o c a t i n g d i s p l a c e d 
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f a m i l i e s , p a r t i c u l a r l y those w i t h low incomes, and the 

r e l a t e d problem o f the r e b u i l d i n g a t p r e s e n t p r i c e s , o f 

s c h o o l s which s t a n d i n the highway r i g h t - o f - w a y . 

O f f s e t t i n g t h e s e l i a b i l i t i e s a r e the t h e o r e t i c a l 

g a i n s computed by t h e c o n s u l t i n g e n g i n e e r s t o amount t c an 

average o f 4.16 c e n t s per m i l e per v e h i c l e , or $20,000,000 

a n n u a l l y by 1980. Who, I a s k , a r e the o p e r a t o r s who s t a n d 

t o g a i n by t h e s e s a v i n g s , and why s h o u l d we Washingtonians 

s u f f e r our f a i r c i t y t o be s l a s h e d t o p i e c e s s o t h a t t h e y may 

t e a r through i t a t 50 m i l e s per hour? 

I sometimes wonder how many t a x p a y e r s i n t h i s c i t y , 

a r e aware o f th e s e problems, and how many know what the 

i n n e r loop i s i n t e n d e d t o do, how much i t w i l l c o s t , and 

what i t w i l l look l i k e when f i n i s h e d . I n r e a l i t y , t h i s 

p r o p o s a l i s not f o r a s i n g l e loop, but f o r a s o r t of f i g u r e 

e i g h t , composed of an e a s t e r l y r i n g around the C a p i t o l , 

c r o s s i n g t he M a l l a t or near 4 t h S t r e e t West, and a l a r g e r 

w e s t e r l y r i n g bounded on the n o r t h by F l o r i d a Avenue and 

U S t r e e t , on the west by the Foggy Bottom a r e a , and on the 

sou t h by West Potomac P a r k and F S t r e e t , Southwest. W i t h i n 

t h i s l a s t - m e n t i o n e d r i n g a r e the White House, Washington 

Monument, L i n c o l n Memorial, the F e d e r a l T r i a n g l e , S m i t h s o n i a n 

I n s t i t u t i o n , Department o f A g r i c u l t u r e , F e d e r a l R e s e r v e , 

Department o f S t a t e , George Washington U n i v e r s i t y campus, 

and the s i t e chosen f o r the C u l t u r a l C e n t e r . 
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The proposed i n n e r loop w i l l be a c o m p l e t e l y grade-

s e p a r a t e d , high-speed, l i m i t e d - a c c e s s s t r u c t u r e , f o r v e h i c l e s 

of a l l k i n d s , i n c l u d i n g t r u c k s , which means t h a t i t w i l l i n 

c e r t a i n p a r t s be c a r r i e d over e x i s t i n g s t r e e t s , and i n o t h e r s 

depressed i n open c u t s or t u n n e l s . I n o r d e r t o make room f o r 

t h e f reeway and i t s ramps, b l o c k a f t e r b l o c k of e x i s t i n g 

b u i l d i n g s w i l l have t o be condemned, i t w i l l a l l be q u i t e 

u n s i g h t l y and enormously e x p e n s i v e , e s t i m a t e d i n 1955 t o 

c o s t upward of $272,667,000 of t a x p a y e r s ' money. I am not 

s u r e we a r e going t o be s a t i s f i e d w i t h the loop a f t e r i t i s 

bought and p a i d f o r . 

E a r l y p r i o r i t y i s a s s i g n e d by the p l a n n e r s t o the 

southwest and s o u t h r o u t e s of the i n n e r loop freeway from 

K S t r e e t southward t o Potomac P a r k , then t u r n i n g t o squeeze 

between the L i n c o l n Memorial and the r i v e r , and thence 

e a s t w a r d toward the J e f f e r s o n Memorial and F S t r e e t , South­

west. The freeway i s planned t o pass west of the L i n c o l n 

Memorial as a s i x - l a n e depressed f a c i l i t y , open t o the s k y 

e x c e p t f o r a t u n n e l a p p r o x i m a t e l y 600 f e e t long. I b e l i e v e 

t h a t the n o i s e and fumes g e n e r a t e d by t r a f f i c , p a r t i c u l a r l y 

t r u c k s , u s i n g t h i s r o u t e , w i l l be most o b j e c t i o n a b l e . 

From Foggy Bottom t o the Southwest Development 

a r e a , the r o u t e I have j u s t d e s c r i b e d s e r v e s no important 

b u s i n e s s or i n d u s t r y , nor does i t connect w i t h any major 

a r t e r i e s u n t i l i t r e a c h e s the G e n e r a l Rochambeau B r i d g e , 
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of the L i n c o l n Memorial, and the n a t u r a l beauty of Potomac 

Park. 

You w i l l note I have not mentioned the Memorial 

B r i d g e or the new o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue B r i d g e because the y 

a r e going t o be l i m i t e d a s I understand i t t o passenger 

v e h i c l e s and, t h e r e f o r e , cannot be c o n s i d e r e d i n t h e s e 

f a c i l i t i e s . 

I n view of the f o r e g o i n g , may I suggest t h a t the 

f o l l o w i n g a c t i o n s be t a k e n ; 

1. Amend the p r i o r i t i e s so t h a t the s o uth r o u t e , 

p r e v i o u s l y recommended as p a r t of the f i r s t s t a g e of con­

s t r u c t i o n of the inner loop freeway, be d e f e r r e d u n t i l the 

l a s t , and t h a t a c a u t i o u s approach be adopted w i t h r e g a r d 

t o the e n t i r e west r o u t e i n o r d e r t o expose hidden c o s t s , 

such as l o s s of t a x revenue, moving of d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s , 

r e c o n s t r u c t i o n of s c h o o l b u i l d i n g s , and d e p r e c i a t i o n of r e a l 

e s t a t e v a l u e s . 

2. Proceed a t once w i t h i n t e r i m improvements of 

s u r f a c e s t r e e t s a s f o l l o w s : 

a. With r e l a t i o n t o the Potomac R i v e r Freeway, 

f o r e a s t - w e s t t r a f f i c , improvement of K S t r e e t from 

Rock Creek t o C o n n e c t i c u t Avenue. 

b. With r e l a t i o n t o the C o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue 

B r i d g e , f o r e a s t - w e s t t r a f f i c , improvement of C o n s t i t u t i o n 
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Avenue and E S t r e e t , Northwest. 

c. With r e l a t i o n t o t h e Potomac R i v e r Freeway and 

the C o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue B r i d g e , f o r n o r t h - s o u t h t r a f f i c , 

improvement o f 2 1 s t , 22nd and 23rd S t r e e t s , Northwest. 

The above-mentioned s t r e e t s s h o u l d be improved 

through s t r e e t w i d e n i n g , c h a n n e l i z a t i o n , p a r k i n g r e s t r i c ­

t i o n s , s e r v i c e roads, s u i t a b l e l i g h t i n g , adequate 

t r a f f i c s i g n a l c o n t r o l , and grade s e p a r a t i o n s where 

n e c e s s a r y . 

3. With r e f e r e n c e t o the p a r k i n g problem, i t i s 

recommended t h a t the proposed underground p a r k i n g a r e a a t 

the E S t r e e t M a l l extended westward, be b u i l t w i t h o u t d e l a y . 

T h i s r e p o r t , however, r e f r a i n s from comment on the method of 

f i n a n c i n g t h i s improvement. 

But l e t us not f o r g e t t h a t i n or d e r t o sav e the 

c i t y from s t r a n g u l a t i o n and bankruptcy, we must f i r s t 

encourage patronage o f mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n and r a p i d t r a n s i t 

i f i t comes, and the use of s m a l l r a t h e r than l a r g e c a r s . 

And we must a l s o f r e e o u r s e l v e s from the erroneous concept 

t h a t man and h i s automobile a r e i n s e p a r a b l e . 

Thank you v e r y much. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Some v e r y w i s e o b s e r v a ­

t i o n s , thank you. 

Mr. A r m i s t e a d P e t e r , I I I , and Mrs. Ha r o l d B. Hinton, 

r e p r e s e n t i n g the P r o g r e s s i v e C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n of Georgetown. 
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STATEMENT OF ARMISTEAD PETER, I I I , AND 

MRS. HAROLD B. HINTON, ON BEHALF OF THE 

PROGRESSIVE CITIZENS ASSOCIATION OF GEORGETOWN. 

MR. PETER: My name i s Armistead Peter, I I I , and I 

represent the Progressive C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n of Georgetown. 

Under a r e s o l u t i o n passed by our A s s o c i a t i o n a t our 

December meeting I have been asked to request that the i n t e r ­

change that we are now d i s c u s s i n g be moved as f a r to the 

ea s t as i t i s p o s s i b l e under the co n d i t i o n s . While the i n t e r ­

change i s not i n Georgetown we f e e l l i k e l y that i t a f f e c t s 

Georgetown through i t s complexity and the area that i t covers 

and p a r t i c u l a r l y t h a t i t w i l l a t present destroy two of the 

old houses which were b u i l t a t the request of General Wash­

ington a t the time when the new c i t y was i n i t s infancy. 

I would l i k e here to support Mr. Hansen's suggestion 

that there w i l l be a more complete coordination between the 

planning of these highways and the var i o u s groups involved 

having to do with the h i s t o r i c landmarks, the schools and 

other agencies of that s o r t which are i n t e r e s t i n g to the 

population as a whole and which are v i t a l l y a f f e c t e d by the 

r u i t i n g of these roadways. 

These old houses which housed the B r i t i s h M i n ister 

i n 1806- 1809, David Montague Hursfon, were b u i l t a t a time 

when Washington was completely uninhabited and under the 

request of General Washington h i s a s s o c i a t e s were asked to 
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b u i l d houses i n the Washington area along the new s t r e e t s 

so as to give a s t a r t i n g point from which the new c i t h 

might be formed. 

The two roadways, the e a s t e r n roadway goes d i r e c t l y 

through those houses under the present plan, although i n an 

e a r l i e r plan they were on an i s l a n d between the two, and i t 

would seem d e s i r a b l e t h a t i f a s l i g h t change could be made 

there and the houses be saved — 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN. What i s the l o c a t i o n ? 

MH„ PETER: They are a t 2618 and 2620 K S t r e e t . 

They have a bronze plaque which was put on them by the 

Daughters of the American Revolution s t a t i n g these f a c t s 

and i f a s l i g h t change could be made i t does seem d e s i r a b l e 

t o have i t done, 

In the general l o c a t i o n of the inner loop I think 

t h a t I may say t h a t we are a l s o deeply doubtful of the 

u t i l i t y of a road of that s o r t and the d e s i r a b i l i t y of a 

f a c i l i t y of that s o r t as i t i s now located with the d e s t r u c t i o n 

of property values throughout the e n t i r e c i t y . I t seems that 

i t would be wise t o go very s l o w l y i n t h a t d i r e c t i o n , par-

t i c u l a r l y i n connection with some mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n f a c i l i t y 

t h a t might be b u i l t i n the future and which might make t h i s 

c o n s t r u c t i o n unnecessary. 

But granted that i t i s necessary, i t seems that we 

could a l s o support Mr. Hansen's contention that i t comes too 
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c l o s e t o the s c h o o l and t h a t t h e C - l s u g g e s t i o n p a r t i c u l a r l y 

would i n t e r f e r e w i t h one of the imp o r t a n t r e c r e a t i o n a l a r e a s 

i n t he paris. 

As we a l l know a t t h a t p o i n t o f t h e c u r v e , a t the 

f a r r i g h t , a g r e a t many people use t h a t f o r r e c r e a t i o n , t h a t 

s l o p e r u n n i n g down t o Rock Creek, and i t seems u n f o r t u n a t e 

t o b u i l d a road of t h a t c h a r a c t e r through a park a r e a , 

low, t h e r e i s one o t h e r t h i n g which a f f e c t s 

Georgetown which I would l i k e t o speak of which i s not shown 

on the map and t h a t i s t h e development of the a d d i t i o n of the 

W h i t e h u r s t Freeway on the w e s t e r n end„ From my p r e s e n t i n f o r m a ­

t i o n I b e l i e v e t h a t the approaches o r a t l e a s t t h e l a n d t o be 

t a k e n f o r t h a t w i l l e x t e n d e a s t w a r d f a r enough t o i n c l u d e what 

i s c a l l e d t h e F o r r e s t Marbury house. 

low, the F o r r e s t Marbury house i s h a r d l y known by 

a g r e a t many people and probably i s not being c o n s i d e r e d by 

the Highway Department i n t h i s c a s e , but I do t h i n k i t i s one 

of the most i m p o r t a n t h i s t o r i c a l houses t h a t i s now s t a n d i n g 

i n Georgetown, I t i s a t the end of M S t r e e t near the Key 

B r i d g e . I t i s now s t a n d i n g q u i t e s t a r k and alone w i t h a 

bar or t a v e r n i n the lower s t o r y , the lower f l o o r , but i t 

was i n t h a t house t h a t U r i a h F o r r e s t had t h e d i n n e r the n i g h t 

b e f o r e t h e l a n d s of Washington were f o r m a l l y t u r n e d over and 1 

c r e a t e d a s t h e Washington C i t y , 

As you remember, G e n e r a l Washington was q u i t e 
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d i s t u r b e d about the a v a i l a b i l i t y of t h a t l a n d and t h e 

a b i l i t y t o have i t t u r n e d over t o the c i t y on the terms 

t h a t had been d i s c u s s e d f o r some time. And C o l o n e l F o r r e s t 

d ecided t o have a d i n n e r t h e r e of the 19 p r o p r i e t e r s of t h e 

la n d the n i g h t , a s i t happened, b e f o r e the f i n a l d e c i s i o n 

took p l a c e . G e n e r a l Washington was p r e s e n t and I t h i n k we 

may s a y t h a t t he f i n a l d e c i s i o n f o r the t u r n i n g over of 

Washington as t h e f e d e r a l c i t y t o the f e d e r a l government was 

made a t t h a t d i n n e r , i n t h a t house. I t was l a t e r t he 

r e s i d e n c e of W i l l i a m Marbury who was the Marbury of Marbury 

v e r s u s Madison which was one of the most famous d e c i s i o n s 

c e r t a i n l y p l a c i n g the Supreme Court i n i t s dominant p o s i t i o n 

a s t o the c o n s t i t u t i o n a l i t y of l e g i s l a t i o n passed by Congress 

And he was a l s o t he f i r s t p r e s i d e n t of t h e Farmers Mechanics 

Bank. 

I t h i n k t h a t t h a t house i n p a r t i c u l a r ought t o be 

v e r y d e e p l y c o n s i d e r e d i n the l o c a t i o n of any road. I don't 

t h i n k t h a t t h e r e i s any house i n Georgetown t h a t d e s e r v e s 

p r e s e r v a t i o n and p l a c i n g i n i t s o r i g i n a l c o n d i t i o n by the 

f e d e r a l government, a c t u a l l y , t han t h a t house and I s t r o n g l y 

recommend t h a t i t be c o n s i d e r e d and i t s p r e s e r v a t i o n s h o u l d 

be e s t a b l i s h e d i n any road system which i s going t o be 

e s t a b l i s h e d i n t h a t a r e a . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Tha t i s up on N S t r e e t ? 

MR. PETER: M S t r e e t , 
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COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: M S t r e e t ? 

MR, PETER: Ye s . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: R i g h t a t the — 

MR. PETER: J u s t b e f o r e you come t o the Key B r i d g e , 

Thank you v e r y much, 

GENERAL WELLING: Mr, P e t e r , i f t h e s e p r o j e c t s a r e 

g o i n g t o go ahead and i f t h e r e i s no p r a c t i c a b l e way t o 

a v o i d some of t h e s e h i s t o r i c p l a c e s which you mentioned, i s 

t h e r e any m e r i t t o c o n s i d e r i n g moving them b r i c k by b r i c k 

t o some nearby l o c a t i o n ? 

MR, PETER: Of c o u r s e t h e r e i s m e r i t i n t h a t . I 

don't t h i n k t h a t a house e v e r i s a s i n t e r e s t i n g i n a new 

l o c a t i o n a s i t i s i n i t s o r i g i n a l one, but i t i s a l w a y s 

more d e s i r a b l e t o p r e s e r v e a house i n some way t h a n i t i s t o 

d e s t r o y i t c o m p l e t e l y . 

We have seen the moving of houses b e f o r e but I do 

t h i n k t h a t i n c a s e s of t h i s s o r t i t d e s t r o y s the o r i g i n a l 

c h a r a c t e r of the house and p a r t i c u l a r l y the l o c a t i o n a t 

which i t s b u i l d e r s f e l t t h a t i t was d e s i r a b l e t o b u i l d i t . 

These houses p o i n t up the a r e a which r e p r e s e n t s the b i r t h 

p l a c e of Washington as a c i t y . I t h i n k t h a t s h o u l d a l w a y s 

be remembered i n t h a t c o n n e c t i o n . Moving them w i l l p r e s e r v e 

p o s s i b l y a p a r t of the house but i t doesn't p r e s e r v e the 

rememberance or the h i s t o r i c a l s i g n i f i c a n c e of t h e i r l o c a t i o n 

where t h e y now s t a n d , and I t h i n k t h a t s h o u l d a l w a y s be 



considered very, very deeply i n any c o n s i d e r a t i o n of that 

s o r t . 

That s t r e e t , M S t r e e t , was one of the e a r l y s t r e e t s 

of Georgetown, although K S t r e e t was r e a l l y b a s i c a l l y the 

o r i g i n a l s t r e e t t o the r i v e r and M S t r e e t was then Bridge 

S t r e e t and those houses where they stand were a c t u a l l y the 

focus of the l i f e of Georgetown and of Washington, the e a r l y 

antecedant one might say of Washington C i t y . 

Considering that Washington C i t y i s the c a p i t a l of 

the nation i t does seem to roe that some s a c r i f i c e should be 
i 

made to keep t h o s i houses i n being. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much, 

Mr. Peter. 

Mrs, Hinton? 

MRS. HINTON: I am Mrs. Harold B. Hinton, chairman 

of the Zoning Committee and Planning Committee of the C i t i z e n s 

A s s o c i a t i o n of Georgetown, 

I want to back up what Mr. Peter s a i d , I n f a c t , he 

has covered most everything I wanted to say. 

I want to f i r s t thank Mr. B r i n k l e y for saving 

Braddock Rock, And thank them that they are showing apprecia­

t i o n of things and hope they w i l l be able t o do some of the 

things that Mr, Peter i n d i c a t e d . 

I would l i k e t o point out to General Welling about 

moving houses, what that does. 
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As you may not know, the F r a n c i s Scott Key house 

was destroyed f o r the approaches to the Key Bridge and a t the 

time i t was s a i d t h a t i t would be reconstructed elsewhere, 

I b e l i e v e i n some pa r t . The b r i c k s and m a t e r i a l s were put 

i n t o storage. I don't know what happened, but i t got 

nibbled away over about twenty years and f i n a l l y I under­

stand t h a t the few remaining b r i c k s i n the F r a n c i s Scott 

Key house have been incorporated i n the t e r r a c e of the Oak 

Stone house. 

I t c o s t s money t o take a house down, much more 

money to put i t back. I t i s very hard to get up enthusiasm 

for t h a t kind of thing because i t r e a l l y doesn't c a r r y 

through with the h i s t o r y of the house. 

As Mr. Peter s a i d , the l o c a t i o n i s e q u a l l y as 

important as the house i t s e l f , 

Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mrs, Hinton, 

Mr. Arthur H, Keyes, J r . , representing the Wash­

ington B u i l d i n g Congress, I n c . 

STATEMENT OF ARTHUR H, KEYES, JR., ON BEHALF OF 

THE WASHINGTON BUILDING CONGRESS, INC. 

MR. KEYES: General Welling, members of the Board 

of Commissioners, l a d i e s and gentlemen: T h i s report was 

prepared by the C i t y Planning Committee and approved by the 

Washington B u i l d i n g Congress. We appreciate t h i s opportunity 
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t o comment on the proposed i n n e r loop. We t h i n k i t i s un­

f o r t u n a t e , however, t h a t a t t e n t i o n i s b e i n g c o n c e n t r a t e d on 

a s m a l l segment of t h e l o o p and t h a t the h e a r i n g s a r e being 

h e l d b e f o r e the e x t e n s i v e mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n s u r v e y has 

become a v a i l a b l e t o the p u b l i c . 

I t i s r a t h e r d i f f i c u l t t o a r r i v e a t an i n t e l l i g e n t 

c o n c l u s i o n about one p a r t w i t h o u t c o n s i d e r i n g i t s r e l a t i o n 

t o t h e whole. A f t e r s t u d y i n g the mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n s u r v e y 

we may want t o r e s t a t e our p o s i t i o n , and we would welcome 

a n o t h e r h e a r i n g a t t h a t time f o r a p u b l i c d i s c u s s i o n of the 

s u r v e y and of t h e i n n e r loop as a whole. 

Our p r e s e n t c o n c l u s i o n s about th e t h r e e s p e c i f i c 

p r o j e c t s under d i s c u s s i o n a r e as f o l l o w s : 

l o West l e g of the i n n e r loop from K S t r e e t t o 

M a s s a c h u s e t t s A venue; We would p r e f e r t h a t t h i s not be 

b u i l t . I t i s u s e l e s s u n l e s s j o i n e d w i t h t h e n o r t h e r n s e c t i o n 

o f the i n n e r loop and we b e l i e v e t h a t t h i s whole n o r t h e r n 

s e c t i o n d u p l i c a t e s t h e f a c i l i t i e s of e a s t - w e s t t r a f f i c 

a v a i l a b l e around the s o u t h e r n h a l f . At the same time i t 

improves v e r y l i t t l e the i m p ortant n o r t h - s c u t h commuter 

t r a f f i c a l o n g numberous e x i s t i n g s t r e e t s . There a r e no 

major f r e e w a y s proposed from the n o r t h which c o u l d t i e i n t o 

the i n n e r loop w i t h o u t c o n g e s t i o n . E v e r y e f f o r t t o form an 

i n t e r c h a n g e w i t h t h e s e many s t r e e t s c a u s e s f u r t h e r con­

s t r i c t i o n s on a l r e a d y l i m i t e d r i g h t s of way and d i s c h a r g e s 
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t r a f f i c i n t o them which t h e y a r e not capable of h a n d l i n g . 

F u r thermore, an e i g h t - l a n e freeway i s bound t o 

depress r e a l e s t a t e v a l u e s i n a r e s i d e n t i a l a r e a . I f we 

a r e going t o upgrade the Northwest and e n t i c e h i g h e r income 

groups back i n t o t h i s p a r t o f t h e D i s t r i c t , the c i t y s h o u l d 

r e s i s t the t e m p t a t i o n t o a l l o c a t e i t s s h a r e of funds f o r 

urban r e n e w a l i n the form o f a super highway, even though 

90 p e r c e n t of the funds a r e d e r i v e d from a f e d e r a l a p p r o p r i a ­

t i o n . 

2, Potoma R i v e r Freeway from G S t r e e t t o v i c i n i t y 

of W i s c o n s i n Avenue, i n c l u d i n g ramp i n t e r c h a n g e s w i t h K S t r e e t 

and west l e g of i n n e r loop: We f a v o r a l t e r n a t e r o u t e C 

because i t appears t o do the l e a s t damage t o e x i s t i n g 

p r o p e r t y and t o proper f u t u r e l a n d - u s e . P l a n s f o r new 

bridge and highway p r o j e c t s have now p r o g r e s s e d t o the p o i n t 

where t h i s p o r t i o n of the i n n e r loop between t h e Northwest 

and Southwest approaches t o the c i t y i s e s s e n t i a l . 

3. Washington C i r c l e grade s e p a r a t i o n and ramp, 

and improvements of K S t r e e t from 26th S t r e e t t o C o n n e c t i c u t 

Avenue: T h i s p r o j e c t s h o u l d have f i r s t p r i o r i t y , a s i t i s 

the most u s e f u l i n s o l v i n g the t r a f f i c jams which a l r e a d y 

e x i s t i n the approaches t o W h i t e h u r s t Freeway and Rock 

Creek Parkway, We doubt, however, t h a t i t can a l s o handle 

f u t u r e t r a f f i c from the proposed Potomac R i v e r Freeway. 

As t o the remainder of the i n n e r loop, the 
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Washington B u i l d i n g Congress approves the southern and e a s t e r n 

portion provided the following f i v e major planning programs 

are undertaken and coordinated with the inner loop planning: 

1. Work on the outer loop, the c i r c u m f e r e n t i a l 

highway, the Arizona Avenue bridge, and the Cabin John 

bridge, and so on, should a l l proceed c o n c u r r e n t l y or preferably 

ahead of the inner loop i n order to d i v e r t t h r o u g h - t r a f f i c 

away from the c e n t r a l part of the c i t y , 

2. The flow of s t r e e t t r a f f i c w i t h i n the loop must 

be improved before a d d i t i o n a l t r a f f i c generated by the loop 

i t s e l f i s discharged i n t o the c i t y . T h i s i n v o l v e s widening 

of some s t r e e t s , e l i m i n a t i o n of curb parking on many, 

synchronizing t r a f f i c l i g h t s , s i m p l i f y i n g r i g h t and l e f t 

t u r n s , e t c e t e r a . This program should be scheduled ahead of 

the inner loop. Adequate access and discharge ramps from the 

loop i n t o the e x i s t i n g s t r e e t p a t tern must be devised to 

avoid bottlenecks and t r a f f i c t i e - u p s worse than e x i s t a t 

the present time. 

3. Adequate o f f - s t r e e t parking f a c i l i t i e s must be 

made a v a i l a b l e to handle the i n c r e a s e d number of automobiles 

encouraged to enter the c i t y as w e l l as those c a r s d i s p l a c e d 

by the e l i m i n a t i o n of curb parking on a r t e r i a l s t r e e t s . 

These downtown parking f a c i l i t i e s should not be fre e but 

pay t h e i r own way, and taxes to the c i t y as w o l l , by reason­

able charges to the c a r owner. Free education to a l l c h i l d r e n 
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i s a p u b l i c r e s p o n s i b i l i t y but f r e e p a r k i n g f o r the 

commuter i s not, 

4, I m a g i n a t i v e d e s i g n must be a p p l i e d t o minimize 

t h e v i s u a l impact of t h i s g r e a t d i t c h through the c e n t r a l 

c i t y , and t o minimize t h e l o s s of t a x a b l e p r o p e r t i e s . 

I n g e n u i t y i s needed t o blend w i t h the s t r e e t p a t t e r n s as 

much as p o s s i b l e , a v o i d i n g a r c h i t e c t u r a l back s i d e s and open 

s i d e d a l l e y s as the p r i n c i p a l v i s t a s r o f the neighborhood. 

Where open c u t s a r e l e f t the l a n d s c a p i n g s h o u l d be bold 

r e f o r e s t a t i o n , not a p e r f u n c t o r y s p o t t i n g of s h r b u s . Tax 

v a l u e s can be r e c o v e r e d i n p a r t by r e - u s i n g p o r t i o n s of the 

space above t h i s 175 t o 200 f o o t wide c u t f o r o f f i c e b u i l d i n g s , 

p a r k i n g g a r a g e s , or even p u b l i c s q u a r e s t o enhance a d j o i n i n g 

p r o p e r t y v a l u e s , 

5. And perhaps t h e most important? A r a p i d 

t r a n s i t s ystem of s u f f i c i e n t conveniences comfort and speed 

t o compete w i t h the automobile s h o u l d be s e r i o u s c o n s i d e r e d 

and perhaps g i v e n p r i o r i t y i n c o n s t r u c t i o n over c e r t a i n 

p o r t i o n s of the highway c o n s t r u c t i o n , . The more we encourage 

automobiles t o e n t e r the c e n t r a l c i t y , the more d i f f i c u l t 

i t becomes t o develop a r a p i d t r a n s i t system which must be 

an i m p o r t a n t p a r t of any f u t u r e t r a n s p o r t a t i o n complex. I t 

i s a b s o l u t e l y e s s e n t i a l t h a t some s o r t of r a p i d t r a n s i t 

s y stem be c o o r d i n a t e d w i t h our highway program f o r proper 

l o c a t i o n of t r a n s i t s t a t i o n s , r i g h t s o f way, and f r i n g e 
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p a r k i n g f a c i l i t i e s . 

I t i s contemplated t h a t the proposed i n n e r loop 

w i l l c o s t $500,000,000 and we u n d e r s t a n d t h a t a n o ther 

$400,000,000 i s recommeneded by the mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n 

s t u d y f o r approach and a r t e r i a l s t r e e t improvements. S i n c e 

t h i s i s an e s t i m a t e over a t e n - y e a r p e r i o d the whole p r o j e c t 

may r u n w e l l over a b i l l i o n d o l l a r s . Higher t a x e s have 

a l r e a d y been proposed f o r t h i s purpose. I s i t any wonder 

we a s k the q u e s t i o n , " I s t h i s a w i s e i n v e s t m e n t of p u b l i c 

f u n d s ? " . We a r e aware t h a t i t i s , p r o b a b l y too l a t e t o 

e v a l u a t e the i n n e r loop i n terms o f c o s t . 

An e x p e n d i t u r e of a b i l l i o n d o l l a r s on roads 

w i t h i n the D i s t r i c t would never have been c o n s i d e r e d b e f o r e , 

but i t becomes almost i r r e s i s t i b l e when 90 p e r c e n t of t h e 

funds a r e p r o v i d e d by the f e d e r a l government. I t i s d i f f i c u l t 

f o r one c i t y t o t u r n down such an o f f e r even though the 

r e m a i n i n g 10 p e r c e n t r e p r e s e n t s a s e v e r e s t r a i n on the l o c a l 

budget, when o t h e r s t a t e and l o c a l j u r i s d i c t i o n s a r e seen 

s c r a m b l i n g f o r t h e s e f e d e r a l funds. However, we a r e i n t e r e s t e d 

i n knowing i f i t w i l l become n e c e s s a r y t o d i v e r t funds from 

our e d u c a t i o n , r i v e r p o l l u t i o n and sewage d i s p o s a l problems, 

from needed s o c i a l s e r v i c e s , adequate p o l i c e p r o t e c t i o n 

and a dozen o t h e r t h i n g s i n o r d e r t o shave twenty minutes 

o f f the commuters' t r a v e l t i m e. 

I f the o f f e r of 90 p e r c e n t f e d e r a l funds i s 
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i r r e s i s t i b l e l e t us a t l e a s t see t h a t t h e s e f i v e e s s e n t i a l 

p l a n n i n g programs w h i c h we have o u t l i n e d a r e c o o r d i n a t e d 

w i t h t he d e s i g n of the i n n e r loop, s o t h a t we get as much 

good as p o s s i b l e out of our t a x d o l l a r s . 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN; Thank you, Mr, Keyes. 

Have you any remarks? 

GENERAL WELLING: No. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. Washington I . 

C l e v e l a n d , r e p r e s e n t i n g t h e American Automobile A s s o c i a t i o n . 

STATEMENT OF WASHINGTON I . CLEVELAND, ON BEHALF 

OF THE AMERICAN AUTOMOBILE ASSOCIATION. 

MR. CLEVELAND: Mr. P r e s i d e n t and G e n e r a l W e l l i n g , 

your h e a r i n g here today t a k e s p l a c e j u s t one day p r i o r t o the 

monthly meeting of our board and we have not t a k e n a c t i o n on 

t h i s p r o j e c t y e t . However, our committee on Highways and 

B r i d g e s has s t u d i e d t he s u b j e c t , has prepared a r e p o r t f o r 

s u b m i s s i o n tomorrow which w i l l recommend the a p p r o v a l of 

your r o u t e C as recommended by the D i s t r i c t a u t h o r i t i e s , 

and w h i l e I cannot guarantee t h a t we w i l l t a k e f i n a l a c t i o n 

tomorrow I w i l l a s s u r e you t h a t a s soon as we do we w i l l 

p r e s e n t our recommendation and make e v e r y e f f o r t t o have i t 

here by the 1 6 t h , 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you v e r y much, 

Mr. Horsky, of the Washington Housing A s s o c i a t i o n , 



70ht 
72 

STATEMENT OF CHARLES A. HORSKY, PRESIDENT, 

WASHINGTON HOUSING ASSOCIATION, AS PRESENTED BY 

MISS ANNA S. MILLER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, WHA. 

MCSS MILLER: I am Miss Anna S. M i l l e r , I am the 

E x e c u t i v e D i r e c t o r of the Washington Housing A s s o c i a t i o n , I 

am r e a d i n g t h e s t a t e m e n t of Mr. C h a r l e s A, Horsky who r e g r e t s 

v e r y much h i s i n a b i l i t y t o be h e r e . He i s i n New York h a n d l i n g 

a c o u r t c a s e and w i l l be t h e r e through Wednesday, T h i s i s 

Mr. Horsky's s t a t e m e n t . 

" I am C h a r l e s A. Horsky, P r e s i d e n t of the Wash­

i n g t o n Housing A s s o c i a t i o n . My comments p e r t a i n t o the 

proposed west l e g of the i n n e r loop. 

"The Board of D i r e c t o r s of the A s s o c i a t i o n has 

a u t h o r i z e d and r e q u e s t e d t h a t I appear today and b r i n g t o 

your a t t e n t i o n one m a t t e r which has been g i v e n f a r l e s s 

a t t e n t i o n than i t d e s e r v e s — the m a t t e r of the d i s p l a c e m e n t 

of people whose homes must be removed so t h a t the highway 

can be b u i l t , and the r e l o c a t i o n of such people i n homes 

e l s e w h e r e . 

" T h i s i s a problem which i s not dependent on answers 

t o t e c h n i c a l q u e s t i o n s such as the s p e c i f i c r o u t e of the west 

l e g , o r whether the i n n e r loop can o r s h o u l d become a r e a l i t y 

w i t h o u t changes i n mass t r a n s i t systems and p a t t e r n s . I t i s 

a problem which emerges wherever the r o u t e may be, s i n c e 

i t i s i n e v i t a b l e t h a t i t w i l l d i s p l a c e people, indeed, many 
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people. And i t i s a problem which w i l l grow i n s i z e , r a t h e r 

than s h r i n k , as the highway program moves on. 

"Indeed, up t o now the v e r y e x i s t e n c e of the problem 

has been hidden by the f a c t t h a t the Southwest freeway — the 

o n l y p o r t i o n of the i n n e r loop a c t u a l l y under c o n s t r u c t i o n — 

has t r a v e r s e d an urban r e n e w a l a r e a . Because of t h a t c i r ­

cumstance, r e l o c a t i o n a s s i s t a n c e has been a v a i l a b l e t o the 

people who were d i s p l a c e d — through the Redevelopment Land 

Agency which performed t h e r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e b e f o r e the 

Highway Department became i n v o l v e d . 

"Now, however, the D i s t r i c t i s f a c e d f o r the f i r s t 

t i m e w i t h a major highway p r o j e c t which w i l l t r a v e r s e populated 

a r e a s not i n an urban r e n e w a l a r e a . The r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e s 

of the Redevelopment Land Agency w i l l not be a v a i l a b l e . Some, 

but not a l l , of the f a m i l i e s t o be d i s p l a c e d w i l l be of 

low or middle income, f o r whom r e l o c a t i o n w i l l be a n y t h i n g 

but e a s y , And as we t u r n t o the S o u t h e a s t Freeway, and the 

Northwest Freeway, we w i l l g r e a t l y i n c r e a s e the impact on 

t h o s e f a m i l i e s l e a s t a b l e t o r e l o c a t e t hemselves i n a way 

a p p r o p r i a t e f o r t h e m s e l v e s and c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the w e l f a r e 

of the D i s t r i c t . I have no h e s i t a t i o n i n a s s e r t i n g t h a t i t 

i s not too soon, now, t o r e c o g n i z e t h e problem, and t o ta k e 

s t e p s t o meet i t . 

" S t a t e d s i m p l y , the problem i s t h i s — what s h o u l d 

be the a t t i t u d e o f our government — both l o c a l and f e d e r a l , 
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f o r both a r e i n v o l v e d — toward people f o r c e d t o l e a v e t h e i r 

homes by r e a s o n of highway improvements? 

"There a r e t h r e e major c o n s i d e r a t i o n s which we 

b e l i e v e r e l e v a n t , 

" F i r s t : We b e l i e v e government has a r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

t o a l l e v i a t e the h a r d s h i p s s u f f e r e d by the f a m i l i t i e s who must 

move so the highways can be b u i l t . T h i s does not demand 

o f f i c i o u s i n t e r m e d d l i n g w i t h f a m i l i e s whose problems a r e 

w e l l w i t h i n t h e i r own c a p a b i l i t i e s , and whose v o l u n t a r y 

r e l o c a t i o n c o u l d not j e o p a r d i z e t h e community,, 

" I t does, however, r e q u i r e genuine a s s i s t a n c e f o r 

low-income f a m i l i e s i n f i n d i n g s u i t a b l e h ousing a t p r i c e s 

the f a m i l i e s can a f f o r d . And, may I add, i t r e q u i r e s more 

than c an be a f f o r d e d t o such f a m i l i e s by the D i s t r i c t ' s 

I n t e r - A g e n c y R e f e r r a l System, The A s s o c i a t i o n w i l l have, 

and w i l l p r e s e n t t o the Commissioners i n the near f u t u r e , 

a f u r t h e r s t u d y of the need f o r a C e n t r a l R e l o c a t i o n S e r v i c e , 

p a t t e r n e d on t h a t o f Redevelopment Land Agency, which c o u l d 

do the j o b . I n f a c t , o n l y such a r e l o c a t i o n agency can 

m a i n t a i n an o v e r - a l l u n d e r s t a n d i n g and a p p r e c i a t i o n of the 

scope of the problem, and of the a c t i o n s which a r e n e c e s s a r y 

t o meet i t . I t i s s i g n i f i c a n t t h a t w i t h i n the p a s t few 

months the Board of E s t i m a t e s i n B a l t i m o r e has approved a 

p l a n o f t h i s s o r t f o r t h a t c i t y . And., I may add, i t i s 

e q u a l l y s i g n i f i c a n t t h a t one o f the two p r i n c i p a l s i g n e r s of 
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the B a l t i m o r e p l a n was the D i r e c t o r of P u b l i c Works" — who 

by the way i s i n charge of the Department o f Highways. 

I n c i d e n t a l l y , we j u s t l e a r n e d l a s t F r i d a y t h i s 

p l a n i s i n e f f e c t i n B a l t i m o r e . R e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e s w i l l 

be o f f e r e d t o a l l f a m i l i t e s d i s p l a c e d by the B a l t i m o r e 

a c t i o n . I t i s e x p e c t e d t h a t w i t h i n the n e x t few months 

t h e y w i l l b egin t o handle f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by o t h e r than 

urban redevelopment. 

"Second. We b e l i e v e t h a t not o n l y does the 

government have t h i s minimal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o f a m i l i e s 

which i t u p r o o t s , but t h a t i t has an e q u a l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

to t h e community a t l a r g e . Massive d i s p l a c i n g of f a m i l i e s 

f o r c e d t o move by highway c o n s t r u c t i o n accompanied by a 

l a c k of c o n c e r n w i t h where they go, w i l l i n e v i t a b l y l e a d t o 

t h e overcrowding of p r e s e n t l y sound a r e a s , w i l l a c c e n t u a t e 

t h e s p r e a d of b l i g h t , w i l l j e o p a r d i z e many o t h e r c o s t l y 

urban r e n e w a l programs, and w i l l make enforcement of the 

Housing Code f a r more d i f f i c u l t and f a r more e x p e n s i v e . 

And l e t me add a g a i n t h a t w h i l e the west l e g may a f f e c t a 

s m a l l e r p r o p o r t i o n of f a m i l i e s i n whose proper r e l o c a t i o n 

t h e community has a s t a k e , the number o f such f a m i l i e s 

i n v o l v e d i n the t o t a l highway program i s v e r y l a r g e indeed. 

" T h i r d . We b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e can be no j u s t i f i c a ­

t i o n f o r the p r e s e n t d i s c r i m i n a t o r y h a n d l i n g of f a m i l i e s 

d i s p l a c e d by d i f f e r e n t government programs. The f e d e r a l 
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government, which f i n a n c e s t w o - t h i r d s of the c o s t s of r e ­

development and urban r e n e w a l , r e c o g n i z e s t h a t i t has a 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o a s s i s t those who a r e d i s p l a c e d by t h e s e 

programs. We f i n d i t d i f f i c u l t t o u n d e r s t a n d why the f e d ­

e r a l government, which f i n a n c e s 90 p e r c e n t of the i n t e r s t a t e 

highway system, of which t h e i n n e r loop i s a p a r t , has f a i l e d 

t o r e c o g n i z e i n t h a t program the same degree o f r e s p o n s i ­

b i l i t y , le agree w i t h the p o l i c y r e s o l u t i o n of t h e N a t i o n a l 

A s s o c i a t i o n of Housing and Redevelopment O f f i c i a l s — NAHRO —• 

adopted l a s t October 15: 

" ' f a m i l i e s , i n d i v i d u a l s and b u s i n e s s e s d i s p l a c e d 

by the highway program and o t h e r f e d e r a l l y - a i d e d 

programs a r e no l e s s d e s e r v i n g of r e l o c a t i o n 

a s s i s i s t a n c e t h a n d i s p l a c e e s under the urban 

r e n e w a l program,' 

" I n t h e l i g h t o f t h e s e c o n s i d e r a t i o n s , what s h o u l d 

be done? We r e s p e c t f u l l y suggest t h a t you c o n s i d e r s e v e r a l 

s t e p s , 

" 1 . The m a t t e r s h o u l d be brought t o the a t t e n t i o n 

of the a p p r o p r i a t e f e d e r a l o f f i c i a l s , and t o Congress. As 

p u b l i c o f f i c i a l s who must d e a l w i t h the problem on the l o c a l 

l e v e l , and who a r e i n the b e s t p o s i t i o n t o u n derstand the 

e f f e c t s of t h e i n c o n s i s t e n t f e d e r a l p o l i c i e s now i n e f f e c t , 

you have f u l l w a r r a n t f o r s p e a k i n g . Indeed, because of the 

p e c u l i a r p o s i t i o n of the D i s t r i c t , i n which i n t e r s t a t e 
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highways w i l l t r a v e r s e almost e x c l u s i v e l y urban a r e a s , you 

a r e i n a p o s i t i o n t o emphasize the s e r i o u s n e s s of the problem. 

We u n d e r s t a n d t h a t t h i s month the American M u n i c i p a l A s s o c i a ­

t i o n w i l l c o n s i d e r a r e s o l u t i o n r e q u e s t i n g an a l l o c a t i o n of 

highway funds f o r f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by the highway program. 

"2. I n a d d i t i o n , and p a r t i c u l a r l y u n t i l Congress 

t a k e s a c t i o n , a C e n t r a l R e l o c a t i o n S e r v i c e s h o u l d be e s t a b ­

l i s h e d t o d e a l w i t h the r e l o c a t i o n of a l l f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d 

by government a c t i o n i n the D i s t r i c t . I w i l l not e l a b o r a t e 

now on t h i s s u g g e s t i o n , s i n c e the A s s o c i a t i o n hopes t o 

have an o p p o r t u n i t y t o develop our i d e a s i n t h a t r e s p e c t 

more f u l l y w i t h i n a s h o r t time. 

"3, F i n a l l y , and as a minimum, the Highway Depart­

ment s h o u l d be ask e d t o develop the f a c t s on d i s p l a c e m e n t , 

and t o make them p u b l i c l y a v a i l a b l e . As of toda y " — and I 

might s a y u n t i l we came here today we had no o f f i c i a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n on the number of f a m i l i e s who w i l l have t o move 

as a r e s u l t of the c o n s t r u c t i o n of t h i s l e g of the i n n e r 

loop. I r e a l i z e t h a t Mr, B r i n k l e y f o l d us t h a t 480 d w e l l i n g 

u n i t s would have t o be removed. These a r e the f i r s t f a c t s 

t h a t we have been g i v e n and we a l s o know t h a t d w e l l i n g u n i t s 

o f t e n c o n t a i n more than one f a m i l y per d w e l l i n g u n i t . 

"Perhaps the f i g u r e s w i l l have t o c o n t a i n a margin 

of e r r o r , depending on the u l t i m a t e d e t a i l e d e n g i n e e r i n g 

p l a n s , but even an o r d e r o f magnitude s t u d y would be u s e f u l . 
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Moreoever, such a s t u d y s h o u l d not he c o n f i n e d t o mere 

numbers of f a m i l i e s . As i n t h e r e l o c a t i o n s t u d i e s o f 

Redevelopment Land Agency, i t s h o u l d d e t a i l incomes, s i z e s 

of f a m i l i e s , r a c e , and o t h e r s i g n i f i c a n t f a c t s . Only i n 

t h i s way w i l l the r e a l dimensions o f the problem become 

known t o the community. 

'We a p p r e c i a t e t h i s o p p o r t u n i t y t o make our v i e w s 

known. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you v e r y much, 

Miss M i l l e r . 

The American P l a n n i n g and C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n . 

I s t h e r e a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e here of the American 

P l a n n i n g and C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n ? 

G e n e r a l G r a n t . 

STATEMENT OF GENERAL U. S. GRANT, I I I , ON BEHALF 

OF THE AMERICAN PLANNNING AND C I V I C ASSOCIATION, 

GENERAL GRANT: I am U. S. G r a n t , I I I , r e p r e s e n t ­

i n g the American P l a n n i n g and C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n . 

The A s s o c i a t i o n i s v e r y much concerned w i t h the 

n e c e s s i t y f o r the i n n e r loop and b e l i e v e s t h a t t h i s r o u t e C 

•— I might s a y , Mr, Commissioner, t h a t we were not aware of 

the second p r o p o s a l , the a l t e r n a t i v e p r o p o s a l going through 

the parkway and t h a t would have t o be s t u d i e d . We do f e e l 

t h a t the r o u t e C i s the b e s t r o u t e of the t h r e e t h a t has 

been sug g e s t e d . 
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We r e a l i z e t h a t something has t o be l o s t when you 

undertake such a g r e a t p r o j e c t and t h a t someone i s going t o 

be i n c o n v e n i e n c e d . 

We agree w i t h the Housing A s s o c i a t i o n t h a t t h e r e 

s h o u l d be p r o v i s i o n made f o r t a k i n g c a r e of the f a m i l i e s 

t h a t have t o be moved as a r e s u l t o f such a p r o j e c t . Whether 

t h a t i s a f e d e r a l or a D i s t r i c t r e s p o n s i b i l i t y we a r e not 

ready t o s a y , but we do f e e l t h a t something of t h a t s o r t s h o u l d 

be c o n s i d e r e d r e q u i r e d and t h a t an a p p r o p r i a t e r e l o c a t i o n 

agency of some s o r t s h o u l d be s e t up i n the D i s t r i c t t o tak e 

c a r e of a l l of t h e s e p r o j e c t s . 

I t h i n k t h a t beyond t h a t I have n o t h i n g t o s a y , 

s i r . The problems a r e many and you have t o s o l v e them, but 

our Ass o c i a t i o n i s i n f a v o r of r o u t e C r a t h e r than any of 

t h e o t h e r r o u t e s w i t h some m o d i f i c a t i o n s perhaps being made 

as f u r t h e r s t u d y i s g i v e n t o i t . 

We a r e v e r y s t r o n g l y f o r a proper and s u i t a b l e 

mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n p r o v i s i o n t o be made al o n g w i t h t h i s 

p r o v i s i o n f o r automobile t r a f f i c . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, s i r . 

The C i v i t a n C l u b ? I s t h e r e a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e h e r e ? 

Mr. T i t t m a n ? 

Mr, C a t a l a n o ? 
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STATEMENT OF SAMUEL N. CATALANO, ON BEHALF OF 

THE CIVITAN CLUB. 

MR. CATALANO: M r . P r e s i d e n t , I am here a s a 

r e s i d e n t of the D i s t r i c t — 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Would you g i v e your 

a d d r e s s and f u l l name? 

MR. CATALANO: Samuel N. C a t a l a n o , 1440 Rhode I s l a n d 

Avenue. 

My purpose of being here today i s by r e a d i n g the 

papers about the proposed parkways o f the immense amount of 

money t h a t w i l l c o s t the t a x p a y e r s and a l s o r e a d i n g about 

t h e r a p i d t r a n s i t s ystem of h a l f a m i l l i o n d o l l a r s . 

Now, I f e e l t h a t t h e r e i s no need t o have a l l t he 

housing and t o b u i l d t h i s parkway r i g h t i n the middle of 

the c i t y s t r e e t s , r i g h t i n t h e c e n t e r of the D i s t r i c t . I 

b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e s h o u l d be l e s s c a r s , l e s s carbon monoxide 

and more freedom f o r people t o w a l k i n t h e c i t y s t r e e t s and 

not have a l l t h i s tremendous t r a f f i c r i g h t i n t h e middle of 

the c i t y . 

T h e re a r e o t h e r ways, perhaps, t h a t c o u l d be 

f i g u r e d out because most o f the t r a f f i c jams here i n the 

D i s t r i c t a r e caused by people who l i v e i n t h e o u t s i d e suburbs 

of Washington, I f t h e r e were a way t o get t h e people from the 

suburbs t o the p l a c e where t h e y work and back a g a i n t h a t would 

s o l v e a g r e a t p a r t o f the t r a f f i c problems. 
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Now, I have r e a d i n papers where i n Boston they 

spent $33,000,000 a m i l e t o b u i l d f r e e w a y s r i g h t i n the 

c i t y s t r e e t s i n the downtown a r e a . W e l l , i n e v e r y c i t y t h e r e 

a r e r a i l r o a d t r a c k s t h a t have the b e s t r o u t e s through the 

c i t y ; i f t h e r e was such a way, f o r i n s t a n c e , from S i l v e r 

S p r i n g t o Union S t a t i o n , i f t h e y c o u l d b u i l d a skyway above 

the t r a c k s i n such a way t h e r e would be no houses t o move, 

no s t r e e t s t o jam up or a n y t h i n g . But i f t h e r e was a way t o 

b u i l d a skyway above the t r a c k s from S i l v e r S p r i n g t o Union 

S t a t i o n , a t u n n e l under Union P l a z a and have a t u n n e l under 

t h e Washington D r i v e and Adams D r i v e on the M a l l , and t h e s e 

t u n n e l s wouldn't c o s t a l o t of money because they would be 

j u s t b u i l t r i g h t under the s t r e e t s . They wouldn't be under 

th e w a t e r or a n y t h i n g . 

I f t h e r e was such a way t h a t we c o u l d have some­

t h i n g new i n t h e D i s t r i c t of a c l e a n t r a n s p o r t a t i o n system 

and no moving of houses and no h a v i n g a tremendous amount of 

c a r s and carbon monoxide and t r a f f i c jams, I t h i n k t h a t 

would be a l o t b e t t e r , and a l s o we s h o u l d make more use of 

the r a i l r o a d s . 

F o r example, i f t h e r e was a p l a c e i n R o c k v i l i e , 

Maryland, where people c o u l d t a k e the B&O R a i l r o a d and go 

t o Union S t a t i o n , i f t h e r e were a l o c a l t r a n s i t bus company 

r i g h t above the t r a c k s of Union S t a t i o n , the people going 

from S i l v e r S p r i n g or from R o c k v i l l e c o u l d t a k e the t r a i n 
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r i g h t t o Union S t a t i o n , w a l k on the p l a t f o r m , t a k e a l o c a l 

bus t o wherever t h e y wanted t o go. 

A l s o , t h e r e i s a tremendous amount of room above 

those t r a c k s , t h e r e a r e s e v e r a l a c r e s or dozen a c r e s above 

the Union S t a t i o n t r a c k s . T h a t c o u l d be used f o r p a r k i n g 

and l o c a l bus t r a n s p o r t a t i o n and a l l . 

I t h i n k t h a t the D i s t r i c t here s h o u l d go f u r t h e r 

i n u s i n g those r i g h t s of way i n s t e a d o f spending a h a l f a 

m i l l i o n d o l l a r s f o r a subway s y s t e m t h a t may not work too 

w e l l i n Washington, or t o have many m i l l i o n s of d o l l a r s f o r 

l o c a l roads r i g h t i n t h e c i t y . 

Thank you v e r y much. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. C a t a l a n o . 

The r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the Washington Urban League, 

Mr. C h a r l e s T. Duncan. 

STATEMENT OF CHARLES T. DUNCAN, VICE PRESIDENT 

OF THE WASHINGTON URBAN LEAGUE, 

MR. DUNCAN: Mr. McLaughlin, Mr. Commissioner 

W e l l i n g , my name i s C h a r l e s T. Duncan. I am v i c e p r e s i d e n t 

of t h e Washington Urban League and am s u b s t i t u t i n g t h i s 

morning f o r i t s p r e s i d e n t , Mr. R. Frank J o n e s . My o r g a n i z a ­

t i o n a p p r e c i a t e s t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s 

h e a r i n g on the w e s t e r n segments of the proposed superhighway 

system w i t h i n the D i s t r i c t of Columbia. 

The D i s t r i c t has i n p r o g r e s s two m u l t i - m i l l i o n 
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d o l l a r development programs which w i l l s u b s t a n t i a l l y change 

t h e p h y s i c a l l a y o u t of the c i t y * One i s the urban r e n e w a l 

program a t a t o t a l c o s t of $195,000,000, and the o t h e r i s 

t h e l o c a l p o r t i o n o f the f e d e r a l highway program a t a t o t a l 

c o s t of $361,000,000. 

I t appears t h a t t h e s e two c o l o s s i , which a r e 

i n t e n d e d t o improve s p e c i f i c c o n d i t i o n s , may be i n c o n f l i c t 

w i t h each o t h e r , each w o r k i n g t o some e x t e n t a g a i n s t the 

o b j e c t i v e s of the o t h e r . While t h e urban r e n e w a l e f f o r t s a r e 

designed t o c l e a r slums and c r e a t e new p r o p e r t y v a l u e s i n 

t h e c i t y , the highway a c t i v i t i e s , i n making p h y s i c a l improve­

ments, a r e producing a c o n d i t i o n which may be a pri m a r y cause 

of slum-development, namely, overcrowding of housing and of 

r e s i d e n t i a l a r e a s . 

The Board of Commissioners makes e v e r y e f f o r t t o 

c o o r d i n a t e the p u b l i c works program w i t h the urban r e n e w a l 

program i n order t o a l l o w t he former t o c o n t r i b u t e the maximum 

f i n a n c i a l advantage toward the o n e - t h i r d r e q u i r e d a s the 

l o c a l c o n t r i b u t i o n t o the t o t a l c o s t o f t h e l a t t e r . Y et i t 

appears t h a t l i t t l e a t t e n t i o n i s being g i v e n t o the n e g a t i v e 

e f f e c t s of highway progams. 

As t h i n a s the D i s t r i c t must s t r e t c h i t s d o l l a r s , 

i t makes no sense t o n e g l e c t s t e p s t o p r e v e n t d o l l a r waste. 

The c r e a t i o n of new slums through government sponsored 

a c t i o n s which promote overcrowding i s the h e i g h t of f o l l y . 



82 

3 4 

The Urban League i s i n no w i s e opposing the inner 

loop, nor any segment of i t , nor do we t a k e any p o s i t i o n 

w i t h r e s p e c t t o the p a r t i c u l a r r o u t e which the west l e g 

may t a k e . 

The League's c o n c e r n , however, i s w i t h the impact 

w h i c h the i n n e r loop program, i n c l u d i n g the west l e g , w i l l 

have on persons i t may d i s p l a c e . 

P r i o r t o t h i s morning the Highway Department had 

g i v e n no i n d i c a t i o n of how many persons the highways under 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n a t t h i s h e a r i n g w i l l d i s p l a c e nor where such 

f a m i l i e s w i l l be housed. 

The N a t i o n a l C a p i t a l P l a n n i n g Commission has 

estimated t h a t the whole i n n e r loop w i l l d i s p l a c e 6,800 

f a m i l i e s — occupants of 5 p e r c e n t of the t o t a l number of 

d w e l l i n g units i n t h e D i s t r i c t — but a p p a r e n t l y no one knows 

how many a r e i n urban r e n e w a l a r e a s and how many a r e not. 

I f r e l o c a t i o n makes sense f o r f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d 

by urban r e n e w a l , and Congress acknowledged t h a t i t d i d , then 

i t a l s o makes sense f o r f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by highways and 

highway development. While i t i s t r u e t h a t t h e r e i s no 

l e g a l r e q u i r e m e n t t h a t l o c a l governments c e r t i f y t h a t i t i s 

p o s s i b l e t o re-house f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by highways i n s t a n d a r d 

d w e l l i n g u n i t s , i t i s a m a t t e r of m u n i c i p a l s e l f - i n t e r e s t t h a t 

t h i s be done. 

R e l o c a t i o n a s a p a r t o f urban r e n e w a l was e n a c t e d 
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upon h u m a n i t a r i a n c o n s i d e r a t i o n s . However, i t i s now ap­

p a r e n t t h a t t h e r e a r e o t h e r e q u a l l y c o m p e l l i n g r e a s o n s f o r 

p r o v i d i n g a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e f o r f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by 

highway development. 

The p r e s e n t D i s t r i c t r e f e r r a l "system" f o r those 

d i s p l a c e d by non-urban r e n e w a l f o r c e s i s u t t e r l y inadequate; 

i n f a c t , i t i s c o n s i d e r e d a sham. I t i s c o m p l e t e l y d e f i c i e n t 

upon two s c o r e s : I t does not c o l l e c t s t a t i s t i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n 

r e g a r d i n g the elements of the problem and even more important 

i t p r o v i d e s l i t t l e genuine a s s i s t a n c e i n r e h o u s i n g d i s p l a c e d 

f a m i l i e s . 

The D i s t r i c t government f i g u r e s f o r the f i r s t n i ne 

months show t h a t the whereabouts of n e a r l y f o u r - f i f t h s of 

the f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by m u n i c i p a l a c t i o n i s unknown. By 

m u n i c i p a l a c t i o n I r e f e r t o a c t i o n by the Condemnation Board, 

G e n e r a l A d m i n i s t r a t i o n and t h e Department of L i c e n s e s and 

I n s p e c t i o n . 

T h i s i s a l a r m i n g when the f i g u r e s a l s o show t h a t 

c l o s e t o 90 p e r c e n t r e p o r t e d , a c t u a l l y r e p o r t e d , t o the 

agency d e s i g n a t e d t o a s s i s t them. Furthermore, i t has been 

e s t i m a t e d t h a t an average of more th a n 1,200 f a m i l i e s w i l l 

b e d i s p l a c e d i n the same way f o r each of t h e n e x t t h r e e y e a r s . 

I f d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s c o n t i n u e t o be " l o s t " a t the same r a t e , 

some 3,300 f a m i l i e s or a p p r o x i m a t e l y 10,000 or more persons 

w i l l f a l l i n t h i s c a t e g o r y . 
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The League u r g e s the Commissioners t o check, as 

t h i s o r g a n i z a t i o n has done, i n t o t h e a c t u a l r e f e r r a l p r o c e s s , 

t h a t i s , what each agency does f o r d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s . The 

f a m i l i e s i n most i n s t a n c e s g e t l i t t l e more than g e n e r a l a d v i c e 

on an i n f o r m a l b a s i s . 

Some f a m i l i e s t o be d i s p l a c e d by the i n n e r loop a r e 

i n urban r e n e w a l p r o j e c t a r e a s as w e l l , but many a r e not. 

The former w i l l r e c e i v e a i d i n r e l o c a t i o n , but the l a t t e r 

w i l l n o t . The f a m i l i e s i n the path of the west l e g and of 

t h e S o u t h e a s t a r e not i n p r o j e c t a r e a s . The range of income 

o f the f a m i l i e s i n the west l e g a r e a i s probably from v e r y 

low t o v e r y h i g h , but the income of those i n the Southeast 

a r e p r obably q u i t e low. 

I t i s undoubtedly t r u e t h a t t h e c i t y has not y e t 

f e l t the impact of d i s p l a c e m e n t by highways and o t h e r govern­

mental a c t i o n s , because t h e liedevelopment Land Agency has 

r e l o c a t e d the f a m i l i e s r o u t e d by the Southwest l e g of the 

i n n e r loop. I t must be remembered, however, t h a t d i s p l a c e m e n t 

from a l l c a u s e s i s c u m u l a t i v e . 

The immediate need i s t w o f o l d : f o r i n f o r m a t i o n 

about t h e t o t a l d i s p l a c e m e n t l o a d and a s u p p l y of s u i t a b l e 

housing t o meet t h e need, and a l s o a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e . I t 

i s v i t a l t h a t adequate s t a t i s t i c s and r e s e a r c h d a t a be 

s e c u r e d t o guide urban r e n e w a l and o t h e r governmental improve­

ment programs. 
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There a r e numerous v i t a l b e n e f i t s t o be gained 

from t h i s type o f program: 

I t would a v o i d c o n t r i b u t i n g t o the development 

of new slums. And t o me t h i s i s most important and cannot 

be o v e r l o o k e d . 

I t would minimize the h a r d s h i p t o f a m i l i e s f o r c e d 

t o move f o r the g e n e r a l w e l f a r e by governmental a c t i o n . 

I t would make the most of the o p p o r t u n i t y t o get 

f a m i l i e s i n t o s t a n d a r d housing i n good neighborhoods where 

c i t y expenses a r e lower and o p p o r t u n i t i e s f o r f a m i l y improve­

ment a r e enhanced. 

I t would enable the Commissioners t o keep a b r e a s t 

of the housing needs of the c i t y i n o r d e r t o a v o i d a short a g e 

of s u i t a b l e housing. 
* 

I t would permit the ph a s i n g o f d i s p l a c e m e n t w i t h 

t h e a v a i l a b i l i t y of e x i s t i n g h ousing and the a d d i t i o n o f 

new hou s i n g t o the t o t a l s u p p l y . 

I n c o n c l u s i o n the Urban League makes t h r e e recom­

mendations. 

1. B e f o r e a p p r o v i n g the proposed highways the Com­

m i s s i o n e r s s h o u l d a s c e r t a i n , w i t h some d e f i n i t e n e s s , s t a t i s t i c a l 

and o t h e r i n f o r m a t i o n about the f a m i l i e s t o be d i s p l a c e d and 

the a v a i l a b i l i t y of s u f f i c i e n t , decent, s a f e and s a n i t a r y 

h ousing f o r t h e i r r e l o c a t i o n , 

2. The League r e i t e r a t e s s t r o n g l y the recommendation 
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i t made t h r e e y e a r s ago t h a t a C e n t r a l R e l o c a t i o n S e r v i c e 

be e s t a b l i s h e d . T h i s c e n t r a l s e r v i c e s h o u l d develop s t a t i s t i c s 

a n d r e s e a r c h d a t a needed t o phase d i s p l a c e m e n t w i t h r e l o c a ­

t i o n and t o p r o v i d e a r e h o u s i n g s e r v i c e f o r d i s p l a c e d 

f a m i l i e s . 

3. The League a l s o r e p e a t s i t s recommendaafion 

t h a t the Commissioners t a k e s t e p s t o see t h a t o v e r a l l p l a n n i n g 

i s done not m e r e l y f o r p h y s i c a l use of l a n d , but f o r the 

housing needs of the whole c i t y . 

I n t h i s c o n n e c t i o n , I would l i k e t o r e f e r t o the 

e d i t o r i a l which appeared i n the P o s t y e s t e r d a y by Robert C. 

Albrook which made the p o i n t t h a t a f t e r a l l c i t i e s were 

planned f o r human beings i n the f i n a l a n a l y s i s . 

The League c o n c u r s w i t h the v i e w s of a housing 

group i n a n o t h e r c i t y : 

" U n l ess d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s can f i n d s a t i s f a c t o r y 

h ousing w i t h i n t h e i r means, we s h a l l have m e r e l y d i s p l a c e d 

the h o u s i n g problem, not s o l v e d i t . S u c c e s s f u l r e l o c a t i o n 

i s t h e r e f o r e the key t o s u c c e s s f u l urban r e n e w a l . " 

Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you v e r y much, 

Mr. Duncan. 

Mr. Smith, Mr. W i l l i a m G. Smith, r e p r e s e n t i n g the 

P a l i s a d e s C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n . 
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STATEMENT OF WILLIAM G. SMITH, ON BEHALF OF 

THE PALISADES CITIZENS ASSOCIATION. 

MR. SMITH: Mr, P r e s i d e n t , G e n e r a l W e l l i n g : My 

na&e i s W i l l i a m G. Smith. I l i v e a t 2315 Chain B r i d g e Road, 

Northwest, I speak on b e h a l f of the P a l i s a d e s C i t i z e n s 

A s s o c i a t i o n . 

Our A s s o c i a t i o n i n c l u d e s more than 2,000 members 

l i v i n g from the r i v e r bank t o Nebraska Avenue and Loughboro 

Road between F o x h a l l Road and the D i s t r i c t l i n e , 

Xn p r e s e n t i n g t h e s e v i e w s on the p r o p o s a l s before 

us I must emphasize t h a t we speak as r e s i d e n t s i n t e r e s t e d 

i n the adequate development of our n a t i o n ' s c a p i t a l . We 

hope t h a t our v i e w s may h e l p make t h i s a b e t t e r c i t y and 

t h a t we may a t the same time h e l p p r o t e c t the i n t e r e s t s of 

t a x p a y e r s . 

As you know, we a r e not e x p e r t s i n t h e s e highway 

problems, but when a p a r t i a l p r o p o s a l i s p r e s e n t e d the c o s t 

of which exceeds the e n t i r e s c h o o l budget f o r a y e a r , then 

i t i s incumbent upon us t h a t we s t u d y t h i s m a t t e r c a r e f u l l y . 

L e t me f i r s t d i r e c t a few comments t o the t h r e e p r o p o s a l s 

and then t a l k about t h i s h e a r i n g . 

On the E S t r e e t w i d e n i n g and Washington C i r c l e 

u n d e r p a s s : We agree w i t h your announcement t h a t t h i s improve­

ment has been u r g e n t l y needed and we have o n l y two q u e s t i o n s . 

1. Would i t be p o s s i b l e t o make any p r o v i s i o n s 
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f o r c o n t r o l l i n g i c e and snow on the 5 percent grades enter­

ing and l e a v i n g the underpass? We have had enough bad 

experience i n the D i s t r i c t with t r a f f i c jams during winter 

seasons to make i t worth c o n s i d e r i n g putting i n heating 

elements to prevent t r a f f i c d i s r u p t i o n s r e s u l t i n g from i c e 

and snow c o n d i t i o n s . 

2. Once the underpass i s completed i t i s p r a c t i c a l l y 

impossible to r e v i s e i t . Therefore, we urge that you consider 

c a r e f u l l y the p o s s i b i l i t y of widening e i t h e r the underpass 

or the s u r f a c e l e v e l roadways on e i t h e r s i d e of the underpass 

or the s u r f a c e l e v e l roadways on e i t h e r s i d e of the underpass 

t o accommodate the p o s s i b l e heavier s u r f a c e t r a f f i c flow, 

such as t r a f f i c coming along K S t r e e t to use 22nd S t r e e t 

going north. 

Now, on the inner loop: Without commenting on the 

merits of the inner loop as such, we have sympathy fo r the 

D. C. Highway Department proposal and p o s s i b l y a l s o f o r 

C - l , which was j u s t mentioned t h i s morning. However, the 

b a s i c information e s s e n t i a l to an informed opinion has not 

been a v a i l a b l e . The value and type of p r o p e r t i e s required 

seems important t o such an opinion. The information t h i s 

morning didn't go i n t o that d e t a i l . We think i t i s e s s e n t i a l . 

Furthermore, the c o s t s of r e p l a c i n g the i n a c c e s s i b l e grade 

s c h o l should be evaluated as part of the t o t a l p i c t u r e . We 

do have two questions concerning t h i s proposal. 
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1. We note t h a t the i n n e r loop swings i n l a n d 

away from Rock Creek Parkway t h u s a v o i d i n g the Gas Company 

p r o p e r t y , the grade s c h o o l which we u n d e r s t a n d c o u l d no 

l o n g e r be used a s a s c h o o l , and the p r o j e c t e d C u l t u r a l 

C e n t e r of music h a l l and t h e a t r e . They a r e d e s c r i b e d on 

t h e map as being p r o s p e c t i v e s t r u c t u r e s . These b u i l d i n g s a r e 

not i n e x i s t e n c e and by and l a r g e t h e y r e p r e s e n t a promise 

of something t h a t may or may not be accomplished. 

The consequence of t h i s i n l a n d swing i s t h a t 

c o n s i d e r a b l y more r e s i d e n t i a l p r o p e r t y must be condemned, 

and the r o u t e i s l o n g e r . I s i t not p r e f e r a b l e t o use v a c a n t 

l a n d f o r the loop and t o l e a v e f u t u r e development of the 

t y p e p r o j e c t e d t o a l t e r n a t e a r e a s , many of which appear t o 

be becoming a v a i l a b l e t o the D i s t r i c t from urban r e n e w a l 

programs. 

2. Would not t r a f f i c f l o w be speeded on the f o u r 

ramps a t the i n t e r c h a n g e w i t h the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway i f 

p r o v i s i o n were made f o r widening the a c c e s s roads l e a d i n g t o 

and from the ramps s o t h a t t h r o u g h - t r a f f i c c o u l d move p a s t 

the ramp i n t e r c h a n g e w i t h o u t s l a c k i n g speed f o r ramp t r a f f i c . 

The d e t a i l of the maps t h e r e p r e s e n t e d i n d i c a t e i n s m a l l 

type the number of ramps but t h e y make no p r o v i s i o n f o r 

w i d e n i n g the main roadways e i t h e r r i g h t b e f o r e the ramp or 

r i g h t a f t e r i t e n t e r s or l e a v e s the highway. 

A l s o , we wonder about the wisdom of p l a n n i n g f o r 



90ht 
92 

s i n g l e l a n e ramps when we know so l i t t l e about the t r a f f i c 

l o a d s , C e r t a i n l y i t would be f a r more e x p e n s i v e a t a l a t e r 

date t o widen s i n g l e l a n e ramps than t o do i f i n i t i a l l y . 

On the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway: We a r e i n no p o s i t i o n 

t o a p p r a i s e t h e wisdom of adding t h e second f o u r l a n e s t o 

end about 40 f e e t i n the a i r above the s o u t h e r n t e r m i n u s of 

W i s c o n s i n Avenue. At our December meeting the A s s o c i a t i o n 

a g a i n r e a f f i r m e d unanimously i t s o p p o s i t i o n t o any highway 

p l a n n i n g which i s based on the e v e n t u a l c o n s t r u c t i o n of an 

A r i z o n a Avenue B r i d g e , because no t r a f f i c j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r 

such a bridge has e v e r been p r o v i d e d . 

L a s t y e a r Mr. A i k e n f o l d some of us t h a t we had 

no need t o be concerned about such a p r o j e c t e d A r i z o n a 

Avenue b r i d g e because no highway p l a n s , s t u d i e s , or use 

a n a l y s e s have been made f o r such a b r i d g e ; however, he 

b e l i e v e d one would e v e n t u a l l y be b u i l t . Y e t a t the same time 

we have been t o l d t h a t the p r o j e c t e d parkway a l o n g the r i v e r 

i n t h e D i s t r i c t w i l l be a s p l i t l e v e l s t r u c t u r e which would 

r e q u i r e the A r i z o n a Avenue b r i d g e . Now i n c o n n e c t i o n w i t h 

t o d a y ' s h e a r i n g we a r e t o l d t h a t the W h i t e h u r s t Freeway 

p r o p o s a l s t o p s a t W i s c o n s i n Avenue. I l e a r n e d e a r l i e r the 

r e a s o n f o r the s t o p i s t h a t the n e c e s s a r y s t u d i e s t o j u s t i f y 

i t s t e r m i n u s a t the G l o v e r - A r c h b o l d Parkway have not been 

made. Now then can we e v a l u a t e t h i s p a r t o f t h e whole and 

determine whether or not the p r o j e c t e d e x p e n d i t u r e of 
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D i s t r i c t and f e d e r a l funds w i l l be n e c e s s a r y , w i l l s e r v e 

the p u b l i c i n t e r e s t , and w i l l not be a s t e p toward t h i s 

u n d e s i r e d b r i d g e ? 

I t i s g r a t i f y i n g t o be t o l d t h a t our a n a l y s i s o f 

a y e a r ago, emphasizing t h a t the Route 240 p r o p o s a l a l o n g 

t h e r i v e r bank was not n e c e s s a r y t o meet t r u c k i n g needs, 

has been a c c e p t e d by the Highway Department and t h a t no 

change i s being made i n the t r a f f i c f l o w e s t i m a t e s prepared 

by C i a r k e s o n because t h e p r o j e c t e d r i v e r s i d e parkway w i l l 

not c a r r y t r u c k s . 

Inasmuch as t h i s h e a r i n g i s on t h i s p a r t i a l p r o p o s a l 

we would l i k e t o ask two q u e s t i o n s c o n c e r n i n g the proposed 

r o u t e ; 

1. Would i t not be much l e s s e x p e n s i v e t o move the 

new r o u t e over w a t e r a l l of t h e way r a t h e r than moving out 

i n t o the r i v e r beyond the W i s c o n s i n Avenue t e r m i n u s ? S i n c e 

i t i s an e l e v a t e d s t r u c t u r e , i t would appear t h a t the o n l y 

i n c r e a s e i n c o s t would be the c o s t of the f o o t i n g s . On t h e 

o t h e r hand, moving t h i s roadway over the r i v e r would e l i m i n a t e 

the need t o condemn many b u i l d i n g s and, d i s r u p t the Georgetown 

i n d u s t r i a l complex. A c o s t comparison of the r i v e r r o u t e 

proposed here s h o u l d weigh the c o s t s of condemnation and 

d e s t r u c t i o n of t h e s e b u s i n e s s e s and the c a p i t a l i z e d t a x l o s s 

i n v o l v e d a g a i n s t the more c o s t l y f o o t i n g s . 

We r e g a r d t h i s i n d u s t r i a l a r e a as v e r y important 
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t o the D i s t r i c t not o n l y f o r t h e s e r v i c e s we r e c e i v e from 

the b u s i n e s s e s l o c a t e d t h e r e , but a l s o f o r the l a r g e t a x e s 

t h e y pay which go f a r toward r e d u c i n g t h e t a x base on the 

r e s i d e n t i a l a r e a s of the D i s t r i c t . 

The d i s r u p t i o n t o t h e s e i n d u s t r i e s caused by the 

condemnation of a l l of t h e b u i l d i n g s i n v o l v e d would be 

s u b s t a n t i a l . Whether i n the f a c e of such condemnation the 

companies i n v o l v e d would attempt t o c o n t i n u e i n b u s i n e s s 

a t t h i s l o c a t i o n w i t h c o n s i d e r a b l y l e s s l a n d a v a i l a b l e or 

would r e l o c a t e e l s e w h e r e e i t h e r i n or o u t s i d e the D i s t r i c t 

cannot be known i n advance. However, c e r t a i n l y i n c a l c u l a t i n g 

the c o s t s some weight must be g i v e n t o the p r o s p e c t of l o s i n g 

t h e s e i n d u s t r i e s . 

I would doubt i f the freeway c o u l d go over t h e s e 

b u i l d i n g s because of t h e i r h e i g h t , because many of the 

b u i l d i n g s might be a d v e r s e l y a f f e c t e d by the c o n s t r u c t i o n , 

and a l s o because t h e Bureau of P u b l i c Roads might not permit 

the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the f r e e w a y over e x i s t i n g b u s i n e s s e s . A l s o 

i t i s d o u b t f u l i f the freeway c o u l d go over the s w i t c h i n g 

y a r d a t the f o o t of W i s c o n s i n Avenue because o f the h e i g h t of 

the g a n t r y c r a n e e s s e n t i a l t o the o p e r a t i o n of t h a t y a r d . 

While i t i s not c l e a r what i s t h e s o u r c e o f the 

proposed r o u t e , i s i t not p o s s i b l e t h a t we a r e d e a l i n g here 

w i t h another C l a r k e s o n c o n c l u s i o n based on inadequate 

a n a l y s i s of the f a c t s and t h a t the D. C. Highway Department 
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p r o p o s a l may j u s t be a c o n t i n u a t i o n of C l a r k e s o n ' s o r i g i n a l 

s u g g e s t i o n ? I f s o , we c e r t a i n l y urge a more c a r e f u l look. 

2. Would i t be p o s s i b l e t o c o n s t r u c t t h i s second 

freeway i n such a manner t h a t the completed e i g h t - l a n e W h i t e h u r s t 

Freeway would be a b l e t o accommodate s i x l a n e s of t r a f f i c one 

way and two t h e o t h e r way d u r i n g the r u s h hour p e r i o d s ? 

These f r e e w a y s a r e tremendously e x p e n s i v e t o b u i l d , 

$25,000,000 e s t i m a t e d f o r l e s s t h a n a m i l e . I t has g e n e r a l l y 

been r e c o g n i z e d by C l a r k e s o n , by the Highway Department, and 

o t h e r s t h a t the commuting work-day t r a f f i c cannot be a d e q u a t e l y 

handled by the p r o v i s i o n of o n l y f o u r l a n e s d u r i n g the r u s h 

h o u r . At a l l o t h e r t i m e s the p r e s e n t freeway i s more than 

adequate. I f some way c o u l d be d e v i s e d t o p r o v i d e f o r 

d i f f e r e n t i a l t r a f f i c l o a d i n g , t h i s tremendous e x p e n d i t u r e 

c o u l d be used t w i c e a day r a t h e r than o n l y once a day and, 

t h e r e f o r e , would s e r v e t w i c e as much good. We urge t h a t 

s e r i o u s c o n s i d e r a t i o n be g i v e n t o t h i s p o s s i b i l i t y because 

of t h e apparent huge e x p e n d i t u r e s i n v o l v e d i n the c o n s t r u c t i o n 

o f t h i s second freeway. 

Now l e t me comment about tod a y ' s h e a r i n g . 

F i r s t , a s suggested e a r l i e r i n t a l k i n g about the 

p o s s i b i l e e f f e c t s on an A r i z o n a Avenue b r i d g e , t h i s h e a r i n g 

i s h e l d on s m a l l p a r t s of a v e r y l a r g e and e x p e n s i v e highway 

program, a p p a r e n t l y i n f u l l c o n f i d e n c e t h a t the e n t i r e program 

w i l l be completed. By t h e m s e l v e s , the p a r t s of the i n n e r loop 
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and the fr e e w a y a r e me a n i n g l e s s . I n each c a s e t h e y dead 

end, one 40 f e e t i n the a i r and the o t h e r 20 f e e t below the 

s u r f a c e . I f e i t h e r or both of t h e s e p r o p o s a l s i s undertaken, 

then o t h e r much more e x p e n s i v e p a r t s must be completed i n 

order t o use t h e s e proposed r o a d s . 

I n i n q u i r i n g about t h i s freeway p r o p o s a l we were 

a d v i s e d t h a t W i s c o n s i n Avenue was s e l e c t e d a s the t e r m i n u s 

because t h a t was c o v e r e d by t h e November 1958 P l a n n i n g Com­

m i s s i o n a p p r o v a l ; and t h a t t he s t u d i e s r e l a t i n g t o t h e 

t e r m i n u s w i t h G l o v e r - A r c h b c l d Parkway and the P a l i s a d e s 

Parkway were not completed. 

We a r e unable t o und e r s t a n d how an a p p r o v a l can be 

g i v e n t o t h e s e two segments w i t h o u t p r e d e t e r m i n i n g the 

u l t i m a t e r e a s o n a b l e t e r m i n u s f o r t h e s e r o u t e s . T h e r e f o r e , 

we suggest t h a t t h e s e h e a r i n g s a r e premature and t h a t j u s t i -

f i c a t i o n f o r those two p r o p o s a l s should be e v a l u a t e d a t a 

h e a r i n g or:ly when t h e e n t i r e p r o p o s a l s can be r e v i e w e d . 

To a u t h o r i z e today the e x p e n d i t u r e of $70 m i l l i o n , when i n 

f a c t the a u t h o r i z a t i o n s may i n v o l v e f i v e t o t e n t i m e s a s 

much i n o r d e r t o complete the work s t a r t e d , may be i l l 

a d v i s e d . 

Second: As suggested e a r l i e r the s t a t i s t i c s and 

o t h e r e s s e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n n e c e s s a r y f o r f u l l e v a l u a t i o n 

o f t h e s e p r o p o s a l s a r e e i t h e r not a v a i l a b l e or a r e i n 

q u e s t i o n a b l e form. I am s u r e you w i l l r e c a l l our te s t i m o n y 
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of a year ago on the r e l i a b i l i t y and adequacy of s t a t i s t i c s 

used by the Clarkeson Engineering Company i n preparing i t s 

r e p o r t on Route 240. 

I have about 30 pages of l a s t year's testimony 

which I won't incorporate i n the record a t t h i s point. 

Yet we f i n d these s t a t i s t i c s provide the b a s i s for 

today's proposals. Bad as they were a year ago they are even 

more inadequate now because of highway programs that have been 

determined upon i n the meantime, such as (1) the V i r g i n i a 

George Washington Memorial Parkway, (2) the V i r g i n i a Express­

ways, (3) the C o n s t i t u t i o n Avenue bridge (4) The White House 

d e c i s i o n on Route 240, and (5) the parkway system proposed 

for the western part of the D i s t r i c t . 

Furthermore, i t i s r e g r e t t a b l e t h a t no use can be 

made of the wealth of data being completed by the mass t r a n s i t 

survey, which may be r e l e a s e d w i t h i n the next few months. 

T h i s f a i l u r e to have a v a i l a b l e the e s s e n t i a l information i s 

another reason f o r delaying a d e c i s i o n on these proposals. 

T h i r d : We are concerned about your a t t i t u d e 

toward t h i s hearing. Your announcement says i t i s ". . . to 

a f f o r d an opportunity to express views on the proposed high­

way improvements . . .(and that i t ) . . . provides a forum 

whereby the Commissioners can r e c e i v e the opinions of 

i n d i v i d u a l s and groups . . . " 

In a l e t t e r w r i t t e n November 28, to a r e s i d e n t 
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a f f e c t e d by t h e s e p r o p o s a l s , a c a l e n d a r i s o u t l i n e d which 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t the d e c i s i o n s have been made. We p r o t e s t 

t h a t t h i s h e a r i n g i s not n o b l e s s e o b l i g e , a f a v o r g r a n t e d 

by you t o the v o t e l e s s r e s i d e n t s . You a r e r e q u i r e d by law t o 

have t h i s h e a r i n g b e f o r e r e a c h i n g a d e c i s i o n . 

The r e s u l t s of t h i s h e a r i n g and the f a c t s which 

s h o u l d have been p r o v i d e d i n advance f o r s t u d y by the 

r e s i d e n t s a r e then r e v i e w e d by the Bureau of P u b l i c Roads 

b e f o r e t h e s e p r o p o s a l s can r e s u l t i n approved p r o j e c t s . 

Your o b l i g a t i o n i n t h i s h e a r i n g i s t o see t h a t t h e s e f a c t s 

were made a v a i l a b l e s o t h a t the n e c e s s a r y s t u d y of the 

p r o p o s a l s c o u l d have been meaningful. T h i s f a i l u r e t o 

p r o v i d e e s s e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n i s a t e r r i b l e handicap f o r the 

e n t i r e p r oceedings. 

I n c o n c l u s i o n , l e t me suggest t h a t bad government 

can be t o l e r a t e d even i f i t i s f o r good purposes. You 

Commissioners have a g r e a t r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o p r o v i d e t h i s 

c i t y w i t h good government because your r e s i d e n t s cannot 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n m u n i c i p a l a f f a i r s . 

Thank you v e r y much f o r your k i n d a t t e n t i o n and 

we t a k e t h i s o p p o r t u n i t y a g a i n t o w i s h you the p a t i e n c e of 

Job and the wisdom of Solomon i n d e t e r m i n i n g t h e s e tremendous 

e x p e n d i t u r e s . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you v e r y much. 

We w i l l have one more w i t n e s s , Mr. J a c k Rubin. 



97ht 
99 

STATEMENT OF JACK RUBIN, ON BEHALF OF 

LARIMER'S, 

MR, RUBIN: Mr, Commissioners, I want to take t h i s 

opportunity to thank you f o r l e t t i n g me come up here to 

e x p r e s s myself and I am here f o r the s o l e purpose of 

Larimer's. I don't know whether I am i n order or not, but 

I understand the freeway i s to come through the exact spot 

t h a t we are located on Connecticut Avenue between R and S, 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: We don't get that f a r 

on t h i s one, do we? 

MR. RUBIN: T h i s only goes to 21st and Q. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: L e t ' s get the word from 

Mr, Aitken. 

MR, AITKEN: T h i s hearing does not go that f a r . 

MR. RUBIN: Then I am out of order? 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I suppose what i t con­

nects t o goes that f a r . 

MR. RUBIN: That i s what I understood. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Do you know the l o c a t i o n 

of Larimer's on Connecticut Avenue? 

MR. AITKEN: I know approximately where i t i s . 

MR. RUBIN: I t i s between R and S S t r e e t s . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Does i t pick up th a t 

l o c a t i o n ? 



MR. AITKEN: The new l i n e would c r o s s C o n n e c t i c u t 

j u s t about a t t h a t p o i n t , y e s , s i r , but t h a t l i n e has not 

been s e t a s o f now. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I t h i n k i f you have 

comments on t h i s l e g , t h e s e proposed l e g s which would connect 

w i t h t he l o c a t i o n , t h i s i s t h e time t o speak. 

MR. RUBIN: W e l l , Mr. Commissioner, I have a 

comment t o make o n l y f o r the purpose where we a r e l o c a t e d . 

So I guess I pr o b a b l y w i l l w a i t u n t i l o t h e r h e a r i n g s when 

i t i s permanently proposed. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. B r i n k l e y , when d i d 

you s a y t h e r e would be t h e e x t e n s i o n beyond C o n n e c t i c u t ? 

MR. BRINKLEY: Beyond 1966 f o r the l a t t e r p a r t o f 

t h i s , Mr. Commissioner. T h a t i s from the 21st-22nd S t r e e t 

a r e a up t o Ma s s a c h u s e t t s Avenue. That s e c t i o n o f t h i s 

p r e s e n t p r o j e c t w i l l be beyond 1966. So the s e c t i o n t h a t 

t h i s gentleman i s t a l k i n g about i s some time i n the more 

d i s t a n t f u t u r e , 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I f you have any g e n e r a l 

o b j e c t i o n s t o t h i s approach t o your p l a c e o f b u s i n e s s I 

t h i n k we ought t o hear them a t t h i s t i m e. 

MR. RUBIN: I haven't any. 

Thank you, Mr. Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you v e r y much. 

We w i l l resume a t 2:00 o ' c l o c k . 



Thank you a l l f o r standing by. 

(Thereupon, a t 12:35 p.m., the meeting was 

recessed, t o reconvene at 2:00 p.m., t h i s 

same date.) 
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a l c - 1 AFTERNOON SESSION 

( 2 : 0 0 p.m.) 

COMMISSIONER MCLAUGHLIN: L e t ' s come to order. 

p l e a s e . 

I s Mr. H a s k e l l Jacobs here? Mr. Jacobs? 

(There was no response.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I s there anyone here 

whom we missed on the morning l i s t ? A r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of 

Georgetown U n i v e r s i t y ? 

(There was no response.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. LeComte. 

MR. IMMER: I am speaking f o r him. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: W i l l you give your name 

and address, and you are r e p r e s e n t i n g the Oupont C i r c l e 

C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n . 

STATEMENT OF JOHN R. IMMER, CHAIRMAN OF THE 

XXXXXXXX INNER LOOP COMMITTEE OF THE DU PONT CIRCLE 

CITIZENS ASSOCIATION. 

MR. IMMER: C o r r e c t . I am John R. Immer, Chairman 

of the Inner Loop Committee of the DuPont C i r c l e C i t i z e n s 

A s s o c i a t i o n . Our A s s o c i a t i o n endorses p l a n C of west l e g 

of the inner loop south of N S t r e e t , N. W. 

We note t h a t the present p l a n C north of N S t r e e t , 

N. W. takes a heavy t o l l of dwelling u n i t s and condemns 

con s i d e r a b l e expensive property which w i l l be removed from 
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the tax r o l l s and expensive embassy property, namely the 

imposing Indonesian Embassy. I t b i s e c t s the r e s i d e n t i a l 

p a r t of our area and w i l l a d v e r s e l y a f f e c t property v a l u e s 

i n the area, 

We urge t h a t strong c o n s i d e r a t i o n be given to another 

route which would run north on 22nd S t r e e t from N S t r e e t , N. 

W. and which would be covered from P S t r e e t to R S t r e e t 

and thence northwest a c r o s s Connecticut Avenue below S 

S t r e e t s u b s t a n t i a l l y as p r e s e n t l y planned. T h i s roadway 

would c r o s s under Massachusetts and F l o r i d a Avenues at t h i s 

i n t e r s e c t i o n . I t would not r e q u i r e the condemnation of 

expensive embassy property or of other v a l u a b l e property. I t 

would remove a minimum of property from the tax r o l l s . I t 

would u t i l i z e e x i s t i n g s t r e e t rights-of-way and the space 

between N a id P S t r e e t s l y i n g immediately west of 22nd S t r e e t . 

I t would i n v o l v e minimum land a c q u i s i t i o n c o s t s . 

Therefore, we urge t h a t the f i r m approval of t h i s 

s e c t i o n of the West Leg of the Inner Loop not exclude 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n of the 22nd S t r e e t route. 

Tiiank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Or. Hartman, r e p r e s e n t a ­

t i v e of the C o u n c i l of Churches. 

Mr. B e r n s t e i n , speaking f o r F r e i d l a n d e r and 

Melrod? 

MR. BERNSTEIN: Speaking f o r myself. 
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STATEMENT OF LEO M. BERNSTEIN ON HIS OWN 

BEHALF. 

MR. BERNSTEIN: I am Leo Bernstein and my address 

i s 1369 Connecticut Avenue, and I am the owner of 2618 and 

2620 K S t r e e t , Northwest. 

You have al r e a d y been t o l d of the h i s t o r i c 

s i g n i f i c a n c e of these p r o p e r t i e s . I t might be of i n t e r e s t 

i f I could lend you t h i s book of h i s t o r i c houses of George­

town and Washington C i t y i n which seven or e i g h t pages a r e 

devoted to — 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: You may never get t h i s 

back. 

MR. BERNSTEIN: I ' l l make a g i f t of i t t o the 

Commissioners. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: We w i l l read i t . I t 

i s very i n t e r e s t i n g , and we w i l l r e t u r n i t to you. 

Mil. BERNSTEIN: I t might i n t e r e s t you to know t h a t 

not only was i t l i v e d i n by George Washington on h i s very 

l a s t day i n the c i t y , 33 days before h i s death, but i t was 

the f i r s t B r i t i s h l e g a t i o n and a l s o , I thin k , the f i r s t 

R u s s i a n l e g a t i o n — i r o n i c a l l y f o r whatever t h a t might mean. 

I n the event the roadway could be moved 50 or 60 

f e e t to the e a s t of i t s p r e s e n t l y proposed l o c a t i o n I would 

be w i l l i n g — and t h i s i s an o f f e r — to give t h i s property 

to a foundation which has been formed and al l o w i t to be used 
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as the Washington C i t y Museum and we would maintain i t and 

make i t a v a i l a b l e f o r the showing of a c o l l e c t i o n of 

Washingtoniana t h a t my family possesses. So t h a t i s an o f f e r 

and I think i t would be of great value to our c i t y to maintain 

and preserve t h i s property. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: That would be a removal 

of route C to the e a s t . You mean the proposed west l e g ? 

MR. BERNSTEIN: Yes. I f i t can miss t h i s property 

by 50 or 60 f e e t and i t can t h e r e f o r e be saved we w i l l g ive 

i t to the C i t y of Washington through a foundation a s a 

Washington C i t y Museum, and t h i s i s a d e f i n i t e o f f e r . 

There a r e a l s o two l e t t e r s t h a t I would l i k e to 

leave with you. I th i n k they are i n the fr o n t p a r t of the 

book. One i s from the National T r u s t and I think you have a 

copy from the American I n s t i t u t e of A r c h i t e c t s . I would l i k e 

to leave t h i s l e t t e r with you and I'm sure you have the copy 

from the Anerlean I n s t i t u t e of A r c h i t e c t s . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: T h i s w i l l be i n s e r t e d 

i n the reco r d . 

(The l e t t e r i s as f o l l o w s . ) 

NATIONAL TRUST FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

2000 K S t r e e t , N. W., Washington 6, D. C. 

January 5, 1959 

The Commissioners of the 

D i s t r i c t of Columbia 
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D i s t r i c t B u i l d i n g 

Washington. D. C. 

Gentlemen: 

I t has been brought to our a t t e n t i o n t h a t the p l a n 

for the west lane of the new Inner Loop Freeway i n d i c a t e s 

t hat Nos. 2618 and 2620 K S t r e e t , N. W., w i l l be threatened 

with demolition. 

As p r e s i d e n t of the National T r u s t f o r H i s t o r i c 

P r e s e r v a t i o n , a nationwide p r i v a t e o r g a n i z a t i o n of c i t i z e n s 

and h i s t o r i c a l s o c i e t i e s , I ask i f a l t e r n a t e r o u t e s have 

been s t u d i e d c a r e f u l l y , so t h a t these two s t r u c t u r e s may be 

preserved. 

These s t r u c t u r e s a r e among the very few eighteenth-

century b u i l d i n g s l e f t i n our c a p i t a l , and have more than 

l o c a l i n t e r e s t . Washington stayed f r e q u e n t l y i n No. 2618 K 

S t r e e t , during the y e a r s when i t was the Washington r e s i d e n c e 

of h i s son-in-law, Thomas Peter. Both b u i l d i n g s have 

s t r u c t u r a l i n t e g r i t y and h i s t o r i c a l i n t e r e s t . 

I hope t h a t a thoughtful r e c o n s i d e r a t i o n may be 

given to p l a n s f o r the roadway, and t h a t a favorable a l t e r n a t e 

r oute w i l l p r eserve those two b u i l d i n g s t h a t add d i s t i n c t i o n 

t o t h i s p a r t of our c a p i t a l c i t y , and a r e p a r t of our 

h e r i t a g e f o r the f u t u r e . 

S i n c e r e l y yours, 

/ s / R i c h a r d H. Howland 

P r e s i d e n t 
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MR. BERNSTEIN: Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. B e r n s t e i n . 

We might sew you up on t h a t d e a l . 

MR. BERNSTEIN: A l l r i g h t . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. and Mrs. Hartnett. 

Mi. GRAY: I am Robert Gray and I represent Mr. and 

Mrs. Hartnett. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Would you give your 

address. 

STATEMENT OF ROBERT M. GRAY ON BEHALF OF MR. AND 

MRS. JOHN D. HARTNETT. 

MR. GRAY: 719 - 15th S t r e e t . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: You may proceed i n your 

own way. 

MR. GRAY: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , General: We rep r e s e n t 

Mr. and Mrs. John D. Hartnett who a r e the owners and operators 

of a very s u b s t a n t i a l high c l a s s rooming and boarding house 

l o c a t e d i n the v i c i n i t y of 21st and P and O S t r e e t s , Northwest, 

known as Hartnett H a l l . T h i s has been i n e x i s t e n c e some 

t h i r t y - f i v e y e a r s and a t the present time accommodates 750 

guests to whom i t s e r v e s 1,500 meals a day. Most of these 

people a r e government employees, some a r e c o l l e g e students. 

The a d m i n i s t r a t i o n b u i l d i n g i s l o c a t e d a t the 

southwest corner of 21st and P S t r e e t s . Other b u i l d i n g s , 

c o n s i s t i n g of apartment houses and r e s i d e n c e s converted to 



108 

rooming house use a r e s i t u a t e d on the south s i d e of P S t r e e t 

between 21st and 22nd, on both s i d e s of 21st s t r e e t between 

O and P S t r e e t s , and on both s i d e s of 0 S t r e e t between 20th 

and 22nd, so t h a t you can see we a r e very much concerned with 

the northern end of t h i s west l e g a s i t approaches Massachusetts 

Avenue. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I s t h i s what was formerly 

c a l l e d Wesley H a l l ? 

MR. GRAY: Yes, i t was formerly known as Wesley 

H a l l . 

The gross annual income from t h i s business i s 

approximately $600,000; i t employs approximately 100 persons 

and t h e i r p a y r o l l i s $160,000. They annually pay to the 

D i s t r i c t of Columbia about $15,000 i n r e a l e s t a t e , personal 

property and unincorporated business t a x e s . 

T h i s b u s i n e s s i s conducted i n about 40 b u i l d i n g s of 

which 37 are owned by Mr. and Mrs. Hartnett and 3 a r e l e a s e d 

by them. 

I t l i e s d i r e c t l y i n the path p r e s e n t l y proposed 

f o r the west l e g of the inner loop. Apparently the business 

would e i t h e r be t o t a l l y or s u b s t a n t i a l l y destroyed i f the 

west l e g be l o c a t e d a s proposed on e i t h e r of the p l a n s on 

the p l a t attached to the n o t i c e of the hearing. 

We wish t o p r o t e s t a g a i n s t the l o c a t i o n of the 

west l e g as proposed. B a s i c a l l y , of course, our own s e l f i s h 
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i n t e r e s t because of the d e s t r u c t i v e e f f e c t the proposed l o c a ­

t i o n would have upon t h i s business and we f e e l a l s o , secondly, 

t h a t i t i s not i n the best p u b l i c i n t e r e s t t o have i t located 

as proposed at the northern end up there and although t h i s 

o b j e c t i o n may not be p a r t i c u l a r l y v a l i d , I think i t i s from 

such testimony as I have heard, the time i s not r i p e now as 

f o r a d e c i s i o n as to the l o c a t i o n of t h i s northern p o r t i o n 

of the l e g . 

Now, i f you w i l l look a t your map and look at 

P l a n A you w i l l see t h a t under P l a n A n e a r l y h a l f of the 

p r o p e r t i e s used i n t h i s operation would be taken and the r e ­

maining p o r t i o n would be very s e r i o u s l y , i f not f a t a l l y , 

a f f e c t e d . I f P l a n B or C were adopted an even greater p o r t i o n 

of the r e a l e s t a t e would be taken, i n c l u d i n g the a d m i n i s t r a t i o n 

b u i l d i n g and the net e f f e c t would be a t o t a l d e s t r u c t i o n of 

t h i s b usiness. 

Obviously our primary i n t e r e s t i s our own s e l f -

i n t e r e s t but we r e a l i z e you gentlemen have to take the p u b l i c 

i n t e r e s t i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n and we wish to make a suggestion 

t h a t the west l e g a t the northern end up there be l o c a t e d 

west of 23rd S t r e e t r a t h e r than as p r e s e n t l y proposed. An 

examination of the map or c h a r t shows t h a t two a l t e r n a t e 

r o u t e s might be used. One has been suggested by the Highway 

Department which would follow the route of Rock Creek and 

run to the west of F r a n c i s Junior High School; but our problem 
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i s where does i t go from t h e r e ? And we suggest the p o s s i b i l i t y 

t h a t a study be made to see whether i t could c r o s s P S t r e e t a t 

the v i c i n i t y of 22nd and P S t r e e t s r a t h e r than as p r e s e n t l y 

proposed and run on up to F l o r i d a Avenue. These proposals 

of a l t e r n a t e r o u t e s do have some merit i n th a t as I under­

stand them i t would be l e s s expensive i n th a t l e s s p r i v a t e 

property would be taken f o r t h i s p o r t i o n of the west l e g i n 

as much as a good p o r t i o n of i t would go through park or 

p u b l i c property. 

I n the event our p r o p e r t i e s are taken and as I 

understand the time schedule a s f a r as the northern p a r t of 

t h i s l e g i s concerned i t would be somewhere i n f i s c a l '66, 

i t ' s probable t h a t the c o s t of ta k i n g to the government 

would be i n the nature of a m i l l i o n and a h a l f d o l l a r s which 

i s not an i n c o n s i d e r a b l e sum. 

We f u r t h e r r e s p e c t f u l l y suggest the time i s not 

yet r i p e f o r making a d e c i s i o n as to the l o c a t i o n of t h i s 

p o r t i o n of the west l e g . I don't know whether the Highway 

Department has committed i t s e l f to the po r t i o n of the west 

l e g which you, Mr. P r e s i d e n t , r e f e r r e d t o as C - l t h i s morning 

running west of F r a n c i s , but a t l e a s t i t has had some study. 

We th i n k i n the p u b l i c i n t e r e s t t h a t f u r t h e r study should be 

made and c o n s i d e r a t i o n be given t o having the northern end 

of t h i s p o r t i o n of the west l e g c r o s s P S t r e e t i n the v i c i n i t y 

of 22nd S t r e e t r a t h e r than as p r e s e n t l y proposed, running r i g h t 
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through our property. So, one suggestion i s th a t no d e c i s i o n 

be made at t h i s time as to where t h i s should go u n t i l the 

Commissioners a r e i n a p o s i t i o n to make a comprehensive pla n 

for the whole inner loop. I t i s q u i t e p o s s i b l e t h a t i f you 

make a d e c i s i o n now as to the l o c a t i o n of t h i s p o r t i o n of the 

west l e g , not having made a d e c i s i o n as to where i t goes 

beyond Massachusetts Avenue a l a t e r d e c i s i o n as to where i t 

would go beyond Massachusetts Avenue might n e c e s s i t a t e a 

change i n any d e c i s i o n you make now. 

I n c o n c l u s i o n I would j u s t say f o r the reasons 

pointed out we s e r i o u s l y p r o t e s t the l o c a t i o n of the northern 

p o r t i o n of the west l e g a s proposed i n e i t h e r P l a n A, B or 

C, and suggest t h a t f u r t h e r study be made to the end th a t 

i t may be moved west of 23rd S t r e e t . 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Houff, r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the Admiral Hotel? 

(There was no response.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. Gore. 

Mr. H. Grady Gore, J r . , speaking f o r the F a i r f a x 

Hotel. 

STATEMENT OF H. GRADY GORE, JR., ON BEHALF OF THE 

FAIRFAX HOTEL, 21st AND MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N. W. 

MR. GORE: Mr. Chairman, I want to f i r s t r e a d a 

l e t t e r which I have w r i t t e n under t h i s date d i r e c t e d to your 
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Board. 

I appear before t h i s meeting r e p r e s e n t i n g myself 

and o t h e r s a s operators and Mrs. Jamie Gore a s owner o f the 

F a i r f a x Hotel l o c a t e d a t 21st S t r e e t and Massachusetts 

Avenue, Northwest. Also, I rep r e s e n t Mrs. Jamie Gore as 

owner of 1516 - 21st S t r e e t , Northwest, and Gore P r o p e r t i e s , 

Incorporated a s owner of 2112 Massachusetts Avenue, Northwest. 

The a f o r e s a i d property owners wish a t t h i s time to 

express t h e i r opposition to the three a l t e r n a t e routes f o r 

the west l e g of the proposed inner loop expressway system. 

I t i s our b e l i e f t h a t the c o n s t r u c t i o n of such a road system 

p a s s i n g under Massachusetts Avenue a t 21st S t r e e t , N. W. 

would be most und e s i r a b l e to the r e s i d e n t s and property owners 

of the nearby community. The t e a r i n g down of the Indonesian 

Embassy and other b e a u t i f u l b u i l d i n g s i n the path of the 

proposed west l e g would be the beginning of a general 

d e t e r i o r a t i o n of what i s and has been one of the most 

d e s i r a b l e r e s i d e n t i a l s e c t i o n s of our c i t y . 

We f e e l a l s o a s owner and operators of the F a i r f a x 

Hotel t h a t the c o n s t r u c t i o n and eventual use of the west l e g 

route as p r e s e n t l y proposed would make l e s s d e s i r a b l e the 

f a c i l i t i e s o f f e r e d by the h o t e l and would l e s s e n the income 

producing value of the property. 

C o n s t r u c t i v e comment a f t e r l i s t e n i n g t o the 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the DuPont C i r c l e C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n : I 
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would say t h a t the proposals made by the A s s o c i a t i o n would 

have our endorsement and would thereby l e s s e n somewhat the 

opposition t h a t we would have t o t h i s proposed route a t t h i s 

time. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Gore. 

Mr. Leon A. Thompson r e p r e s e n t i n g the P l e a s a n t 

P l a i n s C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n . 

MR. THORNETT: Mr. Thompson l e f t me a l e t t e r and 

requested t h a t i t be placed i n the rec o r d . They asked f o r 

the c e n t r a l r e l o c a t i o n agency to be e s t a b l i s h e d . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: We w i l l i n s e r t t h a t i n 

the r e c o r d a t t h i s p oint. 

(The l e t t e r i s as f o l l o w s . ) 

PLEASANT PLAINS CIVIC ASSOCIATION 

WASHINGTON, D. C. 

January 5, 1959 

The Board of Commissioners 

of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia, 

Washington, D. C. 

Honorable S i r s : 

T i e f o l l o w i n g statement was authorized and approved 

by a c t i o n of the Ex e c u t i v e Committee of the Ple a s a n t P l a i n s 

C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n i n a meeting h e l d January 3, 1959. 

Ple a s a n t P l a i n s C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n , a member of 

the D. C. Federation of C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n s , I n c . , i s f u l l y 
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cognizant of the contemplated freeway which w i l l t r a v e r s e a 

l a r g e p o r t i o n of the Northwest and the Northeast r e s i d e n t i a l 

s e c t i o n s of t h i s c i t y ; and views with deep concern, the 

a n t i c i p a t e d e f f e c t of t h i s p r o j e c t upon many persons i n i t s 

pathway, who must of n e c e s s i t y f i n d l i v i n g q u a r t e r s elsewhere. 

We o f the P l e a s a n t P l a i n s C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n know 

too w e l l t h a t the proximity of our c i v i c boundary to the 

proposed course of the inner loop freeway together with the 

type of r e s i d e n t i a l housing i n the area , w i l l , i n a l l 

p r o b a b i l i t y , make our area the unweloomed r e c i p i e n t s of 

a d d i t i o n a l overcrowding which we a r e now t r y i n g to e l i m i n a t e . 

But of g r e a t e r concern to the c i t i z e n s of C i v i c 

A s s o c i a t i o n , i s the important r e a l i z a t i o n t h a t no l e g a l or 

moral r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on the p a r t of the F e d e r a l or the 

D i s t r i c t Government to a s s i s t the thousands of f a m i l i e s who 

must seek housing i n the l i m i t e d c o n f i n e s of the remaining 

r e s i d e n t i a l s e c t i o n s of t h i s c i t y . 

I t i s with these thoughts before us th a t we the 

c i t i z e n s of the P l e a s a n t P l a i n s C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n j o i n 

the D i s t r i c t of Columbia Federation, and other o r g a n i z a t i o n s 

who are concerned over t h i s problem, i n urging the Commissioners 

to take the necessary s t e p s to e s t a b l i s h a C e n t r a l R e l o c a t i o n 

S e r v i c e Center where a l l persons who a r e a f f e c t e d by F e d e r a l 

or l o c a l governmental redevelopment or highway programs can 

a v a i l themselves of those s e r v i c e s i f d e s i r e d or needed. 
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Approved by the Ex e c u t i v e Committee of the 

Pl e a s a n t P l a i n s C i v i c A s s o c i a t i o n i n 

S p e c i a l meeting f o r the body. 

(Mrs.) Florence L. Toms, Chairman. 

/ s / Nelson C. Roots 

Nelson C. Roots, P r e s i d e n t 

607 I r v i n g S t . , N. W. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. Sweeny? 

MR. THORNETT: Mr. Sweeny has l e f t and he i s going 

to w r i t e i n h i s views. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. H e l l e r or a r e p r e ­

s e n t a t i v e of Pamlac Company? 

Mr. M i l l a r ? Mr. E r n e s t M i l l a r , a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e 

of the Potomac or Washington Boat Clubs? 

A r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of Esso Standard O i l ? 

Mr. C h a r l e s N o r r i s ? 

STATEMENT OF CHARLES L. NORRIS ON BEHALF OF 

WOODWARD AND NORRIS 

MR. NORRIS: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , General Welling: My 

name i s C h a r l e s N o r r i s , J r . , S e c r e t a r y of Woodward and N o r r i s , 

r e a l e s t a t e f i r m r a t h e r c l o s e l y i d e n t i f i e d with t h i s a r e a . 

Most of the items which I intended to comment on I think 

have been r a t h e r adequately covered by r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s of 

other o r g a n i z a t i o n s . There i s only one point which I think 
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prehaps hasn't been properly emphasized. There have been a 

number of people t e s t i f y i n g concerning the hardships upon 

i n d i v i d u a l home owners. I t i s a necessary e v i l i n c o n s i d e r a ­

t i o n of a p l a n of t h i s scope t h a t a number of p r o p e r t i e s 

are going to be considered f o r t a k i n g and then not taken. 

I t h i n k t h a t i s something that cannot be helped. However, 

along the path of the west l e g of the inner loop there a r e 

going to be a number of very s u b s t a n t i a l commercial p r o p e r t i e s , 

s i t e s assembled, with a planned use, some of these w i l l , 

I suspect, have a value supportable i n excess of a h a l f a 

m i l l i o n d o l l a r s . I think i t would be of extreme b e n e f i t 

both to the D i s t r i c t and to the i n d i v i d u a l owners i f a method 

of expediting the t a k i n g of these p r o p e r t i e s was found. 

I have i n mind a t the moment a property which we 

a r e attempting t o l e a s e f o r an owner, i t ' s impossible to do 

so with the impending t a k i n g i n v o l v e d i n connection with the 

west l e g of the inner loop. I t i s a property c o s t i n g i n 

excess or having a value i n excess, I think, of a h a l f a 

m i l l i o n d o l l a r s . I t h i nk anything the Commissioners or the 

Highway a u t h o r i t i e s can do t o expedite the t a k i n g of such 

p r o p e r t i e s which seems to be u l t i m a t e l y i n e v i t a b l e would go 

a long way t o l e s s e n the hardship imposed on these owners. 

I would l i k e as some others have to express my own 

personal a p p r e c i a t i o n f o r the cooperation we have had i n 

the e n t i r e Highway Department. That i s without exception. 
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X t h i n k they have done ever y t h i n g they can to 

cooperate with the owners i n the area to minimize the damage 

that i s to be done, but I do f e e l t h a t the only t h i n g that may 

not have been s u f f i c i e n t l y covered i s the n e c e s s i t y f o r some 

haste and expediency r a t h e r than continued delay. T h i s has 

been i n the works, X guess, f o r four or f i v e years as you 

know b e t t e r than I . I t has caused damage i n some r e s p e c t s 

to p r o p e r t i e s t h a t a r e not n a i l e d to be taken, but I think 

f o r those who a r e going to l o s e t h e i r p r o p e r t i e s through t h i s 

necessary highway program, I think the expediency of an e a r l y 

d e c i s i o n and the qui c k e s t p o s s i b l e approach to ta k i n g would 

be of b e n e f i t to everyone. 

Thank you, s i r . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. N o r r i s . 

We have a very b r i e f statement from General P r e n t i s s . 

Major General L o u i s W. P r e n t i s s , USA R e t i r e d , 

as Chairman of the Tr a n s p o r t a t i o n Committee, Washington Board 

of Trade: 

" I am L o u i s W. P r e n t i s s , Chairman of the Transporta­

t i o n Committee of the Washington Board of Trade. T h i s 

statement r e p r e s e n t s t h e views of the Board of Trade a s 

adopted by i t s Board of D i r e c t o r s a f t e r c o n s i d e r i n g recommen­

dations developed and submitted by the Committee on 

Trans p o r t a t i o n . 

"We recommend i n p r i n c i p l e t h a t the Commissioners 



of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia s e l e c t l o c a t i o n 'C* fo r the west 

l e g of the Inner Loop." 

There i s s t i l l no r e p r e s e n t a t i v e for Georgetown 

U n i v e r s i t y ? 

The C i v i t a n Club? 

C h a r l e s Trowbridge Tittman? 

C o u n c i l of Churches? 

MR. HARTMAN: Here. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: W i l l you come forward, 

p l e a s e , i f you wish t o be heard. 

I s t h i s Dr. Hartman? 

MR. HARTMAN: Yes, i t i s . 

STATEMENT OF REV. VLADIMIR E. HARTMAN ON BEHALF 

OF THE COUNCIL OF CHURCHES; NATIONAL CAPITAL 

AREA. 

REV. HARTMAN: I am Vladimir Hartman, D i r e c t o r of 

Research and Church Planning, C o u n c i l of Churches, National 

C a p i t a l Area. 

On behalf of some twenty p r o t e s t a n t denominations 

and t h e i r i n d i v i d u a l churches i n the D i s t r i c t of Columbia 

as w e l l as the e n t i r e metropolitan area I want t o express 

a concern f o r those persons who a r e being and w i l l be 

d i s p l a c e d by any highway c o n s t r u c t i o n which i s not a pa r t 

of the urban renewal program. 

While f a v o r i n g the west l e g of the inner loop as a 



119 

necessary p a r t of our t r a n s p o r t a t i o n system I would c a l l 

a t t e n t i o n to the need of a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e which i s not 

now being provided. We do not know how many f a m i l i e s w i l l 

be d i s p l a c e d . When t h i s information i s secured the needs of 

these f a m i l i e s should be s t u d i e d and s e r v i c e s should be 

provided h e l p i n g them to r e l o c a t e and to become i n t e g r a t e d 

i n t o t h e i r new neighborhoods. To provide a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e 

f o r persons i n one area of the c i t y d i s p l a c e d by a freeway 

and not to provide the same s e r v i c e i n s i m i l a r s i t u a t i o n s i n 

other a r e a s i s d i s c r i m i n a t i n g and u n j u s t . 

I would plead f o r an extension of the type of r e ­

l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e s provided by the Redevelopment Land Agency 

which would be e q u i t a b l e . I n cooperation with the D i s t r i c t . 

F e d e r a l and p r i v a t e agencies the C o u n c i l of Churches i s now 

providing the names of r e l o c a t e e s to the r e l i g i o u s l e a d e r s 

of p r o t e s t a n t , Roman C a t h o l i c Churches and Jewish Synagogues 

th a t they might provide s e r v i c e s necessary f o r good community 

o r g a n i z a t i o n . 

The C o u n c i l of Churches and other p u b l i c and p r i v a t e 

agencies can only provide t h i s s e r v i c e as a r e l o c a t i o n 

s e r v i c e i s provided as the b a s i c f i r s t s t e p . 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you. s i r . 

The Washington Gas L i g h t Company? I s Mr. Gallagher 

here? 
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MR. GALLAGHER: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , I would l i k e t o 

defer i f i t would be a l l r i g h t with you u n t i l l a t e r i n the 

program. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I s there a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e 

now of the National A s s o c i a t i o n of S o c i a l Workers? 

Esso Standard? 

Mr. Wells r e p r e s e n t i n g the United S t a t e s News and 

World Report? 

Mr. Dinwoodey? 

Mr. Dean Dinwoodey r e p r e s e n t i n g the Bureau of 

National A f f a i r s , I n c . 

STATEMENT OF DEAN DINWOODEY, PRESIDENT, ON BEHALF 

OF THE BUREAU OF NATIONAL AFFAIRS, INC., 

1231 - 24th STREET, N. W. 

MR. DINWOODEY: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , General Welling: 

I have only a b r i e f statement but i n the i n t e r e s t of time I 

won't read even t h a t . 

We have our home o f f i c e , we a r e employing about 

250 people and p u b l i s h i n g 20 r e p o r t s on a c t i v i t i e s of the 

F e d e r a l Government on 24th S t r e e t j u s t above the a l l e y 

between M and N S t r e e t s and i n premises l e a s e d from the 

United S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation. We a l s o own a 

p i e c e of property on 25th S t r e e t j u s t below where t h i s highway 

C i s scheduled t o go. We have an i n t e r e s t i n remaining i n 

t h i s l o c a l i t y . We th i n k that i t i s not necessary to take t a x 
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paying properties i n order to handle the highway a t t h i s point, 

hut t h a t i t can be done by going west and north of the school 

which i s now proposed as C Number i . We think a l s o t h a t a 

glance a t the map w i l l i n d i c a t e t h a t i t w i l l c e r t a i n l y be 

of advantage t o the school and w i l l not be of d e p r i v a t i o n 

to the area and park a r e a . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you. We w i l l 

i n s e r t your statement i n the reco r d . 

(The complete statement i s as f o l l o w s . ) 

Tile Bureau of National A f f a i r s , I n c . , f a m i l i a r l y 

known i n Washington and throughout the country by i t s i n i t i a l s 

SNA, i s a p r i v a t e c o r p o r a t i o n engaged p r i n c i p a l l y i n p u b l i s h ­

ing 20 d a i l y and weekly information s e r v i c e s and r e p o r t s on 

the a d v i v i t i e s of the F e d e r a l Government which a r e s o l d by 

s u b s c r i p t i o n and d i s t r i b u t e d throughout the United S t a t e s 

and i n s e v e r a l f o r e i g n c o u n t r i e s . 

The home o f f i c e of BNA i s l o c a t e d a t 1231 - 24th 

S t r e e t , Northwest, where we occupy s e v e r a l wings of the most 

a t t r a c t i v e two-story b u i l d i n g s i n the neighborhood. These 

premises are l e a s e d from the United S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g 

Corporation. 

BNA i s a l s o the owner of land, now used as a 

parking l o t f o r employees, a t 1233 - 25th S t r e e t , Northwest 

( L o t s 50-59, Square 2 4 ) . At the time of our purchase of i t , 

t h i s land was occupied by 20 two-story slum-dwellings ruining 
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along an alleyway known as P h i l l i p s Court which housed about 

75 persons on a land area of l e s s than 9,000 square f e e t . 

A f t e r a year or so we undertook a s m a l l slum c l e a r a n c e p r o j e c t 

of our own and raz e d the s t r u c t u r e s i n s t e a d of r e p a i r i n g and 

renovating them a s was p o s s i b l e and was done wi t h other slum-

dwe l l i n g s i n the area. 

We favor the inner loop and i t s west l e g . Our concern 

i s with the proposed l o c a t i o n of the west l e g between U and 

25th or 26th S t r e e t s and 0 and 23rd S t r e e t s . We do not 

oppose the general l o c a t i o n of the highway i n t h a t area, but 

we o b j e c t to the unnecessary s p e c i f i c r o u t i n g of the highway 

through taxpaying p r o p e r t i e s so as t o i n t e r s e c t N S t r e e t a t 

24th S t r e e t . I n s t e a d of running between, and immediately 

adjacent t o , the U. S. News B u i l d i n g and the F r a n c i s J u n i o r 

High School, and so i s o l a t i n g the school, we think t h a t the 

highway should be routed t o the west and north o f the school. 

While BNA's qu a r t e r s a r e a hundred or two hundred 

f e e t from the proposed l o c a t i o n of the highway, the conse­

quence of the nois e and d i s r u p t i o n of the b l a s t i n g and 

c o n s t r u c t i o n upon the w r i t i n g and pr e p a r a t i o n of our r e p o r t s 

would be severe. We would be probably compelled to move 

because of the nois e and d i s r u p t i o n or because the U. S. 

News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation would need the space we occupy 

i n p l a c e of t h a t i t would be r e q u i r e d to give up. Our 

present l o c a t i o n i s an advantageous one and we o b j e c t t o 
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having t o l e a v e i t when a reasonable a l t e r n a t i v e e x i s t s . 

Instead, of d i s r u p t i n g b u s i n e s s operations long 

l o c a t e d i n the area and p o s s i b l y d r i v i n g them outs i d e the 

D i s t r i c t of Columbia, i f appears to us t o be i n the i n t e r e s t 

of the community t h a t the highway be routed as we advocate 

and thus avoid the c o s t and d i s r u p t i o n involved i n the 

t a k i n g of p r i v a t e property. 

We b e l i e v e t h a t i t would be i n everyone's best 

i n t e r e s t to route the west l e g of the inner loop between M 

S t r e e t and 23rd S t r e e t t o the west and north of the F r a n c i s 

J u n i o r High School. We r e s p e c t f u l l y request the Board of 

Commissioners to so determine. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I s there a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e 

of the American I n s t i t u t e of A r c h i t e c t s ? 

Who e l s e wishes to be heard on t h i s matter? 

W i l l you come forward. 

STATEMENT OF BARROW LYONS, CAPITOL HILL SOUTHEAST 

CITIZENS ASSOCIATION. 

MR. LYONS: My name i s Barrow Lyons, 130 - 11th 

S t r e e t , Southeast. I wish t o speak, however, upon the general 

p l a n of procedure of f i x i n g any one p a r t of the inner loop 

without c o n s i d e r i n g the whole. A question which has been 

brought up by s e v e r a l of the speakers. 

I wish t o make only one p o i n t . My s e c t i o n of the 
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town i s concerned p r i m a r i l y with the l o c a t i o n of the eas t 

l e g which w i l l i n turn be determined p a r t l y by the l o c a t i o n 

of the t h i r d highway from Baltimore. The t h i r d highway from 

Baltimore w i l l be par t of Route 95 which w i l l be the main 

a r t e r y of north-south truck t r a f f i c probably when i t i s 

completed. 

The present parkway does not take t r u c k s , the o l d 

route No. 1 i s not a freeway, and the presumption i s that the 

new route would c a r r y the main stream of t r a f f i c north and 

south. 

The question of where i t comes i n to the inner loop 

i s important to t h i s s e c t i o n and that i s the reason I speak 

now, as w e l l as to our s e c t i o n i f that route i s located to 

the west of i t s p o s s i b l e l o c a t i o n i t seems to me very l i k e l y 

that a very l a r g e part of the stream of north-south t r a f f i c 

w i l l come over the west l e g . That w i l l mean that so long as 

that route i s not s a t u r a t e d with t r a f f i c , i f i f does come to 

the west, that i t w i l l be the chosen route day and night for 

most of the l a r g e t r u c k i n g i n the tr u c k i n g industry. That 

t r a f f i c i s bound, of course, to perhaps double i n another ten 

years so that i f the l e g from north to south, that i s i f the 

new route from Baltimore i s loc a t e d to the west, a l a r g e p a r t 

of i t w i l l come here; i f i t i s loc a t e d f u r t h e r to the eas t 

i t probably w i l l come down 11th S t r e e t . But a l l s e c t i o n s 

that might r e c e i v e that t r a f f i c are concerned. That has not 
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been brought out at the present hearings. 

I t seems to me, and I think to a number of our 

committee of the C a p i t o l H i l l Southeast C i t i z e n s A s s o c i a t i o n , 

that by f i x i n g s e c t i o n s of t h i s l a r g e s e c t i o n of the freeway 

which are not involved i n the p a r t i c u l a r s e c t i o n s that a r e 

s e t w i l l have the stream of t r a f f i c determined for them a l s o 

and i t would seem to me that before any f i n a l determinations 

are made on any p a r t i c u l a r s e c t i o n of the freeway that the 

whole p i c t u r e should be i n view and reviewed. 

Now, i n that connection I think at t h i s hearing 

today no general j u s t i f i c a t i o n for the l o c a t i o n of t h i s route 

has been made. The c o n s i d e r a t i o n s that have been brought up 

are p r i m a r i l y how i t w i l l a f f e c t the r e a l e s t a t e property 

and other c o n s i d e r a t i o n s , h i s t o r i c a l , and so f o r t h , w i t h i n 

t h i s area, w i t h i n t h i s area alone, but by determining the 

route that w i l l be taken here much of the r e s t that i s not up 

for c o n s i d e r a t i o n today i s a l s o v i r t u a l l y determinable. I 

merely wish to make that point. 

Thank you, s i r . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Baumgartner? 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Yes, s i r . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Mr. J . Hampton Baumgartner, 

J r . W i l l you s t a t e whom you are rep r e s e n t i n g . 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Yes, s i r . 
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STATEMENT OF J . HAMPTON BAUMGARTNER, J R . , ON 

BEHALF OF CAPITOL CADILLAC COMPANY. 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: I r e p r e s e n t f i r s t o f f t h e C a p i t o l 

C a d i l l a c Company which w i s h e s t o put i n t o t h e r e c o r d t h i s 

s t a t e m e n t . 

Mr. P r e s i d e n t and G e n e r a l W e l l i n g : The f i r m o f 

W i l k e s & A r t i s o f which I am a member appear here today on 

b e h a l f o f C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c Co. o f Washington, D. C., r e l a t i v e 

t o t h e l o c a t i o n o f t h e west l e g o f the i n n e r loop. The 

C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c Co. i s p a r t i c u l a r l y concerned w i t h p l a n s B 

and C which propose t h a t t h i s s e c t i o n of t h e i n n e r loop 

highway be l o c a t e d g e n e r a l l y a l o n g N S t r e e t between 22nd 

and 2 5 t h S t r e e t s , Northwest. 

C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c Co. r e c o g n i z e s t h a t highway improve­

ments a r e v i t a l t o t h e o r d e r l y development o f t h e Washington 

M e t r o p o l i t a n Area and i t t h e r e f o r e has no d e s i r e t o o b j e c t 

t o needed highway improvements. The company welcomes t h e 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o appear a t t h i s h e a r i n g t o g i v e i t s v i e w s a s 

t o t he best l o c a t i o n f o r t h e proposed highway, b e a r i n g i n 

mind t h e needs o f t h e c i t y f o r t h i s highway improvement and 

a l s o t h e importance o f keepi n g t o a minimum d e s t r u c t i o n o f 

important p r o p e r t y v a l u e s of t h e c i t y which w i l l c o n t r i b u t e 

s u b s t a n t i a l l y t o t h e f u t u r e w e l f a r e o f t h e c i t y . 

The C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c Company's i n t e r e s t s i n t h e 

g e n e r a l a r e a of 22nd t o 24t h S t r e e t s , Northwest, south o f 
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N S t r e e t , are shown on the attached p l a t . The land marked i n 

green i s e i t h e r owned by C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c Co. or i s under 

long-term l e a s t to i t . Most of the land i s a c t u a l l y owned by 

them and i s w e l l i n excess of two a c r e s i n those squares. 

T h i s r e p r e s e n t s one of the l a r g e s t ownerships i n t h i s s e c t i o n 

of the c i t y . T h i s program of land a c q u i s i t i o n by C a p i t o l 

C a d i l l a c Co. has been accomplished over a period of many years 

and at very s u b s t a n t i a l c o s t . The b e n e f i t s to the c i t y as a 

whole, and to t h i s s e c t i o n i n p a r t i c u l a r , are very well-known 

i n that the present use of the property i s c l e a n and o r d e r l y 

and r e p r e s e n t s the e l i m i n a t i o n of many sub-standard houses 

that s u f f e r e d from e x t e n s i v e b l i g h t and s e r i o u s d e t e r i o r a t i o n . 

Other business i n t e r e s t s i n the area have l i k e w i s e made 

s u b s t a n t i a l c o n t r i b u t i o n s to the general improvement of t h i s 

important s e c t i o n of the c i t y . 

I t i s the p o s i t i o n of C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c that every 

e f f o r t should be made by the D i s t r i c t Commissioners to f i n d 

another l o c a t i o n i n t h i s area which w i l l make unnecessary 

the c o s t l y condemnation and d e s t r u c t i o n of p r i v a t e p r o p e r t i e s 

along N S t r e e t between 22nd and 25th S t r e e t s . 

We, th e r e f o r e , recommend that the Commissioners 

adopt an a l t e r n a t e plan which would l o c a t e the inner loop 

highway i n t h i s area to the north and g e n e r a l l y west of the 

F r a n c i s Junior High School. 

In c l o s i n g , we concur and h e a r t i l y endorse the 
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s t a t e m e n t p r e s e n t e d by t h e U. S. News and World Report. 

I t j u s t so happens t h a t I got on ahead o f them because the y 

weren't i n the room a t t h e time you c a l l e d f o r u s . 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: A r e you s a y i n g t h a t t h a t 

a l t e r n a t e r o u t e would m i s s t h e s e e s t a b l i s h m e n t s ? 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Yes, s i r ; even Route C, Mr. 

McLaughlin, would not touch any of t h e p r o p e r t i e s a c t u a l l y 

owned by C a p i t o l C a d i l l a c . As you can see h e r e , a t t h e p o i n t 

where t h e y own you have gone t o t h e n o r t h s i d e o f N S t r e e t ; 

i t ' s o ver on t h i s s q u a r e where t h e U n i t e d S t a t e s News i s 

l o c a t e d t h a t you s t a r t t o c u t i n and t a k e one of t h e i r 

b u i l d i n g s . The b u i l d i n g s a c r o s s t h e s t r e e t would be t a k e n . 

T h a t ' s a row o f houses. We suggest t h a t you go i n t o t h e park 

and i n back o f t h e s c h o o l . 

I have two o t h e r s t o p r e s e n t . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: You have some o t h e r 

c l i e n t s ? 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Yes. 

STATEMENT OF J . HAMPTON BAUMGARTNER, JR . , ON 

BEHALF OF DR. JOHN F. KEAVENY, 4208 - 49t h STREET, 

NORTHWEST. 

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Mr. P r e s i d e n t and G e n e r a l W e l l i n g : 

on b e h a l f o f Dr. John F. Keaveny, 4208 - 49t h S t r e e t , Northwest, 

owner o f L o t s 23, 69 and 70 i n Square 72, improved by premises 
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2123, 2125 and 2143 L S t r e e t , Northwest, we d e s i r e to submit 

the following statement i n response to your no t i c e of 

November 24, 1958, concerning the proposed l o c a t i o n of the 

west l eg of the inner loop, the s u b j e c t of the p u b l i c hearing 

on January 5, 1959. 

The owner wishes to be r e g i s t e r e d as opposing the 

adoption of the proposed plan i n d i c a t e d as "A", the Washington 

C i r c l e Route, for the following reasons: 

1. The adoption of the DeLeuw, Cafher Company plan 

passing under Washington C i r c l e and t r a v e l i n g north along the 

east s i d e of 21st S t r e e t , Northwest, would be i n o r d i n a t e l y 

expensive. I t would r e q u i r e the condemnation and d e s t r u c t i o n 

of many s u b s t a n t i a l s t r u c t u r e s i n an area which are i n the 

process of r e h a b i l i t a t i o n . 

2. The proposal to have a double l e v e l underpass at 

Washington C i r c l e would be a very expensive engineering 

f e a t and the need would not j u s t i f y the cost involved. 

The owner b e l i e v e s that routes "B" or "C" or some 

mod i f i c a t i o n thereof should be adopted because that would do 

l e s s damage to the area, would c o s t s u b s t a n t i a l l y l e s s to 

acquire the e x i s t i n g p r o p e r t i e s and would be l e s s c o s t l y to 

con s t r u c t the new roadway. 

For these reasons, Dr. John F. Keaveny requests the 

Commissioners to r e j e c t the proposed l o c a t i o n "A" for the 

west l e g of the inner loop. 



I have one f u r t h e r one. T h i s i s the s h o r t e s t of 

them. 

STATEMENT OF J . HAMPTON BAUMGARTNER, JR., ON 

BEHALF OF THE POTOMAC PLAZA CORPORATION. 

ME;. BAUMGARTNER: T h i s statement i s on behalf of 

the Potomac P l a z a Corporation. I have no prepared statement 

for them because Mr. Royce Ward, the Pre s i d e n t of Hegeman-

H a r r i s was here t h i s morning. Hegeman-Harris i s one of the 

p r i n c i p a l s involved i n the syndicate which i s developing 

Potomac P l a z a . He had planned to s t a y but he could not stay 

t h i s afternoon to speak. 

The Potomac P l a z a has asked me to s t a t e on t h e i r 

behalf t h i s very b r i e f statement. 

The highway system that has been c a r e f u l l y worked 

out to permit the o r d e r l y development of t h i s area with 

minimum adverse e f f e c t upon property v a l u e s i n the area. 

The Potomac P l a z a Corporation, t h e r e f o r e , recommends that 

prompt a c t i o n be taken to adopt e i t h e r Plans B or C as t h i s 

w i l l a s s i s t i n future development of the area. They favor 

B or C and oppose Plan A. 

Now, a s i d e from that statement I would l i k e to say 

to you gentlemen t h a t we had two other c l i e n t s present t h i s 

morning both of whom own property that are d i r e c t l y — one 

owns d i r e c t l y i n the l i n e and you are going to take every 

foot they have, and that gentleman decided to go home. He 
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has a very s u b s t a n t i a l laundry operation r i g h t i n the l i n e of 

t h i s improvement. But the only comment that I want to make 

for him and for s e v e r a l other of our c l i e n t s i s that we urge 

that the Board of Commissioners make some d e c i s i o n and make 

i t r a t h e r r a p i d l y . We commend the Board and p a r t i c u l a r l y 

General Welling f o r the a c t i o n that was taken l a s t year i n 

the case of Route 240. The sooner d e c i s i o n s are made the 

property owners i n the neighborhood know where they stand. 

They are e i t h e r i n the l i n e of i t , they are out of i t , they 

can make d e c i s i o n s about g e t t i n g out or r i d of t h e i r property, 

and for that reason we ask that some d e c i s i o n be taken, of 

course a f t e r proper and adequate study. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you. 

Mr. Gould? 

Mr. Gould, a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of D. F. A n t o n e l l i 

A s s o c i a t e s . 

STATEMENT OF JOHN W. LYON ON BEHALF OF D. F. 

AKTONELLI, JR., AND KINGDON GOULD, JR. 

MR. LYON: Mr. P r e s i d e n t , General Welling: My 

name i s John W. Lyon, I am here on behalf of Mr. Kingdon 

Gould, J r . and Mr. D. F. A n t o n e l l i , J r . , who are owners of 

cons i d e r a b l e r e a l e s t a t e i n Square 33, 44, and 59. These 

gentlemen w i l l be a f f e c t e d by the — 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Where are they located? 
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MR. LYON: Square 33, at the corner o f — I can 

show you on the map here, I b e l i e v e . 

23rd and E, t h a t ' s Square 59. Square 59 and 33 — 

MR. BRINKLEY: Both squares to the west. 

MR. LYON: These two sequares, p l u s t h i s square 

here which i s on 23rd and E S t r e e t s . 

These gentlemen w i l l be a f f e c t e d by the west l e g 

as proposed under Plan C which i s endorsed by the Highway 

Department. Even though they w i l l l o s e c o n siderable r e a l 

e s t a t e with the r e a l i z a t i o n of t h i s freeway they f e e l that 

i t i s necessary and v i t a l to the growth of the Metropolitan 

Area. These gentlemen h e a r t i l y endorse Mr. C h a r l e s N o r r i s ' 

suggestion that a r a p i d d e c i s i o n be made by the Commissioners. 

The highway program coupled with the recent zoning changes 

that we have had i n t h i s area have had very d e f i n i t e i l l 

e f f e c t s on r e a l e s t a t e and r e a l e s t a t e t r a n s a c t i o n s i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area. 

The prompt d e c i s i o n , I think, on the part of the 

Commissioners to adopt the plan as proposed under Plan C 

would help a normal development of t h i s area and I think f r e e 

i t up, as Mr. N o r r i s suggested, so that people who are land 

owners and holders i n the area and have plans p r o j e c t e d i n 

the future would be f r e e to progress. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much, 



32 

133 

Mr. Lyon. 

I s t h ere anyone e l s e who wishes to be heard? 

W i l l you come forward. 

STATEMENT OF SAMUEL RABAT, 2616 EYE STREET, 

NORTHWEST. 

MR, RABAT: My name i s Samuel Rabat and I am a 

homeowner at 26th and Eye S t r e e t s , Northwest. I became a 

r e s i d e n t of Foggy Bottom about f i v e years ago. I was the 

o r i g i n a l property purchaser on 26th and Eye which w i l l be 

a f f e c t e d by the present highway program. I concur with Mr. 

Carnalier who p r e v i o u s l y spoke f o r Foggy Bottom R e s t o r a t i o n 

A s o c i a t i o n . 

As to what I f e e l , a route which would have the 

l e a s t impact on the Foggy Bottom r e s t o r e d area, that i s the 

o r i g i n a l Route up 23rd S t r e e t , I may be a l i t t l e hazy, am I 

r i g h t about 23rd S t r e e t ? I think he recommended the 23rd 

S t r e e t route. I s that r i g h t ? 

GENERAL WELLING: Yes. 

MR. RABAT: P r e v i o u s l y the Planning Commissioner 

mentioned the number of dwellings that would be a f f e c t e d on 

a l l three plans. I think that a mention was made that some— 

thing l i k e 900 would be a f f e c t e d by one plan, 700 with the 

other and 492 with Plan C. No mention was made as to the 

r e l a t i v e c o s t of the property. I mean, whether i t was new, 

old, d i l a p i d a t e d , condemned, and I f e e l that point should be 
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considered by the Commission, that where new property, 

e s p e c i a l l y r e s t o r e d property i n the Foggy Bottom area i s under 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n that the f a c t t h a t there are only 492 dwellings 

are a f f e c t e d and q u i t e a number of them, of course, would be 

p r a c t i c a l l y new houses i n the Foggy Bottom area, that the 

co s t to the D i s t r i c t Government would be considerably more. 

Taking i t on a c o s t bases, running a highway through 

the p r o p e r t i e s that are more c o s t l y — take, for example, 

i f 900 dwellings are a f f e c t e d and about one-tenth of them 

are new and ninety percent are o l d or d i l a p i d a t e d or 

condemned, you can't very w e l l say, w e l l , that would c o s t 

the government more. I mean, i f out of the 492 houses 

that are s e i z e d i n long plans of these l i n e s , say about 300 

or maybe 50 percent, 40 or 50 percent of the number of houses 

are new or r e s t o r e d at a con s i d e r a b l e c o s t the c o s t b a s i s 

there, of course, would be something to consider. 

As I s a i d , I f e e l that the Foggy Bottom R e s t o r a t i o n 

A s s o c i a t i o n has the r i g h t approach to the s i t u a t i o n but i f 

the Commission f a i l e s to see i t i n that l i g h t and Plan C i s 

adopted I suggest these two a l t e r n a t i v e ways that the express 

way would continue on to the Whitehurst Freeway. That i s 

as long as you are going to have a underpass under the 

Potomac P l a z a Apartments I can't see why thatunderpass 

can't continue and not a f f e c t t h i s b e a u t i f u l r e s t o r a t i o n 

that has r e a l l y gone on i n Foggy Bottom. I have been a 
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r e s i d e n t there, as I s a i d , for a l o s t f i v e years. When I 

o r i g i n a l l y moved i n t o that area there were nothing but — 

a c r o s s the s t r e e t from me and p r a c t i c a l l y on e i t h e r s i d e of 

me — ramshackles and condemned b u i l d i n g s . I have seen that 

p a r t i c u l a r block that i s to be a f f e c t e d grow from these 

ramshackles to something s p l e n d i d to look upon, and I can't 

conceive why, even though i t would c o s t -- as long as t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r neighborhood has enhanced so i n the l a s t f i v e 

y ears — why an underpass can't continue to the Whitehurst 

Freeway, even i f i t does cost — the amount of property i n 

the p a r t i c u l a r path of the expressway runs i n t o the m i l l i o n s . 

I mean, the c o s t of the property and the c o s t to the D i s t r i c t . 

I f i t i s at a l l f e a s i b l e I f e e l t h a t the expressway should 

continue under the Potomac P l a z a and continue on to the 

j u n c t u r e at 27th S t r e e t and Whitehurst Freeway. 

The other suggestion that I have that i f t h i s 

a l t e r n a t e i s not adopted why the expressway on reaching 26th 

and V i r g i n i a Avenue would take a c i r c u i t o u s route around I 

b e l i e v e to the west of 27th S t r e e t which i s an open area 

there and continue on to the Whitehurst Freeway j u n c t u r e . 

I o f f e r you these suggestions and I hope you give 

them s e r i o u s c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: We s h a l l . Thank you 

very much. 

MR. RABAT: Thank you. 
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COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: U. S. News and World 

Re p o r t . 

STATEMENT OF JOHN SWEET, PRESIDENT, U. S. NEWS 

PUBLISHING CORPORATION. 

MR. SWEET: My name i s John Sweet and I am 

P r e s i d e n t o f U. S. News P u b l i s h i n g C o r p o r a t i o n . 

Mr. P r e s i d e n t , G e n e r a l W e l l i n g : We a r e v e r y much 

aware o f the t r a f f i c problem which i s now being f a c e d by t h e 

C i t y o f Washington and a r e h e a r t i l y i n a c c o r d w i t h a l l t h e 

e f f o r t s b e i n g made by t h e v a r i o u s a g e n c i e s , e s p e c i a l l y t h e 

D i s t r i c t Highway Department, t o s o l v e t h e s e problems. We 

know, o f c o u r s e , t h a t t h e i n n e r loop highway i s a v e r y 

i m p o r t a n t p a r t o f t h i s s o l u t i o n . 

We have made a complete and thorough s t u d y o f t h e 

e f f e c t s such p l a n s would have on our own o p e r a t i o n s . The 

p r o p o s a l which b r i n g s t h e highway i n t o N S t r e e t a t t h e c o r n e r 

o f 2 4 t h S t r e e t — t h a t i s t h e o r i g i n a l "C" p l a n — t h e r e b y 

e l i m i n a t i n g t h a t i n t e r s e c t i o n — and e x t e n d s t h e highway 

down N S t r e e t p a s t 2 3 r d S t r e e t , would s e r i o u s l y i n t e r f e r e 

w i t h our p r e s e n t o p e r a t i o n s . A l s o i t would i n v o l v e t h e 

l o p p i n g o f f o f t h e northwest c o r n e r o f our e x i s t i n g b u i l d i n g 

a t t h e s o u t h e a s t c o r n e r o f 24 t h and N S t r e e t s , t h e r e b y 

e l i m i n a t i n g t h e main e n t r a n c e s t o t h e b u i l d i n g . 

The U n i t e d S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g C o r p o r a t i o n , i n 

i t s Washington o f f i c e s l o c a t e d on 24 t h S t r e e t between M and 
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N S t r e e t s and running the complete block on the south s i d e 

of N S t r e e t between 23rd and 24th S t r e e t s , employs approximately 

300 people. Of these 300 people more than h a l f are engaged 

i n which might be termed " c r e a t i v e " work — the w r i t i n g , 

e d i t i n g and production of a weekly news magazine which now 

enjoys more than 1,100,000 c i r c u l a t i o n . I n order for these 

employees to give the necessary a t t e n t i o n and concentration 

to t h e i r work i t i s necessary, of course, that they be 

f u r n i s h e d working c o n d i t i o n s with the maximum of quiet and 

u n i n t e r r u p t i o n . To that end, we have r e c e n t l y completed a 

f i v e - s t o r y r e i n f o r c e d concrete o f f i c e b u i l d i n g at a c o s t of 

something i n excess of $1,000,000. I n the c o n s t r u c t i o n of 

t h i s b u i l d i n g every e f f o r t was made to i n s u l a t e the o f f i c e s 

as much as p o s s i b l e from a l l e x t e r n a l n o i s e s . Although 

there are at times some complaints from the heavy t r a f f i c 

on 23rd S t r e e t , these complaints are comparatively few as 

they u s u a l l y occur only on occasions of t r a f f i c t i e u p s i n 

the neighborhood. 

A study of the proposed routes for the inner loop 

makes i t very p l a i n t h a t i t would be impossible f o r the 

United S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation to continue i t s 

operations i n i t s present l o c a t i o n during the course of 

c o n s t r u c t i o n along the route which takes over N S t r e e t 

between 24th and 23rd S t r e e t s . t*ur own b u i l d i n g experience 

i n the neighborhood has shown that there i s a s t r a t a of hard, 
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s o l i d rock from f i v e to s i x f e e t under the s u r f a c e of t h i s 

whole area. The necessary excavation and b l a s t i n g to remove 

t h i s rock i n a p r o j e c t the s i z e of the inner loop would involve 

heavy b l a s t i n g over a period of time which would make i t 

impossible f o r our people to work i n our present b u i l d i n g s . 

Although i t i s hard to determine the approximate 

time which i t w i l l take f o r these excavations and the 

completion of the roadway i n the area bounded by 22nd S t r e e t , 

26th S t r e e t , M S t r e e t and N S t r e e t , we have had some 

estimates which would i n d i c a t e a minimum of 18 months to 24 

months. Tc say nothing of the noise which such c o n s t r u c t i o n 

would in v o l v e , the d i s r u p t i o n of t r a f f i c alone i n t h i s area 

would c r e a t e a problem which would be very d i f f i c u l t f or us 

to overcome. 

I n a d d i t i o n , The United S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g 

Corporation has, w i t h i n the past s e v e r a l years, purchased 

v a r i o u s p r o p e r t i e s i n the neighborhood i n order to f u r n i s h 

each of i t s employees with parking space. Also, i t has 

r e c e n t l y purchased a b u i l d i n g and arranged for the operation 

of. a r e s t a u r a n t for employees, the c o s t of which i s something 

i n excess of $100,000. The proposed route of the inner loop 

which would e l i m i n a t e the i n t e r s e c t i o n a t 24th and N S t r e e t s 

would e l i m i n a t e the r e s t a u r a n t and one of the parking l o t s 

r e f e r r e d to above. At the present time we are parking 

approximately 100 c a r s on t h i s l o t every day. 
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Already we have t e n t a t i v e plans and b l u e p r i n t s for f u r t h e r 

improvement of the area by a d d i t i o n a l o f f i c e b u i l d i n g s and 

grounds f o r parking, a l l of which a r e being delayed pending 

determination of the route of the inner loop i n t h i s area. 

Taking a l l these matters i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n , i t 

i s our f e e l i n g that should the proposed route mentioned 

above be adopted, the o r i g i n a l C, i t would be a b s o l u t e l y 

necessary i o r The United S t a t e s News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation 

not only to drop i t s plans f o r expansion, but a l s o to move 

out of the area, a t l e a s t during the period of c o n s t r u c t i o n 

of the highway and, depending upon the amount and type of 

t r a f f i c and the noise which would be cr e a t e d by such t r a f f i c , 

maybe permanently. 

Assuming that i t would be necessary for us to move 

our operations during the period of c o n s t r u c t i o n and based 

on a c o n s t r u c t i o n period of roughly two years, i t would be 

necessary for us to f i n d adequate o f f i c e space to accommodate 

the 300 employees now engaged i n our Washington o f f i c e s . 

Such space would have to be leased over a period of a t l e a s t 

three years; and even i f a v a i l a b l e , which i s doubtful, our 

best estimates as to the co s t would be approximately $300,000 

a year r e n t a l for q u a r t e r s s i m i l a r to those we now occupy. 

Thus, i t would in v o l v e a r e n t a l c o s t of something over 

$900,000 f o r the period i n which we would have to vacate 

our present q u a r t e r s p l u s the c o s t of moving and the d i s r u p t i o n 



39 
140 

of our operations during the course of the moves. 

Under the circumstances, t h e r e f o r e , i t i s the opinion 

of our Board that i n a l l p r o b a b i l i t y The United S t a t e s News 

Pu b l i s h i n g Corporation would be forced to obtain adequate 

permanent o f f i c e space i n some other area. To obtain the 

amount of land needed for b u i l d i n g s and parking purposes 

would probably r e q u i r e our removal to the suburbs because of 

the p r o h i b i t i v e cost of assembling s u f f i c i e n t land w i t h i n 

the D i s t r i c t f or our operations. 

T h i s i n turn would mean that The United S t a t e s News 

Pu b l i s h i n g Corporation with i t s 300 employees and a p a y r o l l 

of something over $3,500,000 a year would be forced to leave 

the D i s t r i c t permanently. T h i s move would a l s o deprive the 

D i s t r i c t of many thousands of d o l l a r s of r e a l e s t a t e and 

other tax revenues which i f now r e c e i v e s from our operations. 

The p r o p e r t i e s now owned by The United S t a t e s News 

Pu b l i s h i n g Corporation through i t s wholly-owned s u b s i d i a r y , 

The Madana Re a l t y Company, have been acquired over a period 

of the l a s t f i f t e e n years at a co s t of s e v e r a l m i l l i o n 

d o l l a r s . I t i s estimated by our b u i l d i n g experts that to 

move our operation to another area, purchasing necessary 

land and e r e c t i n g the necessary b u i l d i n g would involve a 

co s t of two to two and one-half times our present investment 

i n the D i s t r i c t i n Real e s t a t e and b u i l d i n g s . I n a d d i t i o n 

to the operation of the United S t a t e s News PubliMng Corporation, 
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The Bureau of National A f f a i r s with approximately 250 employees 

and the McArdle P r i n t i n g Company with approximately 300 

employees, would a l s o he a f f e c t e d by t h i s inner loop 

highway. Both companies are tenants i n our b u i l d i n g s and 

although completely separate and apart from The United S t a t e s 

News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation, the operations of these two 

companies are s i m i l a r i n many r e s p e c t s to those of our company. 

I understand that t h e i r own r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s have already 

s t a t e d t h e i r p o s i t i o n on the l o c a t i o n of the new highway. 

We do know, however, that the d i s r u p t i o n of t r a f f i c r e f e r r e d 

to above would be a s e r i o u s handicap to both companies as 

w e l l as our own. 

As can be seen from the above, The United S t a t e s 

News P u b l i s h i n g Corporation f e e l s that i t has a very v i t a l 

s t a k e i n the l o c a t i o n of the inner loop and we hope that 

every p o s s i b l e c o n s i d e r a t i o n w i l l be given to the a l t e r n a t i v e 

l o c a t i o n which would p l a c e the highway to the west and north 

of the F r a n c i s Junior High School near the northwest corner 

of 24th and N S t r e e t s . Aside from our own v i t a l i n t e r e s t 

i n the matter, i f i s our f e e l i n g and b e l i e f that s t u d i e s of 

t h i s new proposed l o c a t i o n w i l l i n d i c a t e that i f i s not only 

the most l o g i c a l , but probably the most economical route of 

any that has been proposed to date. 

May we conclude by again s t a t i n g that i t i s not 

the d e s i r e of our company to stand i n the way of progress i n 
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s o l v i n g the t r a f f i c problems of the D i s t r i c t of Columbia, 

but that we do hope these problems can be solved i n a way 

that does not for c e t h i s Corporation to remove i t s operations 

from the D i s t r i c t to some suburban area. 

We w i l l t of course, be glad to answer to the best 

of our a b i l i t y any questions the Commissioners may have with 

resp e c t to t h i s statement. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much, 

Mr. Sweet. 

I s there any r e p r e s e n t a t i v e f o r the American 

I n s t i t u t e of A r c h i t e c t s present? 

(There was no response.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: I s there anyone e l s e 

I have missed i n going over the agenda? 

STATEMENT OF ERNEST F. HENDRICK ON BEHALF OF 

RALPH S. SCOTT. 

MR. HENDRICK: Mr. P r e s i d e n t and General Welling: 

My name i s E r n e s t F. Hendrick, I am an attorney, I represent 

Ralph S. Scott and h i s family. Mr. Scott would have l i k e d 

to have been here but he has j u s t commenced a three month 

absence from the country and could not be here on your 

scheduled date. He would wish to express c e r t a i n opinions 

which I think have not as yet been expressed i n a d d i t i o n to 

which he would l i k e to confirm and support the statements 

that have been made on behalf of theHartnett family who now 
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o p e r a t e what was f o r m e r l y known a s Wesley H a l l . 

The S c o t t f a m i l y , Mr. S c o t t would p o i n t o u t , f o r 

o v e r t h i r t y y e a r s g r a d u a l l y assembled some f i f t y - o d d p r o p e r t i e s 

i n t h i s neighborhood, most of which would now be a f f e c t e d 

a d v e r s e l y by t h e p l a n s t h a t have- been proposed. I n f a c t , a l l 

of t h e v a r i o u s a l t e r n a t e p l a n s f o r t h a t p o r t i o n o f t h e i n n e r 

loop n o r t h o f K S t r e e t , and p a r t i c u l a r l y where i t n e a r s 

2 1 s t and M a s s a c h u s e t t s . 

He would l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t i n t h a t v a s t 

e x p e r i e n c e t h a t he has had w h e r e i n he c r e a t e d an up-graded 

neighborhood from what was t hen s t a r t i n g t o be a v e r y s l u m i s h 

neighborhood, he and o t h e r people i n t h e neighborhood such 

as Mr. B e r n s t e i n and o t h e r p r o p e r t y owners have up-graded t h a t 

neighborhood and be d i d c r e a t e what i s now known a s t h e 

A d m i r a l H o t e l which was f o r m e r l y known a s Scott's H o t e l . 

He would l i k e t o p o i n t out i n a d d i t i o n t o what has 

been s a i d t h a t h i s v i s i o n o f t h e i n n e r loop a f t e r a l l t h a t 

e x p e r i e n c e has been t h a t i f would t a k e t h e form t h a t i s now 

a t t h e l a s t minute, j u s t b e f o r e t h i s h e a r i n g s t a r t e d , a s I 

b e l i e v e i s known a s C - l which i s t h e oae t h a t would t a k e i t 

around n o r t h of t h e F r a n c i s J u n i o r High, and I t h i n k i f he 

had h e a r d t h e t e s t i m o n y h e r e today he would concur i n what 

a p p a r e n t l y i s r a t h e r unanimous o p i n i o n o f everybody now t h a t 

t h e b e s t o f a l l t h e r o u t e s t h a t have been proposed i s t h e 

C - l . However, most of t h e proponents o f t h a t and o t h e r p l a n s 
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and the o b j e c t o r s to o t h e r p l a n s have c o n f i n e d t h e i r 

t e s t i m o n y and t h e i r o p i n i o n s t o p r o p e r t i e s t h a t i n c l u d e 

t h e j u n i o r h i g h and p r o p e r t i e s s o u t h t h e r e o f e x c e p t f o r t h e 

H a r t n e t t s and one o r two o t h e r s . Mr. S c o t t would p o i n t out 

t h a t now t h a t you have your Highway Department and your 

e n g i n e e r i n g e x p e r t s a d m i t t i n g t h a t t h e y c o u l d go down i n t o 

the p a r k lower l e v e l and t h a t t h a t would not be u n f e a s i b l e , 

once you a r e t h e r e he would p o i n t out t h a t you c o u l d c o n t i n u e 

your loop w i t h o u t t h a t b i g bend towards 2 1 s t S t r e e t which 

s i m p l y g e t s you up i n t o an a r e a which i s troublesome a t 2 1 s t 

and M a s s a c h u s e t t s and i n s t e a d you c o u l d go up between 22nd 

and 2 3 r d o r a p p r o x i m a t e l y 2 3 r d and c e r t a i n l y 22nd, t h e r e b y 

m i s s i n g a tremendous a d j u n c t of t a x p a y i n g p r o p e r t i e s and you 

c o u l d go up and connect w i t h F l o r i d a Avenue i n what amounts 

t o a c i r c l e , somewhat o f a c i r c l e i n s t e a d o f t h a t loop t h a t 

sweeps i n t h e r e and d e s t r o y s c o n s i d e r a b l e p r i v a t e t a x p a y i n g 

p r o p e r t y . 

I am l o o k i n g a t your map now and I see t h a t v a s t 

network j u s t s o u t h of t h e 0 S t r e e t a r e a which c o u l d be 

e l i m i n a t e d . T h i n g s t h a t go under s t r e e t s and go under i n t e r ­

s e c t i o n s which c o u l d be c o m p l e t e l y e l i m i n a t e d from an e n g i n e e r ­

i n g s t a n d p o i n t . 

Mr. S c o t t would emphasize t h a t he has s t u d i e d t h i s 

a r e a and he would have t e s t i f i e d a s I am s t a t i n g h e r e today, 

perhaps much more e l o q u e n t l y and much more d i r e c t l y , but from 
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a r e a l e s t a t e taxbearing standpoint, Mr. S c o t t ' s opinion 

i s a v a l i d one, I submit, because Mr. Scott has been a very 

s u c c e s s f u l businessman, he's made of that area something which 

i s u s e f u l and the Hartnett H a l l accommodates as many people 

as i t does and Admiral Hotel, they are u t i l i z i n g an area to i t s 

best and f i n e s t use. I submit from si s o c i a l standpoint, an 

economic standpoint of the l i t t l e people, that to destroy 

that you would destroy a r e a l i n s t i t u t i o n not from the stand-

point of the Ha r t n e t t s who would be hard put to f i n d another 

l o c a t i o n to go i n t o , but from the people they serve, that i s 

the most convenient area for those people to l i v e i n downtown 

and i t ' s a l l ready made f o r a l o t of those l i t t l e people. 

Mr. Scott was f r y i n g to take c a r e of them when he envisioned 

t h i s whole set-up and supported i t and he would l i k e you to 

have your highway and engineering experts do one more job. 

As i s demonstrated here they s t a r t e d out with 

Route A. They wandered over to Route B. Then they got to 

Route C. Then they got to Route C - l . C e r t a i n l y t h e i r 

imagination and engineering s k i l l would devise a system 

whereby the l i n e would be s h o r t e r , t h e r e f o r e l e s s c o s t l y , 

and l e s s i n j u r i o u s to the p u b l i c i n t e r e s t . 

I know Mr. Scott a p p r e c i a t e s t h i s opportunity to 

express those opinions. 

Thank you, s i r . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, s i r . 
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STATEMENT OF WALTER L. GREEN, PRESIDENT, 

ADMIRAL HOTEL CORPORATION. 

MR. GREEN: Mr. Chairman, General We Ming: I am 

Walter L. Green. I am P r e s i d e n t of the Admiral Hotel Corpora­

t i o n . We purchased t h i s property from Mr. Sco t t . At the 

present time we are operating the Admiral Hotel which i s i n 

the 2100 block of 0 S t r e e t . Your p l a n s as they are l a i d out 

here i n your P l a n C or C - l contemplates the missing of the 

Admiral Hotel but i t puts i t i n a very noisy s i t u a t i o n . But 

i t so happens that we a l s o own and operate 13 other houses 

i n the same block on e i t h e r s i d e of the s t r e e t . They are 

rooming houses and they are occupied by Government workers 

and students and so on that would be very hard put to f i n d 

other q u a r t e r s . We operate a food business and a l s o a room­

ing house business i n that area. 

Now, I want to support the p o s i t i o n of Mr. Scott as 

expressed by Mr. Ker.drick that we hope that t h e r e w i l l be some 

f u r t h e r plans made whereby i t w i l l not be necessary to 

incorporate the bend i n t o 0 S t r e e t and over i n f o the 

Massachusetts Avenue area but that you can go on up 

F l o r i d a Avenue and up 22nd S t r e e t and up through the park 

i n order to get the t r a f f i c north where i t w i l l flow i n t o 

22nd S t r e e t . 

We hope that i t w i l l be p o s s i b l e to do that and 

without going i n f o a l o t of r e p e t i t i o n I j u s t want to say 
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t h a t I do support and s u b s c r i b e t o t h e p o s i t i o n e x p r e s s e d 

by Mr. He n d r i c k . 

I would l i k e t o s a y two o t h e r t h i n g s h e r e . 

I h e a r d t h e state m e n t made by Mr. P e t e r w i t h 

r e f e r e n c e t o t h e o l d Marbury House ov e r on M S t r e e t . I hope 

t h a t somehow you w i l l a r r a n g e t o m i s s t h a t . I t w i l l be a 

v e r y f i n e t o u r i s t a t t r a c t i o n . Those people t h a t a r e i n t h e 

h o t e l b u s i n e s s h e r e i n Washington w i l l , I am c e r t a i n , 

a p p r e c i a t e t h a t and we know we w i l l a l l p r o f i t from i t . 

One o t h e r t h i n g i s I t h i n k t h a t Mr. Samuel 

C a t a l a n o ' s s u g g e s t i o n today t h a t we ought t o do something 

t o p l a n t o get some people downtown i s t i m e l y and I hope 

t h a t some s e r i o u s c o n s i d e r a t i o n w i l l be g i v e n t o u s i n g t h e 

p r e s e n t r a i l f a c i l i t i e s t h a t we have t o get people i n t o t h e 

C i t y o f Washington. Nothing was s a i d about t h e P r i n c e Georges 

County v i e w p o i n t o f t h a t but i f so happens t h a t I have been 

p r a c t i c i n g law i n P r i n c e Georges County f o r n e a r l y t h i r t y 

y e a r s and t h e people out t h e r e t h a t have t o come i n t o t h e 

D i s t r i c t o f Columbia would r a t h e r come by e r a i n o r p u b l i c 

t r a n s p o r t a t i o n , and I w i l l f a k e i s s u e w i t h one gentleman who 

t e s t i f i e d h e re t h a t man and h i s automobile *ai*3 i n s e p a r a b l e , 

but I t h i n k i n t h i s i n s t a n c e t h a t r a t h e r than park i t and 

a l o t o f people would p r e f e r t o come downtown by adequate 

p u b l i c t r a n s p o r t a t i o n and we hope t h a t you w i l l d e v i s e an 

adequate p l a n t o use t h e p r e s e n t r a i l f a c i l i t i e s and get tho s e 



47 

148 
people downtown. Automobiles don't trade downtown but people 

do and I think the problem i s to get the people and not the 

automobiles downtown. 

Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Green. 

Who e l s e wishes to be heard? 

STATEMENT OF RUTH D. NEUFELD, 1133 - 24th STREET. 

MISS NEUFELD: I am Ruth D. Neufeld, 1133 - 24th 

S t r e e t , and I come here to l i s t e n and to l e a r n . I am not 

going to comment about each person who;n I heard t h i s morning 

but I would l i k e to s t a t e that there has been very l i t t l e 

a t t e n t i o n given to the mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n suvery whose 

r e s u l t s we a r e a l s o anxiously awaiting. Therefore, I would 

l i k e to second the suggestion of Mr. Keyes of the B u i l d i n g 

Congress ths.t we not merely think i n terms of immediate 

property values. 

I am p r i v i l e g e d to be a f u l l time c i t i z e n because 

I l i v e on the r e s u l t s of funds I didn't earn and t h e r e f o r e 

I am not unaware of the a n x i e t i e s and the d i f f i c u l t i e s of 

people who have money in v e s t e d i n the area. I l i v e now i n 

a s l i c k e d up slum b u i l t a hundred years ago c l o s e to 

Washington C i r c l e , so I'm very much aware of the needs of 

the people there. 

My two p o i n t s that I f e e l p r i v i l e g e d to be able to 

make are that you think i n terms not only of the people whose 
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l i v i n g i s a f f e c t e d and that means so d e f i n i t e l y the need f o r 

such a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e as RLA handles so w e l l for them 

but t h a t yovi do consider the community i n which we a l l pay 

faxes and hope to watch prosper. Not merely i n terms of 

immediate i n t e r e s t but the long term Washington as the center 

of the metropolitan area. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you. 

Who e l s e wishes to be heard? W i l l you come forward, 

p l e a s e . 

STATEMENT OF MRS. LOUISE D0 SIMEAR, EXECUTIVE 

SECRETARY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SOCIAL 

WORKERS. 

MRS. SIMEAR: I came for Mr. Jacobs of the National 

A s s o c i a t i o n of S o c i a l Workers who was c a l l e d out of town 

because of the i l l n e s s of h i s mother. I am s o r r y I was 

l a t e but I thought I wouldn't be c a l l e d on u n t i l about 3:00 

o'clock so I didn't come u n t i l then. 

My name i s Mrs. Louise D. Simear, Executive 

S e c r e t a r y of the Metropolitan Washington Chapter of the 

National A s s o c i a t i o n of S o c i a l Workers. 

The National A s s o c i a t i o n of S o c i a l Workers i s a 

p r o f e s s i o n a l o r g a n i z a t i o n of 22,000 q u a l i f i e d s o c i a l workers, 

625 of which are i n the Washington Chapter. We are pleased 

to have the opportunity of appearing today to s t a t e our 

b e l i e f s i n regard to the need for a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e for 
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those f a m i l i e s which w i l l be d i s p l a c e d by t h e west l e g of 

the inner lcop highway i n t h e s e c t i o n of the c i t y known as 

Foggy BottOH. 

Our members are a l l employed i n a wide v a r i e t y of 

endeavors to r e l i e v e human s u f f e r i n g and to a i d people i n 

troub l e . Our primary i n t e r e s t i s human welfare, the 

p r e s e r v a t i o n of the family, and the a s s i s t a n c e of those i n 

need. 

We have long advocated p u b l i c housing p r o j e c t s , slum 

c l e a r a n c e , c o n s e r v a t i o n and prevention of slums by over­

crowding, and r e h a b i l i t a t i o n of b l i g h t e d a r e a s . We b e l i e v e 

that the only s u c c e s s f u l a t t a c k i s a concerted a t t a c k . 

C l e a r i n g up one s e c t i o n and e v i c t i n g f a m i l i e s so th a t they 

move i n f o other a r e a s which then become slums because of 

overcrowding and lac k of enough a v a i l a b l e housing a t t h e i r 

income l e v e l s does not s o l v e the problem. 

I n order to prevent t h e c r e a t i o n of new slums, a 

r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e i s e s s e n t i a l for d i s p l a c e d f a m i l i e s who 

cannot make a s a t i s f a c t o r y p l a n on t l i e i r own behalf, because 

o f i l l n e s s , low income, la c k of f u r n i t u r e , or many other 

reasons. 

I am p a r t i c u l a r l y i n t e r e s t e d i n the Washington 

C i r c l e area as I l i v e a t 2116 F S t r e e t and am f a m i l i a r with 

t h i s s e c t i o r . At present i t i s a combination of newly b u i l t , 

high income apartments, a few reconditioned row he uses l i k e 
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t h o s e i n Georgetown and many houses of low r e n t a l . I n f a c t , 

t h e r e a r e many which have been condemned and a r e v a c a t e d . 

We a r e not concerned w i t h t h o s e f a m i l i e s whoso incomes make 

i t e a s y f o r them t o f i n d o t h e r housing. We a r e concerned 

about t h o s e f a m i l i e s which w i l l be f o r c e d t o move but whose 

low incomes w i l l f o r c e them t o make u n d e s i r a b l e p l a n s f o r 

t h e m s e l v e s , They w i l l no doubt i n c r e a s e h ousing code 

v i o l a t i o n s , by o v e r c r o w d i n g , and by moving i n t o b u i l d i n g s 

a l r e a d y i n bad r e p a i r . 

The D i s t r i c t w i l l be f o r c e d t o employ more housing 

i n s p e c t o r s t o check on v i o l a t i o n s . Why not g i v e t h e s e 

f a m i l i e s r e l o c a t i o n and a s s i s t a n c e i n t h e f i r s t p l a c e and 

a v o i d t r o u b l e i n the f u t u r e . 

I f f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d by p u b l i c h ousing p r o j e c t s 

a r e e n t i t l e d t o a r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e we cannot u n d e r s t a n d 

why t h i s s e r v i c e i s not c o n s i d e r e d e s s e n t i a l t o low income 

f a m i l i e s d i s p l a c e d because of highways o r p u b l i c b u i l d i n g s . 

le w i s h t o endorse t h e s t a n d of t h e Washington 

Housing A s s o c i a t i o n which has r e g u l a r l y t e s t i f i e d t o support 

funds f o r h o u s i n g code i n s p e c t o r s , slum c l e a r a n c e and a 

c e n t r a l i z e d r e l o c a t i o n s e r v i c e . 

Ho housing o r highway program can succeed i f i t 

i g n o r e s t h e human needs o f t h e f a m i l i e s a f f e c t e d by i t . 

Washington f a m i l i e s need and d e s e r v e a c e n t r a l r e l o c a t i o n 

s e r v i c e which w i l l s e r v e a s a n e c e s s a r y c o r o l l a r y t o t h e 
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whole approach to slum c l e a r a n c e , highway c o n s t r u c t i o n and 

urban improvement. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you very much. 

l i r . M i l l a r . 

STATEMENT OF ERNEST L. MILLAR ON BEHALF OF THE 

I»OTOMAC BOAT CLUB AND THE WASHINGTON CANOE CLUB. 

MR. MILLAR: Mr. P r e s i d e n t and those present: I 

represent the Potomac Boat Club and Washington Canoe Club. 

My name i s E r n e s t L. M i l i a r . I am a r e s i d e n t of the C i t y . 

The o f f i c e r s and members of these o r g a n i z a t i o n s 

express t h e i r a p p r e c i a t i o n f o r your i n v i t a t i o n to attend 

t h i s hearing and that c o n s i d e r a t i o n be given to f u r t h e r 

planning of the highway system so as not to o b s t r u c t our 

f a c i l i t i e s and destroy the present beauty and use of the 

upper Potomac R i v e r . 

Both c l u b s a r e long e s t a b l i s h e d landmarks of the 

c i t y having; s t o o d the t e s t of time and pressure bores 

and c h a n g i n g times f o r over f i f t y y e a r s . Many n a t i o n a l 

and Olympic champions have been developed bringing honors to 

the c i t y . R e c r e a t i o n and entertainment has been f u r n i s h e d 

to the p u b l i c by these non-profit o r g a n i z a t i o n s through 

t h e i r e f f o r t s i n s t a g i n g l o c a l and n a t i o n a l water s p o r t s 

events. 

We b e l i e v e i f wise planning and c o n s i d e r a t i o n are 

g i v e n to t h e n a t u r a l s c e n i c beauty of the upper Potomac and 
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the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p r e s e r v e a spot w i t h i n t h e m e t r o p o l i t a n 

a r e a by b o a t i n g , swimming and f i s h i n g a r e enj o y e d t h i s i s 

an a s s e t which cannot be manufactured but can be v e r y e a s i l y 

d e s t r o y e d . 

P l e a s e g i v e thought t o t h i s p r e s e r v a t i o n . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. M i l l a r . 

MR. MILLAR: .Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: Who e l s e w i s h e s t o be 

he a r d b e f o r e we c l o s e ? 

W i l l you come f o r w a r d , p l e a s e . 

STATEMENT OF FRANCIS D. LETHBRIDGE, CHAIRMAN, 

GOVERNMENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE, WASHINGTON-

METROPOLITAN CHAPTER, THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 

ARCHITECTS. 

MR. LETHBRIDGE: I am F r a n c i s D. L e t h b r i d g e and 

I am Chairman o f t h e Government R e l a t i o n s Committee of t h e 

Washington-Metropolitan Chapter o f the American I n s t i t u t e 

o f A r c h i t e c t s . 

The f o l l o w i n g r e p o r t on t h e proposed c o n s t r u c t i o n 

of t he w e s t e r n l e g o f t h e i n n e r loop freeway was p r e p a r e d 

by a j o i n t committee composed o f members o f t h e Government 

R e l a t i o n s and P l a n n i n g Committees o f t h e Washington-Metro­

p o l i t a n Chapter o f The American I n s t i t u t e o f A r c h i t e c t s . 

T h i s r e p o r t was endorsed by the E x e c u t i v e Committee of 

the Chapter a t i t s meeting J a n u a r y 2, 1959, and t h e Committee 



154 

was i n s t r u c t e d to present t h i s r e p o r t at the P u b l i c Hearing 

on January 5, 1959. 

The Washington-Metropolitan Chapter of The American 

I n s t i t u t e of A r c h i t e c t s f a v o r s the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the much 

needed improvements to K S t r e e t , from the Whitehurst Freeway 

to Connecticut Avenue, and f a v o r s the completion of the 

southern s e c t i o n of the inner loop highway system, plans for 

which have already reached an advanced stage. We are not i n 

favor, however, of the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the proposed northern 

s e c t i o n of the inner loop highway at t h i s time. We s e r i o u s l y 

question whether the inner loop, i n i t s e n t i r e t y , w i l l r e l i e v e 

t r a f f i c c o n d i t i o n s s u f f i c i e n t l y to j u s t i f y i t s enormous c o s t — 

a c o s t which must be measured not only i n the d o l l a r c o s t of 

the p r o j e c t i t s e l f , but i n the l o s s which i t w i l l i n f l i c t on 

the c i t y by reason of a s u b s t a n t i a l r e d u c t i o n of taxable 

r e a l e s t a t e and i n the more i n t a n g i b l e , but none the l e s s 

r e a l , l o s s r e s u l t i n g from the disfigurement of the c i t y . 

That p o r t i o n of the inner loop which i s south of K 

S t r e e t w i l l r e c e i v e the concentrated t r a f f i c from the Potomac 

and Anacostia R i v e r bridges as w e l l as from the Whitehurst 

Freeway. I n c o n t r a s t to the c o n s t r i c t i n g e f f e c t of the 

northern l e g of the loop upon a l l north-south t r a f f i c , i t i s 

planned i n a manner to r e c e i v e and discharge t r a f f i c e f f e c t i v e l y 

through a system of high speed t r a f f i c interchanges or 

c l o v e r l e a f s . I f w i l l a f f o r d a continuous l i n k between the 
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western, southern, and e a s t e r n p o r t i o n s of the c i t y . T h i s 

p o r t i o n of the inner loop has proceeded so f a r that i t should 

now be completed as q u i c k l y as p o s s i b l e . 

We b e l i e v e , however, that no s t a r t should be made 

on the c o n s t r u c t i o n of that portion of the inner loop 

north of K S t r e e t u n t i l s e v e r a l f a r more urgently needed 

st e p s have been taken to r e l i e v e t r a f f i c i n downtown Washing­

ton. We would l i s t these s t e p s , i n order of t h e i r importance, 

as f o l l o w s : 

1. The c o n s t r i c t ion of a r a p i d t r a n s i t system 

which w i l l s u c c e s s f u l l y compete with the convenience 

and c o s t of operation of p r i v a t e automobiles. Such a 

system w i l l probably be more, r a t h e r than l e s s , 

e x t e n s i v e than the rumored proposals of the Mass 

Tr a n s p o r t a t i o n Survey. 

2. The improvement of the means for handling 

t r a f f i c on, and f o r di s c h a r g i n g t r a f f i c from, a r t e r i a l 

s t r e e t s and highways i n t o the downtown area. 

T h i s w i l l i n v o l ve p a r t i a l s t r e e t widening, channel­

i z a t i o n , bus-loading bays, dead-ending some secondary 

c r o s s s t r e e t s , easing of right-hand turns and making 

s u i t a b l e p r o v i s i o n s for left-h a n d turns without 

i n t e r r u p t i n g t r a f f i c . 

3. P r o v i s i o n of s u f f i c i e n t o f f - s t r e e t parking 

to permit using the f u l l width of the more important 
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downtown s t r e e t s for moving r a t h e r than s t o r i n g c a r s . 

There i s no point i n encouraging the i n c r e a s e d 

use of automobiles by b u i l d i n g a d d i t i o n a l freeways w i t h i n the 

c i t y u n t i l we have s u c c e s s f u l l y coped with the volume of 

t r a f f i c which e x i s t i n g a r t e r i a l s t r e e t s and freeways 

already pour i n upon us. 

A good r a p i d t r a n s i t system i s what we need most 

i f we are to s o l v e the b a s i c t r a n s p o r t a t i o n problems of the 

c i t y . U n t i l t h i s has been planned and constructed, there 

e x i s t s a s e r i o u s doubt whether f u r t h e r c o n s t r u c t i o n of a 

freeway and inner loop system w i t h i n the c i t y w i l l r e s u l t i n 

anything more than the f u r t h e r complication of an already 

d i f f i c u l t s i t u a t i o n . 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: We are studying that 

a l l day tomorrow. 

Who e l s e wishes to be heard? 

(There was no response.) 

COMMISSIONER MC LAUGHLIN: There appears to be 

no one e l s e who wishes to be heard at t h i s time. 

The r e c o r d w i l l be c l o s e d at the end of business 

on the 16th of January and I d e c l a r e t h i s p u b l i c hearing 

f i n i s h e d . 

(Thereupon, at 3:30 o'clock p.m., the hearing 

was c l o s e d . ) 




